          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE

          8  And LABOR

          9  -------------------------------x

         10

                            September 14, 2006

         11                 Start:  1:11 p.m.

                            Recess: 5:46 p.m.

         12

                            City Hall

         13                 Council Chambers

                            New York, New York

         14

         15       B E F O R E:

         16              JOSEPH ADDABBO

                                           Chairperson,

         17

         18              COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Michael Nelson

                                            James Gennaro

         19                                 Larry Seabrook

                                            Melissa Mark-Viverito

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Kerry Kelly, MD.

          4  Chief Medical Officer

             New York City Fire Department

          5

             Lorna Thorpe, MD.

          6  Deputy Commissioner

             Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

          7  New York City, NY

          8  Robert Gottheim

             Director of District Relations

          9  Office of New York State Congressman Jerry Nadler

         10  Michael Crane

             World Trade Center Medical Monitoring Program

         11  Mount Sinai Hospital

             New York City, NY

         12

             Peter Gorman

         13  President

             Uniformed Fire Officers Association

         14  New York City, NY

         15  Patrick J. Bahnken

             President

         16  Uniformed EMTs and Paramedics

             New York City Fire Department

         17

             Norman Seabrook

         18  President

             Correction Officers Benevolent Association

         19  New York City, NY

         20  Michael Palladino

             President

         21  New York City Detectives Endowment Association

         22  Meg Callaghan

             Lieutenant

         23  New York Police Department Lieutenant

             Benevolent Association

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Peter Meringolo

          4  President

             New York City Correction Captains Association

          5  New York State Public Employees Association

          6  Tom Eppinger

             President

          7  Uniformed EMS Officers Union

             New York City, NY

          8

             Jonathan Bennett

          9  New York Committee for Occupational

             Safety and Health

         10

             John Vinciguerra

         11  Labor Local 3621

             New Egypt, NJ

         12

             Leigh-Ann Vinciguerra

         13  New Egypt, NJ

         14  David Root, MD.

             New York Rescue Workers Detoxification Project

         15  New York City, NY

         16  Jim Woodworth

             New York Rescue Workers Detoxification Project

         17  New York City, NY

         18  Peter Gleason

             Rescue Workers for Health and Justice

         19  New York City, NY

         20  David Root, MD for Phyllis Gelb, MD

             New York Rescue Workers Detoxification Project

         21  New York City, NY

         22  Aubrey Lindie

             EMT

         23  Rescue Worker at Ground Zero

         24

         25

                                                            4

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Pat Lydon

          4  Rescue Worker at Ground Zero

          5  Steve Mona

             New York Rescue Workers Detoxification Project

          6  New York City, NY

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's Civil Service and Labor

          4  Committee hearing.  My name is Joe Addabbo, and I

          5  Chair the Committee.  And again, I want to thank you

          6  all for being here on such and important issue.

          7                 I'm going to keep my remarks very

          8  brief because of the complexity of the issue and the

          9  amount of witnesses that we have today.  So again, I

         10  will keep my remarks very brief.

         11                 But today, we are holding this

         12  hearing to examine the physical and mental health

         13  issues regarding New York City's uniformed workers,

         14  who worked on the rescue, recovery, and cleanup

         15  efforts at the World Trade Center site, and other

         16  sites, and the ability of such workers to access

         17  medical care.

         18                 At this time, I want to thank all

         19  those who were responsible in the days and months

         20  that followed September 11, 2001.  I want to thank

         21  them for their efforts.  Because many times that we

         22  go forward with these hearings, we don't thank those

         23  who worked at the site, and the cleanup and the

         24  rescue.  So thank you for all your efforts as well.

         25                 We understand that the vast majority
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          2  of those who worked at the World Center site were

          3  not there because they have to be there.  But

          4  because they wanted to be there.  And now, five

          5  years later, after the September 11th tragedy, it

          6  has become all too evident that our dedicated

          7  uniformed workers are experiencing severe physical

          8  and mental health problems, and need not only to be

          9  monitored, need not only to be identified, need not

         10  only to be registered, but to be effectively treated

         11  in their health care issues.  It's important to them

         12  and their families, and also the City.  For we must

         13  realize that we have to ensure confidence in these

         14  workers, that when the need to call arises again,

         15  and there's a similar situation, that these workers

         16  must have the confidence that them and their

         17  families will have the support that they need after

         18  their job is done.  And I think that's a very

         19  important issue as we go through today's hearing.

         20                 And we are hopeful that this hearing

         21  will provide insight and improve on the

         22  identification and health care treatment of our

         23  uniformed workers, the treatment that they deserve.

         24                 Again, I want to thank you all for

         25  being here.  Let me take a moment to thank those who
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          2  had put this hearing together. We have Joan

          3  Povolony, a Policy Analyst; Harold Gates, sitting

          4  here to my right, is our Legal Counsel.  To my left

          5  here is Jake Herring, the Financial Analyst; my

          6  Legislative Aide, Jeff Gottlieb.  I want to thank

          7  the Sergeant-of-Arms for again arranging  --

          8  keeping order here today.  And again, I thank you

          9  all.

         10                 At this point, I'm also going to

         11  acknowledge my colleagues who are there today.  To

         12  my right, we have Council Member Mike Nelson.  To my

         13  left, Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito; entering

         14  the room, Council Member Seabrook.  And again, I

         15  want to thank you all for being here today.  We do

         16  have, again, an extensive list of witnesses, so

         17  we're going to get right to it right now.  Our first

         18  panel  --  and I want to thank the Administration

         19  for their cooperation with today's hearing.  We have

         20  I believe Dr. Kerry Kelly, FDNY Chief Medical

         21  Examiner; and we have Dr. Loran Thorpe, Deputy

         22  Commissioner of the Department of Health. And again,

         23  I thank you both for being here.  I don't know if

         24  you want to flip a coin to figure out who goes

         25  first, but just please state your name for the
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          2  record, and give your testimony please.

          3                 DR. KELLY: My name is Dr. Kerry

          4  Kelly, and I'm the Chief Medical Officer for the New

          5  York City Fire Department.  Good afternoon Chairman

          6  Addabbo and Committee Members.  As I said, my name

          7  is Dr. Kerry Kelly, and I represent the New York

          8  City Fire Department, as their Chief Medical

          9  Officer, and the head of our Bureau of Health

         10  Services.  On behalf of the Fire Department and

         11  Commissioner Scoppetta, I would like to thank you

         12  for the opportunity to testify today about the

         13  health of our 9- 11 first responders.

         14                 As we commemorate the fifty

         15  anniversary of the World Trade Center attack this

         16  week, we continue to remember the tremendous losses

         17  of that day.  In a matter of moments, with the

         18  collapse of the two towers, 343 of our members

         19  perished, along with 60 first responders from the

         20  NYPD and the Port Authority, and more than 2,300

         21  civilians.  New York City's first responders saved

         22  others while risking their own lives.  We continue

         23  to commemorate their bravery and dedication, while

         24  mourning their loss.

         25                 In the weeks and months following 9-
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          2  11, our members worked tirelessly at the site, among

          3  the debris and the dust resulting from the towers'

          4  collapse.  Their rescue and recovery efforts

          5  continued through May of 2002.  During that time,

          6  FDNY workers experienced more exposure at the World

          7  Trade Center site than any other group of workers.

          8  The physical and emotional toll of our members has

          9  been thoroughly documented.

         10                 BHS medical staff has been dedicated

         11  to ensuring that our members are regularly

         12  evaluated, with special attention to those members

         13  who continue to experience the adverse effects of 9

         14  11.  In the days following 9- 11, virtually our

         15  entire workforce worked at the World Trade Center

         16  site.  More than 11,000 firefighters  and fire

         17  officers, as well as over 3,000 EMTs and paramedics

         18  took part in the rescue, recovery, and fire

         19  suppression efforts.  Our workforce was exposed to

         20  the physical hazards of the site, as well as the

         21  emotional impact associated with recovery of their

         22  deceased colleagues.  For those working at the site,

         23  respiratory issues surfaced quickly.  In recognition

         24  of these symptoms, FDNY initiated the World Trade

         25  Center Medical Screening and Treatment Program, in
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          2  October of 2001, just four weeks after 9 11.  BHS

          3  partnered with the Centers for Disease Control and

          4  Prevention, as well as the National Institute of

          5  Occupational Health and Safety, to implement medical

          6  screening for the exposed FDNY first responders.

          7                 From October of 2001, through

          8  February of 2002, BHS evaluated more than 10,000 of

          9  our FDNY first responders.  Since that time, we have

         10  continued to screen both our active and retired

         11  members for a total of over 13,000 FDNY personnel.

         12  This World Trade Center Medical Monitoring Program

         13  has been federally funded, and has been a joint

         14  labor management initiative.  This FDNY program is

         15  dedicated to monitoring the health of our members,

         16  while the Mt. Sinai Consortium addresses the health

         17  issues of non- FDNY responders.  Our monitoring

         18  programs work collaboratively, partnering with

         19  NYOSH.  At this time, more than 8,000 of our FDNY

         20  members have participated in the second round of

         21  medical and mental health screening.

         22                 In the first few weeks following 9-

         23  11, the health consequences of the World Trade

         24  Center exposure became apparent, as more and more

         25  members sought medical treatment for their
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          2  respiratory symptoms.  Nearly 3,000 of our 14,000

          3  members have sought respiratory treatment since 9-

          4  11.  Thousands have been able to return to work, but

          5  more than 600 have developed permanent, disabling

          6  respiratory illnesses that have led to earlier than

          7  anticipated retirement among members in an otherwise

          8  generally healthy workforce.

          9                 In the first four years post 9- 11,

         10  we have experienced a four to five- fold increase in

         11  the number of members retiring with lung problems

         12  annually.  Since BHS performs both pre employment

         13  and annual medical exams on our members, the World

         14  Trade Center Medical Monitoring Program has been

         15  able to use the results of these exams to compare

         16  with pre- and post- 9- 11 medical data. This

         17  objective information enables us to observe patterns

         18  and changes among member.  A significantly higher

         19  number of firefighters were found to be suffering

         20  from pulmonary disorders during the year after 9- 11

         21  than those during the five year prior to 9- 11.

         22  Further, the drop in lung function directly

         23  correlated to the initial arrival time at the World

         24  Trade Center site.  On average, both symptomatic and

         25  asymptomatic FDNY responders, we found a 375
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          2  milliliter decline in pulmonary function for all of

          3  our 13,700 FDNY first responders.  And an additional

          4  75 milliliter decline if the member was present when

          5  the tower collapsed.  This pulmonary function

          6  decline is 12 times greater than the average annual

          7  decline noted for the five years prior to 9- 11.

          8                 Over the past four years, pulmonary

          9  functions for our members have either leveled off,

         10  improved, or unfortunately, for some, declined.

         11  More than 25 percent of those that we tested, with

         12  the highest exposure to the World Trade Center

         13  irritants, showed persistent airway hyperactivity,

         14  consistent with asthma or reactive airway

         15  disfunction.  In addition, more than 25 percent of

         16  our full- duty members participating in their follow

         17  up Medical Monitoring continued to report

         18  respiratory symptoms.

         19                 As I noted, thousands of our members,

         20  who were symptomatic, have improved with the

         21  treatment our doctors have provided, and have gone

         22  back to work full duty.  Certain reports in the

         23  press do not always accurately portray what our

         24  doctors have found through their tireless efforts.

         25  For example, continued reports of possible heavy
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          2  metal poisoning from World Trade Center exposures

          3  have not been supported by the science.  Everyone

          4  should know that in the time after 9- 11, we worked

          5  to analyze and protect the health of our members.

          6  We did not stop at just performing respiratory

          7  testing, we also did heavy metal screening for over

          8  13,000 members.  These results consistently found

          9  nothing clinically significant.

         10                 The Fire Department's preliminary

         11  analysis has shown no clear increase in cancer since

         12  9- 11.  Pre- and post- 9- 11, we continue to see

         13  occasional, unusual cancers that required continued

         14  carefully monitoring.  Monitoring for future

         15  illnesses that may develop, and treatment for

         16  existing conditions is imperative.  And, as I will

         17  discuss later, should be funded through federal

         18  assistance.

         19                 As our doctors and mental health

         20  professionals can attest, the need for mental health

         21  treatment was also apparent in the initial days

         22  after 9- 11, as virtually our entire workforce faced

         23  the loss of colleagues, friends, and family.  In the

         24  close knit family of the Fire Department, more than

         25  60 firehouses lost members.  Nevertheless, those who
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          2  survived continued to work in the rescue and

          3  prolonged recovery operation at the World Trade

          4  Center site.

          5                 In recognition of the mental health

          6  needs of our members, the FDNY Counseling Service

          7  Unit expanded from one site to six, and added

          8  professional staff to provide more services to our

          9  members.  Thanks to funding from FEMA and Project

         10  Liberty, as well as the American Red Cross,

         11  International Association of Firefighters, and the

         12  National Fallen Firefighters Foundation, we secured

         13  critical resources to provide counseling services to

         14  our members and their families.  Our goal was to

         15  reduce the barriers to treatment, so that members

         16  could easily be evaluated and treated in the

         17  communities where they lived.  Additionally, we sent

         18  specially trained peer counselors to the most

         19  affected firehouses, accompanied by professional

         20  counselors, to provide on- site education.  We

         21  developed enhanced educational programs for our

         22  members, to address coping strategies, and to help

         23  identify early symptoms of stress, depression, and

         24  substance abuse.

         25                 Nearly 14,000 people have sought
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          2  mental health services through the CSU since 9- 11.

          3  We developed new programs for bereaved spouses,

          4  parents, and siblings.  Now, five years later, some

          5  of these groups still meet, providing a needed link

          6  for these families.

          7                 Prior to 9- 11, the CSU treated about

          8  50 new cases a month.  Since 9- 11, the CSU has seen

          9  more than 260 new cases at its six sites each month.

         10    More than 3,500 clients annually.  The continued

         11  stream of clients into CSU indicates the need for

         12  mental health services continue strongly.

         13                 Past disasters have taught us that

         14  first responders are often reluctant to seek out

         15  counseling services, frequently putting the needs of

         16  others first.  Many times, recognition that they

         17  themselves need help may not happen for years after

         18  the event.               Over time, the funding

         19  stream for mental health services has changed, as

         20  FEMA and Department of Justice funding has ended.

         21  Currently, treatment dollars have been secured

         22  through the American Red Cross, and now, through the

         23  World Trade Center Medical Monitoring and Treatment

         24  Program, we will be allowed to continue our

         25  programs.  However, the need for continued resources
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          2  to provide these essential mental health services in

          3  the future remain.

          4                 Through the efforts of the Mayor, the

          5  City's Congressional delegation, and the continued

          6  support of our labor partners, we have secured

          7  funding to continue our monitoring and treatment of

          8  our members.  This funding is crucial to our

          9  monitoring and treatment programs, and will be used

         10  for enhanced diagnostic testing and focused

         11  treatment of FDNY first responders, addressing both

         12  physical and mental health problems related to the

         13  World Trade Center exposure.

         14                 However, our concern continues to be

         15  the long- term consequences of this exposure.  In

         16  occupational medicine, there is often a significant

         17  lag time between exposure and emerging diseases.

         18  For example, the medical affects of asbestos may not

         19  be detected for 20 to 30 years after exposure.  The

         20  actual affect of the dust and debris that rained

         21  down on our workforce on 9- 11 may not be evident

         22  for years to come.  The commitment to long- term

         23  monitoring must be made now, to protect our

         24  workforce, both active and retired.

         25                 Five years later, the FDNY continues
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          2  its mission of saving lives by fighting fires,

          3  providing pre- hospital care, and responding to

          4  other emergencies.  The treat of future terrorist

          5  attack has led to increased training, additional

          6  HAZMAT units, and enhanced protective masks and

          7  equipment.  Multi- agency drills stress the role of

          8  cooperation among agencies.  Our annual biopod drill

          9  demonstrates that our department can respond to a

         10  biological event with prophylactic medicines for on-

         11  duty personnel, so that they can continue to provide

         12  fire and pre- hospital emergency medical services to

         13  our City.

         14                 The World Trade Center Medical

         15  Monitoring Program will provide three medical exams

         16  over five years, for our exposed World Trade Center

         17  first responders.  This will provide a short term

         18  view of the health consequences of 9- 11.  It will

         19  allow us to continue to track, longitudinally, the

         20  lung functioning of our members, to see if the

         21  initial decline continues or abates.

         22                 Unfortunately, both our active FDNY

         23  members and our retirees face gaps in their medical

         24  coverage.  This means, for some, burdensome, out-

         25  of- pocket costs, to make sure they receive the
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          2  necessary medications and medical care.  For

          3  example, long- term medications needed for asthma,

          4  gastro-esophageal reflux disease, and psychiatric

          5  illness, require significant co- pays, taxing the

          6  resources of our members.  In addition, most health

          7  plans do not adequately cover mental health

          8  treatment.

          9                 Firefighters answer the call for help

         10  every day, despite the risks they face.  The 343 who

         11  perished at the World Trade Center are tragic

         12  reminders of that risk.  Concern for the long- term

         13  health and future of those who survived that tragedy

         14  remain.  Careful screening, monitoring, and

         15  treatment, of our firefighters and EMS workers

         16  remain critically important.  It is imperative that

         17  we continue the close surveillance of our workforce,

         18  both active and retired, to observe patterns of

         19  disease or illness, and to provide focused treatment

         20  to restore well being.

         21                 Early treatment of symptoms can

         22  reduce disability and restore function in many

         23  members.  Sufficient resources must be provided to

         24  continue long- term monitoring and treatment.

         25  Obtaining sufficient funding for our programs and
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          2  treatment is an issue of great concern to us.  Mayor

          3  Bloomberg and the Department will continue to work

          4  with our elected officials in Washington D.C. to

          5  fight for the long- term financial support our

          6  members need and deserve.  It is imperative that the

          7  federal government recognize its obligation to those

          8  who suffer still, as a result of the attack on our

          9  country, five years ago.

         10                 Thank you for asking me to testify

         11  this afternoon. I'd be happy to take your questions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If you would

         13  give your testimony, then we'll do questions for the

         14  panel.

         15                 DR. THORPE: Good afternoon Chair

         16  Addabbo and Members of the Committee.  I am Lorna

         17  Thorpe, Deputy Commissioner for Epidemiology at the

         18  New York City Department of Health and Mental

         19  Hygiene.  On behalf of Commissioner Frieden, I'd

         20  like to thank you for the opportunity to testify

         21  regarding the health effects from 9 11 World Trade

         22  Center tragedy.

         23                 The collapse of the towers on 9- 11

         24  was an unprecedented urban environmental disaster.

         25  In the days and months that followed, millions of
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          2  people were affected emotionally, physically, and

          3  financially.  This large and diverse population has

          4  a wide variety of individual experiences and

          5  exposures, and health impacts will vary.  While we

          6  don't know all that we would like to know, we do

          7  know that many people have experienced respiratory

          8  symptoms and psychologic distress, including post-

          9  traumatic stress disorder.

         10                 We share a commitment with others in

         11  this room to do whatever we can to understand health

         12  problems better, and to link those who are in need

         13  of care to effective services.

         14                 The Health Department World Trade

         15  Center Help Registry, which was conceived

         16  immediately after 9- 11, is the main platform to

         17  enable us to better understand possible World Trade

         18  Center- related illnesses, and also a major means of

         19  assessing for gaps in treatment needs.  More than

         20  71,000 individuals who were highly exposed to the

         21  World Trade Center disaster, voluntarily enrolled in

         22  the World Trade Center Health Registry, making it

         23  the largest effort ever in the United States to

         24  systematically monitor the health of persons exposed

         25  to a large- scale disaster.
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          2                 Since its establishment, the Registry

          3  has maintained a frequently updated resource guide

          4  of 9- 11 related resources and services, to help

          5  enrollees and the general public to locate

          6  specialized care, and learn about additional

          7  services in New York City and the surrounding areas.

          8    Enrollees are informed, through our periodic

          9  newsletters, about Registry findings, about research

         10  findings from other World Trade Center- related

         11  studies, and about important World Trade Center-

         12  related news in general.

         13                 The Registry also receives several

         14  hundred calls per month with World Trade Center-

         15  related health questions from both World Trade

         16  Center enrollees and the general public.  Our staff

         17  provide referral information to callers about

         18  specialized medical and mental health services,

         19  including LifeNet, which is a free, confidential

         20  crisis intervention referral and information

         21  service.

         22                 Baseline interviews with the more

         23  than 71,000 registrants were completed over a period

         24  of about 13 months, and we reported preliminary

         25  findings immediately upon completion of data
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          2  collection in November, 2004.  Nearly half of adult

          3  enrollees in the survey reported new or worsened

          4  sinus or nasal problems after 9- 11.  Shortness of

          5  breath, wheezing, persistent cough, and throat

          6  irritation were also common respiratory complaints.

          7  One in four enrollees reported new or worsened

          8  reflux symptoms.

          9                 Two to three years after the event,

         10  at the time of the baseline interview, registrants

         11  also reported significantly higher levels of

         12  psychologic distress than the Citywide average.

         13                 In April of this year, 2006, we also

         14  published a study of the physical and mental health

         15  conditions of more than 8,000 registrants who were

         16  survivors of the collapsed or damaged buildings on

         17  9- 11.  Many, 57 percent, of the building survivors

         18  reported new or worsening respiratory symptoms.

         19                 Presence on 9- 11 in the dust or

         20  debris cloud caused by the towers' collapse, was the

         21  strongest risk factor associated with reported

         22  physical and mental health affects.  Survivors

         23  caught in the dust cloud were twice as likely as

         24  those not caught in the dust cloud to report newly

         25  diagnosed asthma.  This study adds to the growing
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          2  body of literature suggesting that exposure to the

          3  dust cloud on 9- 11, in particular, was a major risk

          4  factor for respiratory illness.

          5                 The first follow- up study of the

          6  health of 71,000 Registry enrollees is beginning

          7  this Fall.  This survey will provide critical

          8  information on the persistence and resolution of

          9  health symptoms five years after the attacks, and

         10  would also help us determine if new symptoms or

         11  conditions have emerged.  An important goal for the

         12  follow- up survey is not only to identify persistent

         13  or new World Trade Center illness, but also to

         14  identify and help address gaps in medical treatment

         15  among participants.

         16                 Collecting follow- up information on

         17  71,000 participants is expected to take at least

         18  nine months.  We will release initial key findings

         19  as soon as possible upon completion of the survey,

         20  as we did with our baseline survey, and we will also

         21  conduct additional investigations based on updated

         22  data.

         23                 In addition, during the past year,

         24  the Health Department has led an initiative to

         25  update and disseminate clinical guidelines on how to
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          2  treat adults exposed to the World Trade Center

          3  disaster, who present with physical or mental health

          4  conditions. The guidelines update previously

          5  released DOHMH guidelines on depression, post-

          6  traumatic stress disorder, and substance abuse

          7  disorders.  As well as updating guidelines

          8  previously developed by Mt. Sinai and the FDNY

          9  physicians on the diagnosis and treatment of

         10  respiratory, gastrointestinal, and sinus diseases.

         11                 These updated guidelines were

         12  prepared in collaboration with medical experts from

         13  the World Trade Center Medical Monitoring and

         14  Treatment Programs, the New York City Fire

         15  Department, and the New York University and Bellevue

         16  Treatment Program, as well as other clinical and

         17  mental health specialists. They incorporate the

         18  latest available published information on physical

         19  health care, as well as new national guidelines on

         20  the treatment of chronic cough.  Their aim is to

         21  help physicians and other health care professionals

         22  recognize and effectively treat conditions that are

         23  possibly World Trade Center related.  They outline

         24  appropriate diagnostic treatment approaches, and

         25  they prompt health care providers to assess for
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          2  possible association to World Trade Center

          3  exposures.

          4                 Importantly, they received broad peer

          5  expert review, as well as repeated input from our

          6  labor and community advisors. And are being widely

          7  disseminated through the Health Department's City

          8  Health Information publication and website.  So that

          9  they will be available to health care providers

         10  outside of the New York City area, the guidelines

         11  are also being posted on the U.S. Department of

         12  Health and Human Services websites.  And shared also

         13  with health departments in regional states.  We

         14  expect to update the guidelines periodically, based

         15  on published scientific data.

         16                 Last week, the Mayor announced the

         17  City is funding a series of initiatives that will

         18  augment medical and mental health screening and

         19  treatment programs, including first, establishing a

         20  new World Trade Center Environmental Health Center

         21  at Bellevue Hospital; an expansion of the World

         22  Trade Center unit at the Health Department; and the

         23  creation of a Mayoral review panel to ensure maximum

         24  coordination among City agencies; and asses the

         25  sufficiency of State and federal resources to
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          2  address ongoing needs.

          3                 The Center at the Bellevue Hospital,

          4  in collaboration with NYU Medical Center, will focus

          5  on closing gaps in medical coverage, and provide

          6  evaluation and treatment for anyone exposed to the

          7  World Trade Center attacks, including people

          8  experiencing symptoms that are not covered by the

          9  existing World Trade Center medical screening

         10  programs.  They will include Lower Manhattan,

         11  Brooklyn, and residents of all boroughs; privately

         12  contracted workers; school children; and commercial

         13  building inhabitants.  It will make available

         14  comprehensive medical and mental health assessments

         15  and specialty treatment to a broader range of people

         16  with suspected World Trade Center- related health

         17  problems.  The Health Department will evaluate and

         18  monitor the screening findings as part of its active

         19  surveillance efforts.

         20                 The initiatives also included an

         21  expanded unit at the Health Department, to increase

         22  monitoring for potential World Trade Center- related

         23  health conditions; to increase communication with

         24  affected individuals, treating physicians, and the

         25  public in general; and to expand risk reduction,
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          2  linkage to care, and mental health services for

          3  those who continue to suffer after 9- 11.  These

          4  funds will be used to track, investigate, and better

          5  understand health problems potentially associated

          6  with the World Trade Center attack.  To the best

          7  extent possible, we will monitor a range of health

          8  conditions, and routinely share this information

          9  with health care providers and the public.

         10                 We will also collaborate with expert

         11  academic partners in this endeavor, to

         12  systematically look for patterns of lung diseases,

         13  cancers, and deaths, using data matches between the

         14  World Trade Center Health Registry, death records,

         15  and cancer registries, as well as to conduct

         16  clinical investigations of specific conditions.

         17                 Mental health services will be

         18  provided for people who were exposed to the World

         19  Trade Center disaster, and who continue to suffer

         20  the psychological affects of 9- 11, including

         21  uniformed services workers and their families.

         22                 The Health Department will also

         23  target risk reduction efforts to World Trade Center-

         24  affected adults, including the provision of

         25  information on environmental triggers for asthma,
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          2  and will establish and promote a clearing house for

          3  information of interest to persons concerned about

          4  World Trade Center health affects, health care

          5  providers, and the public.

          6                 Federal funding has supported the

          7  medical and mental health monitoring of treatment

          8  programs for World Trade Center responders at the

          9  New York City Fire Department, Police Department,

         10  and the various centers coordinated by the Mt. Sinai

         11  Medical Center.  Among others.  These programs

         12  provide valuable screening and treatment to

         13  thousands of rescue and recovery workers, and it

         14  must be continued.

         15                 The Health Department has partnered

         16  with, and looks forward to continued collaboration

         17  with, the Medical Monitoring Programs, and other

         18  medical and academic institutions. As well as labor

         19  and community groups, to address health concerns

         20  related to the World Trade Center disaster.

         21                 In closing, I would like to reiterate

         22  that while there is much we still do not know, there

         23  is much that we are doing to better understand and

         24  better address health conditions.  To share

         25  information with doctors, patients, and the public,
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          2  and to facilitate appropriate medical care for those

          3  who are ill.  The response involves many levels of

          4  government and private institutions.  It will also

          5  require a long- term commitment of federal and state

          6  resources.  Working together, we can make sure that

          7  all those who experience illness from the attacks on

          8  9- 11 have access to appropriate medical evaluation

          9  and treatment.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  testify.  I would be happy to answer any questions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         13  much.  I want to thank both of you for your time and

         14  testimony today.  As well as the efforts that you've

         15  made so far with this.  Again, most important issues

         16  for our City workers.  Before I get to possible

         17  questions from my colleagues, I do have a couple of

         18  questions.  And I think what I'm going to do first

         19  is just go through your testimony with questions

         20  that had come up while you were giving your

         21  testimony.  So Dr. Kelly first, if I may.

         22                 Medical staff has been  --  page one

         23   --  medical staff has been dedicated to ensuring

         24  that our members are regularly evaluated.  On what

         25  timeframe are we talking about these regular
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          2  evaluations?

          3                 DR. KELLY: Or normal pattern is that

          4  our EMS workforce comes in approximately every 12

          5  months for evaluation. And our firefighting force

          6  comes in at about every 15 month interval.  And we

          7  also do pre- candidate evaluations on people before

          8  they join our force, so we have those examinations

          9  too.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I could ask you,

         11  why the difference between 12 and 15 months?  I

         12  mean, --

         13                 DR. KELLY: The group that comes in,

         14  the EMS group is about a force of 3,000.  So it's

         15  easier to fit that group in for their medical.  Then

         16  the group of 11,000 firefighting group.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Are the workers,

         18  are those who are affected, having problem getting

         19  time off to get exams to find health  --  you know,

         20  maybe they've exhausted all their vacation time,

         21  whatever.  Are they being given any hard time

         22  regarding getting the time off that they need to get

         23  the help that they require?

         24                 DR. KELLY: Our firefighters come for

         25  their annual medicals, which are the World Trade
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          2  Center Medical Monitoring, on a day that they're

          3  working.  They come down as a company.  And there

          4  are several companies who will come down on given

          5  day.  For our EMS, they come on a day  --  and

          6  afternoon session, and they come usually on overtime

          7  during that timeframe.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, it's

          9  based on when they're working, and so therefore,

         10  you're saying the answer to my question would be

         11  basically "no", that it's your opinion they're not

         12  having problems getting the time off required.

         13                 DR. KELLY: They're paid.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.  And of

         15  course, you know, traditionally we've heard that

         16  there might be a problem between the firefighters

         17  and the EMTs.  In this case, in your opinion,

         18  they're not being treated differently.  They're

         19  being treated the same?

         20                 DR. KELLY: Do you mean coming down

         21  for their medicals?  There is no difference in how

         22  they're treated.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: On page two, you

         24  referred to your retiring rate.  Four to five fold

         25  increase.  How do you see that  --  again, I'm of

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  the opinion we're at the tip of the iceberg here.

          3  You know, five years later, and these illnesses are

          4  really starting to hit, and I only can see getting

          5  worse in the years to come, and this retirement rate

          6  do you see getting worse? Obviously, even in the

          7  short term, maybe two to three years down the line?

          8                 DR. KELLY: I think it's too soon to

          9  predict that. We've seen a continued number of

         10  people who have been seeking treatment and

         11  evaluation.  And our numbers of retirement, say for

         12  lung disability, have stayed about the same since 9-

         13  11, which was again, an increase before it.  But we

         14  still need to you know, really continue surveillance

         15  to see if that pattern changes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So over time,

         17  time will tell, obviously, the seriousness of the

         18  issue, basically.

         19                 DR. KELLY: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Page four, you

         21  had mentioned that you have treated a number of your

         22  members and they have improved, and basically have

         23  gone back to work full time.  Do you have an idea,

         24  percentage wise, how many of those treated have gone

         25  back to work?
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          2                 DR. KELLY: Again, our workforce, we

          3  would consider about 14,000.  We know we've treated

          4  approximately 3,000 for respiratory problems, of

          5  which, at this point, 600 have retired. There are

          6  maybe at this point, 100 to 200 who are off the

          7  line, who are in the process of retirement.  But in

          8  general, most of the other have gone back to work.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you believe,

         10  again, in your medical opinion, over time of

         11  treatment, these workers obviously can sustain a

         12  work  --  can sustain work and stay on work, as

         13  opposed to having to retire?

         14                 DR. KELLY: Well, our fire workforce

         15  continues to go back to a work environment with

         16  smoke and other toxins, so that there are times when

         17  people come back to us, who have returned to work,

         18  who are still having difficulties doing the work of

         19  a full duty firefighter.  So that there is a

         20  constant exposure to smoke and inhaled substances.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Dr. Kelly, on

         22  page five of your testimony, you had mentioned that

         23  the Counseling Services Unit has expanded from one

         24  site to six.  Can you give us an idea where these

         25  six sites are?  There's an accessibility issue.  We
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          2  want to make sure that obviously, our workers have

          3  full access and fair access to these sites.  Can you

          4  explain where these six sites are?

          5                 DR. KELLY: Yes.  Currently, there's a

          6  site on Staten Island.  Fort Totten, which is on the

          7  border of Queens and Nassau. Brentwood.  Orange

          8  County.  And there are two locations in Manhattan.

          9  One is in a treatment program for substance abuse, a

         10  day treatment program.  And one is a main counseling

         11  service unit. Both located in Manhattan.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Where abouts in

         13  Manhattan, if I may?

         14                 DR. KELLY: Lower Manhattan.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Both in Lower

         16  Manhattan?

         17                 Nothing in Midtown at this point?

         18  Nothing in Midtown or even Uptown?

         19                 DR. KELLY: No.  In Lower Manhattan.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And if I may get

         21  back to the time off issue.  Again it has come up to

         22  my attention  --  again, on page five, you said,

         23   "Our goal was to reduce and eliminate any barrier

         24  to treatment".  I appreciate that.  I asked if you

         25  thought that there was any problem for your members,
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          2  the workers, getting time off to go get exam  --  to

          3  be examined.  If they need time off for treatment,

          4  again, how does that work?  Similar to the time they

          5  need to get examined?

          6                 DR. KELLY: For people who come off

          7  the line because of mental health issues, normally,

          8  their treatment becomes the time while they're off

          9  the line.  We feel that many of our members  -- and

         10  we have statistics to show that many of our members

         11  have continued to get treatment while back to full

         12  duty, seeking treatment, again, in these sites.  So

         13  they have done that on their own time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: On their own

         15  time.

         16                 DR. KELLY: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So basically

         18  using up vacation and sick time.  If they had to.

         19                 DR. KELLY: If they needed to.  I

         20  mean, the firefighter group has unlimited medical.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And Doctor, you

         22  mentioned mental, obviously, mental illness.  Is

         23  that the same for physical illness?  When you

         24  answered my question, you said "mental illness". Are

         25  we talking physical as well?
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          2                 DR. KELLY: Could you just rephrase

          3  that?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: My question was

          5  referring to time off, and if they needed time off

          6  to get treated, how is that time off coming?  You

          7  know, how are you treating that time off?  In your

          8  answer, you mentioned mental illness.  Is it the

          9  same for physical illness?

         10                 DR. KELLY: Again, with the two groups

         11  that we treat in our Bureau of Health Services, are

         12  our fire force and our EMS force.  For fire, there

         13  is unlimited medical leave.  Therefore, they come

         14  down to our Bureau of Health Services, if they're

         15  off the line, while they are in a paid status on

         16  medical leave or on light duty.  For EMS, they

         17  normally come to see us while they are out either on

         18  a LoDI issue, or they come to see us on their own

         19  time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: On page five

         21  also, you had mentioned that past disasters have

         22  taught us that first responders are reluctant to

         23  come forward.  I believe that there is a large group

         24  of our City workers who are reluctant to come

         25  forward, for various reasons.  How do you suggest
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          2  that we reach out to those who do need the help, but

          3  are reluctant to come forward?

          4                 DR. KELLY: I'm very proud of the

          5  efforts we've made, again, to reduce the barriers

          6  and get people in for help, and I think our numbers

          7  strongly suggest that people have acknowledged

          8  difficulties, and have come forward for help.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any ideas on how

         10  to get to that group of people?

         11                 DR. KELLY: Well, again, we did that

         12  by making our sites available in places or

         13  communities where people live.  By bringing peer

         14  counselors to the worksite, so that people could

         15  understand the thought process of how they need to

         16  get help to help themselves.  We have set up

         17  bereavement groups for many of the families who had

         18  a primary loss.  And we've also set up an

         19  educational program.  We have a day of education for

         20  our members, and we opened up an avenue there so

         21  that people could hear about post- traumatic stress,

         22  anxiety, depression.  How to treat the symptoms, and

         23  how to access help.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And correct me

         25  if I'm wrong, Doctor.  There is also a
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          2  confidentiality issue here, correct?

          3                 DR. KELLY: Correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Correct.  Most

          5  of these sites, if not all, are confidential?

          6                 DR. KELLY: Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If a person

          8  comes forward. Lastly, as far as your testimony is

          9  concerned, on page six, you said, "Through the

         10  efforts of the Mayor, the City's Congressional

         11  delegation, and the continuous support of labor

         12  partners, we have secured funding to continue our

         13  monitoring and treatment of our members".  I'd just

         14  like to add as a footnote, you can add the City

         15  Council to that.  We wish to join the fight and to

         16  do whatever we have to do in order to get these

         17  workers monitored and treated.  So we wish to be

         18  added to the list.

         19                 DR. KELLY: We appreciate your help.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  I do have

         21  further questions, but at this point, I want to give

         22  my colleagues an opportunity to ask questions as

         23  well.  And Dr. Thorpe, we're going to get to you, so

         24  don't feel you're left out here.  Questions from

         25  Council Member Mark- Viverito.  Melissa Mark-
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          2  Viverito.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Good

          4  afternoon, and thank you for your testimony today.

          5  I just wanted to get back to the issue of the

          6  screening, Dr. Kelly.  And you know, in your

          7  testimony, on page two, you indicated that

          8  respiratory issues surface quickly for obviously,

          9  the first responders and the monitoring have begun.

         10  Toward the end of the testimony, you indicate that

         11  the monitoring program will provide three medical

         12  examinations over five years.  And I'm wondering if

         13  that is sufficient, in terms of the monitoring.  If

         14  the manifestation of the illnesses and the medical

         15  conditions surface so quickly, and potentially, over

         16  time, they may exacerbate  --  obviously, there's

         17  treatment that is being provided, but I'm wondering

         18  if more close monitoring would be called for?  Or

         19  whether there's any opportunity or would there be a

         20  need to do that?  And whether the funding that

         21  you've received to date would allow for greater

         22  monitoring, more closely.  Those individuals that

         23  you are working with.

         24                 DR. KELLY: I think we see that as a

         25  minimal monitoring.  And we feel the timeframe of
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          2  five years is just a start, because of our concern

          3  about emerging or latent illnesses, and the long-

          4  term consequences.  So that this money that been

          5  provided has given us this initial treatment or

          6  evaluation, but it needs to be expanded and

          7  continued.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: And

          9  with the funding that you're receiving now, and

         10  potentially in the future, allow for greater

         11  monitoring?  Or would it limit you?  I mean, do you

         12  think you need more money, is I guess what I'm

         13  getting at.

         14                 DR. KELLY: Absolutely.  With the

         15  current funding, we would not be able to do more

         16  than the five year period.  And even doing the five

         17  years will be difficult if we really want to do an

         18  adequate job.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         20  Because obviously, that's of interest to us in terms

         21  of understanding the need.  And obviously, we know

         22  there's a great need.  But also, I just  --

         23  touching on some of the testimony from the

         24  Department of Health,  --  and I guess, you know,

         25  there's always different monitoring systems, and
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          2  obviously, to wrap our head around what is going on

          3  is obviously, is obviously overwhelming, really.

          4  And there's a great need.  But I'm trying to figure

          5  out, with all the monitoring Department of Health is

          6  doing its monitoring, and so is the Fire Department,

          7  I'm sure the Police Department.  There's all these

          8  different monitoring mechanisms of individuals.  How

          9  do they all relate to each other?  How are you

         10  communicating, working together, to ensure that we

         11  really have a clear understanding and that also that

         12  we're being efficient in terms of the services that

         13  are being provided to address the needs that exist?

         14                 DR. KELLY: We've had a centralized

         15  Bureau of Health Services for a number of years.  So

         16  that centralized bureau has allowed us to detect

         17  symptoms early on, which is why we were able to

         18  notice the effects of the coughing and respiratory

         19  problems.  We also have information, a database,

         20  that has been collected pre- 9- 11 that allows us to

         21  see true changes in pulmonary functions and other

         22  tests.  So we're very committed to taking care of

         23  our fire force. Both active and retired.

         24                 Prior to 9- 11, without funding in

         25  the past, once you retired, you sort of fell off the
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          2  face of our evaluations.  You continued to see your

          3  own physician.  But we had no way of knowing what

          4  was going on with people's health.  Because of 9-

          5  11, and because the incredible exposures of so many

          6  of our members, so many people retired earlier than

          7  expected.  We really wanted to commit to making sure

          8  that that group of people were part of our

          9  surveillance, because you had a group of people  --

         10  at time, 1,000 to 2,000 per year  --  leaving the

         11  job, that we knew needed to be followed up.  So that

         12  we have brought back that group of people, that

         13  retiree group, so again, expand our group, and know

         14  what's going on in terms of health changes.

         15                 In developing our program, we have

         16  worked closely with other agencies and institutions,

         17  primarily, the Mt. Sinai Consortium, which is a

         18  group of several medical institutions that are

         19  taking care of both the PD as well as other first

         20  responders of other agencies.  So that we have

         21  worked closely with that group, so that our medicals

         22  are very similar, and there's a sharing of

         23  information.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Deputy

         25  Commissioner Thorpe, I guess maybe if you can also
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          2  touch on that a little bit, with regards to how does

          3  the Department of Health interact with whether is

          4  the Fire Department, or the Police Department, or

          5  the other agencies that may be monitoring

          6  individuals as well.  The other thing I would like

          7  you to touch on also is, you don't talk about at all

          8    --  you talk about the Registry, but there's no

          9  discussion about the additional cost, obviously,

         10  that that entails. I mean, that's a major massive

         11  effort, that we need to have.  But there is

         12  obviously, that must pose a burden on the agency

         13  too, with regards to cost, and it's an additional

         14  cost.  So I would like you to touch on the cost

         15  factor of this monitoring that is happening. And the

         16  Registry that is kept.  But also, how is the

         17  Department of Health interacting with the other

         18  entities as well.

         19                 DR. THORPE: As Dr. Kelly mentioned

         20  earlier, the firefighters have a direct program that

         21  monitors their health.  And it was established

         22  within the Fire Department.  The Police Department

         23  has something comparable.  So firefighters, EMS,

         24  Police, who are some of the most impacted uniformed

         25  workers, have care through their respective agencies
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          2  of various types.  There are medical monitoring  --

          3  The medical monitoring programs that were

          4  established in a consortium of clinical settings,

          5  coordinated by Mt. Sinai, was an occupational health

          6  response, with federal funding, to support

          7  monitoring, and eventually, treatment in all

          8  responders to 9- 11.  That was clinical screening,

          9  and it was eventually treatment, and this was very

         10  important for all those who were not uniformed

         11  service workers.  Construction workers, iron

         12  workers, volunteers, incredibly large group.  We

         13  estimate we put work into the estimation of the

         14  rescue and recovery workforce, including volunteers,

         15  about being about 90,000 individuals.

         16                 The World Trade Center Health

         17  Registry at the Health Department serves a  --  it's

         18  a slightly different and complimentary function.  It

         19  is, in our opinion, the Rolodex to all those who

         20  were affected, particularly  --  including rescue

         21  and recovery workers  --  but particularly those who

         22  were not.  People who were residents of Lower

         23  Manhattan.  School children.  Tower survivors.

         24  People who were in the World Trade Center Towers and

         25  evacuated.  Or any of the other damaged and
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          2  destroyed buildings. Passersby on the street, who

          3  were there at the time of the collapse, and caught

          4  in the dust cloud.  It's not an exhaustive list, or

          5  eligibility is not exhaustive for all those who were

          6  affected, but it is an incredible effort to reach

          7  target groups of those most highly affected.

          8                 The idea of the Registry is to be

          9  able to be in touch with this massive Rolodex of

         10  individuals, monitor their health broadly.  It's

         11  complimentary information on the rescue and recovery

         12  workers.  We have 30,000  --  more than 30,000

         13  rescue and recovery and volunteer workers in the

         14  Registry.  But it importantly serves the stopgap for

         15  all those who were not recovery workers.  In terms

         16  of staying in touch with them, learning about the

         17  persistence of illness, of individuals in the

         18  survey, and linking them to care through our

         19  Resource Guide, through phone calls, through a lot

         20  of communication.  And that's something we're hoping

         21  to expand with the recent Mayoral initiative, to

         22  really broaden our efforts to monitor for conditions

         23  like cancer and mortality, perhaps collaborating

         24  with the other registries as well, to do so.

         25                 In terms of costs, there is a
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          2  definite burden on the Health Department to maintain

          3  this Registry.  It is currently funded through

          4  federal funds.  We don't have long- term assurances

          5  on the commitment, either from Congressional leaders

          6  or from the Executive  --  this is a Registry that

          7  was established with Federal support, and we've made

          8  a commitment to the 71,000 individuals enrolled, to

          9  monitor them for up to 20 years.  And so, long- term

         10  funding is an issue for us.  We currently have

         11  federal funding that will support us through this

         12  follow- up survey, and maintain the Registry over

         13  the next year or two, but this is something that

         14  we're directly addressing now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: I'm

         16  sure I will have more questions coming up, but for

         17  now, that is it Chairman.  Thank you very much for

         18  answering the questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         20  Thank you Council Member Mike Nelson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Hi.  Good

         22  morning.  Good afternoon Doctors.  I was curious why

         23  it took five years for the report to come out.  Do

         24  you feel it could have possibly been done sooner?

         25                 DR. THORPE: The Clinical Guidelines?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

          3                 DR. THORPE: Yes.  I think in

          4  hindsight, we would be very  --  we would have

          5  preferred that this come out sooner.  There were

          6  challenges when the project was undertaken.  There

          7  was a challenge between getting it out quickly and

          8  getting it out with appropriate input from clinical

          9  leaders, as well as from the stakeholders from the

         10  most affected communities.  Labor unions and

         11  community residents as well.  We did put out

         12  guidelines on mental health conditions, which for

         13  the Health Department and for leaders in disaster

         14  recovery around the world  --  it was known the

         15  moment this attack occurred that would be

         16  significant and persistent mental health affects.

         17  It was not as clear I think, in the initial days

         18  after 9- 11, what the long- term physical

         19  ramifications would be, and in meetings with the

         20  occupational physicians that were treating patients,

         21  a decision was made to develop the guidelines, and

         22  to host them, and post them without scientific

         23  review, without scientific confirmation.  And to get

         24  them up as quickly as possible.  And that was easier

         25  to do at the occupational centers than at the Health

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  Department.  But we have, over the past several

          3  years, we have referred to those guidelines and

          4  referred individuals, both patients and providers,

          5  to those guidelines.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Did you think

          7  perhaps you need additional staff during that

          8  period?  It could have possibly been presented more

          9  quickly?

         10                 DR. THORPE: Yes.  Additional staff

         11  always helps. We're busy.  And additional staff

         12  would have been terrific.  That said, when we

         13  approached the clinical  --  the original authors of

         14  the guidelines, and the leading clinicians, on the

         15  concept of updating the guidelines, it still was a

         16  lengthy effort to bring consensus among the treating

         17  physicians, and among those who were reviewing the

         18  document.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay.  This is

         20  not a form of entrapment or anything like that.  I

         21  was just trying to sort all this out, so we could

         22  proceed as quickly as possible, because

         23  unfortunately, some of these people involved, who

         24  knows the time zone they're in right now.  So

         25  perhaps more money for DOH would be very helpful.
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          2                 What concerns me a lot is the gaps in

          3  medical coverage.  It doesn't seem fair, moral, or

          4  American for them to have to lay out of their

          5  pockets more money.  I know how expensive that could

          6  be, as a matter of fact.  And no finger pointing

          7  whatsoever, there's got to be a joint effort.

          8  Everybody in this room, and three levels of

          9  government.  And actually, we have to do more.

         10  Money cannot be a stumbling block.  This is a very

         11  somber hearing, I believe.  It's almost a holy

         12  grail, if you will.

         13                 We just can't send the message that

         14  we're going to be held back by money for the people.

         15    We hear one person right now coughing, which may

         16  be a direct result.  We know that has to be sorted

         17  out too.  And I just hope the survivors of Pearl

         18  Harbor fared better than some of our own people are

         19  faring.  Because I believe it's analogous.  But I

         20  believe you're working as hard as you can.  This is

         21  again, this is not finger pointing towards you. We

         22  just must sort this out, and do it as quickly as

         23  possible. Because time is evidently of the essence.

         24  Thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you
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          2  Council Member Nelson.  We've been joined by Council

          3  Member Jim Gennaro.  Jim, a pleasure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you have a

          6  question at this time?  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just a follow-

          8  up question  -- on page four in your testimony, you

          9  mention that the Mayor has created a review panel to

         10  coordinate among City agencies, and assess,

         11  obviously, how they're dealing with this issue of

         12  the City agencies.  And the sufficiency of State and

         13  federal resources. What's the timeline on that for

         14  the findings of that review panel? Do we know?

         15                 DR. THORPE: I'm not entirely sure.

         16  And we can get back to you, but as I understand,

         17  there is a commitment to have a preliminary report

         18  to the Mayor within three months.  That's my

         19  understanding.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Roughly.  Okay.

         21  Obviously, the issue of cost has come up.  It came

         22  up right after even the Governor signed the most

         23  recent bills.  And I think it is the consensus of

         24  this Committee that, you know, the City should not

         25  obviously bear the total burden of the financial
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          2  costs of again, what Council Member Mike Nelson

          3  alluded to, as the government's obligation, I

          4  believe, on all three levels, the government's

          5  obligation to take care of these workers.

          6                 And I'm going to ask you about  --

          7  both of you  -- about the optimism of getting

          8  federal dollars.  Because you know, we have Senator

          9  Clinton asking, or saying that we need $2 billion

         10  from the federal government, and then we have a

         11  Republican State Senator  --  a Republican U.S.

         12  Senator from Maine, Susan Collins, who chairs the

         13  Senate Homeland Security Committee, and she says

         14   "I'm concerned that the Clinton amendment only

         15  applies to first responders in New York City.  That

         16  doesn't seem fair to me".  That flies right in the

         17  face of what obviously, our workers are fighting

         18  with, and in addressing their issues.  I think it's

         19  fair, and 99.5, 99 percent of the people who were

         20  affected today are from our City. We did have

         21  responders come from other states, we understand

         22  that. But I believe that 99 percent are our people.

         23  And I do think it's fair.  Are you optimistic that

         24  the federal dollars that we so sorely need  --  and

         25  even State dollars  --  will come our way soon to
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          2  address these workers' issues?

          3                 DR. KELLY: You know, there was a

          4  Congressional hearing on Friday, and it certainly

          5  seemed as though the people hearing the testimony

          6  were aware of the problems that we're facing, and

          7  they appeared to have genuine concern about that.

          8                 DR. THORPE: If you had asked me that

          9  question a year ago, I think I would have been a

         10  little more concerned.  One thing that has allowed

         11  us to I think make some progress in communication

         12  with our federal partners has been the establishment

         13  of the World Trade Center czar if you will, a

         14  federal Health Affects Coordinator.  To me, we now

         15  have a vehicle to speak more from individual

         16  programs, and also collectively about the gaps in

         17  care. And I'm hopeful that that is having an effect

         18  in educating Washington.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It is going to

         20  take a concerted effort.  I do believe that the

         21  further we remove ourselves from the date of 9- 11,

         22  the harder it is to get this funding.  But yet, the

         23  ill affects are obviously going to be fresh in our

         24  mind as the time goes on.  So I think it's going to

         25  take a concerted effort to get the federal dollars
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          2  that we need, and we so deserve as well.

          3                 You had mentioned the federal czar.

          4  Do you think that it would be helpful that the

          5  federal government take a more active role in

          6  forming, say, a commission to oversee all the

          7  dialogue that's going on.  We have, you know, Mt.

          8  Sinai doing their thing, and Bellevue doing their

          9  thing, and obviously, union representatives doing

         10  their thing for their members, the agencies doing

         11   --  our City agencies doing their thing.  But do

         12  you think it would be helpful that we create a more

         13  definitive federal commission to oversee everything?

         14    Get everyone in a cohesive plan, so we can go

         15  forward together on this issue?

         16                 DR. THORPE: It's my understanding

         17  that the federal czar was established in March, and

         18  two weeks ago, there was an announcement that he was

         19  going to be augmented by a smaller panel of  --  or

         20  a larger panel of policy leadership, at the

         21  Executive level.  I don't remember all of the

         22  details, but I do think that the committee that's

         23  formed to focus on the policy issues has been

         24  expanding over the last couple of weeks.

         25                 DR. KELLY: Yes, I think the value of
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          2  each of the monitoring programs is that although

          3  we're looking at somewhat different patient

          4  populations, we are finding similar issues relating

          5  to both respiratory, mental health, and some of the

          6  other related World Trade Center conditions.  So

          7  really, now, the efforts have to be directed toward

          8  not only detecting problems, but treating problems,

          9  and getting help to the people who need it.

         10                 You know, more layers of government

         11  studying issues really isn't going to direct

         12  services to where they're needed. We've I think,

         13  established that there is a need, and now we have to

         14  get that treatment to the people.  And you know,

         15  that's really what has to happen at this point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree with you

         17  Doctor.  And like I said, I believe that there needs

         18  to be some type of major oversight here.  So to keep

         19  everyone on the same page, and obviously, keep the

         20  team together, to make sure that these workers get

         21  their treatment.

         22                 I mentioned the Governor's bills, and

         23  obviously, it was a major issue when he did sign the

         24  bills.  Obviously, the Mayor had his opinion in his

         25  statements.  Implementation of these bills that the
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          2  Governor had signed, what is the timeframe that you

          3  see for the implementation?  And how feasible is it

          4  going to be to implement these bills?

          5                 DR. THORPE: For the workers, I can

          6  speak more about the Workers Compensation extension

          7  of the Statute of Limitations. I think, you know,

          8  that's a challenge.  There's a limited time window

          9  that exists for people to sign up to be eligible if

         10  something were to occur.  So the challenge is to get

         11  that information out as far and wide as possible, so

         12  that workers know that they have this opportunity.

         13                 DR. KELLY: I think, again, we've been

         14  working with management and unions, working

         15  together.  We've been able to send out a message to

         16  the workforce when bills become available, or when

         17  different legislation has been made available to the

         18  workforce, that will help them, and you know, that's

         19  an important part of having the workforce understand

         20  what is  --  will be helpful, and bring treatment to

         21  people that need it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Before I get to

         23  a question from Council Member Gennaro, I have a

         24  quick follow up question.  We had mentioned issues

         25  that have been popping up.  Another issue has popped
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          2  up as obviously, the air quality at the time when

          3  Ms. Whitman had mentioned that it's okay to go out

          4  there and work.  And they actually  --  now it's

          5  debatable whether it was or not.  Was the City

          6  involved at all in that evaluation of the quality of

          7  the air at that time?  If they were involved when

          8  were you involved? And when did you know that it may

          9  not have been so safe to go out there to the site?

         10                 DR. KELLY: I think day one, when the

         11  buildings were falling, you knew it wasn't a very

         12  safe site, but you know, the people who were there

         13  were committed to continuing their work.  And our

         14  studies have shown that the greatest correlation

         15  with physical ill effects were laid to that very

         16  initial day, when you didn't need any agency to tell

         17  you about the quality of air.  You knew.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So Dr. Kelly,

         19  are you saying that you were in opposition to what

         20  Ms. Whitman had said about the quality of air?

         21                 DR. KELLY: I'm speaking from my

         22  experience at the site.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Dr. Thorpe.

         24                 DR. THORPE: Obviously, I was not here

         25  at the time, so I can't speak with a great deal of
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          2  knowledge.  But I do know that within 24 hours, the

          3  Health Department was actively at the World Trade

          4  Center site, passing out respirators and that effort

          5  grew over time, and that was in direct response to

          6  the concerns of the conditions on the pile.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: A quick footnote

          8    --  and again, I apologize to Council Member

          9  Gennaro.  But a quick footnote.  You mention

         10  respirators.  In your opinion, respirators were

         11  available, they were readily available to our

         12  workers down there?  Anyone who wanted a respirator

         13  could get one?  Anyone who wanted  --  No?  Yes?

         14                 DR. KELLY: I think there were a

         15  variety of respirators being handed out.  Some of

         16  which were inadequate to the job, and over time,

         17  that improved.

         18                 DR. THORPE: That's my understanding

         19  as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         21  Gennaro.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you Mr.

         23  Chairman. Thank you for holding this hearing.

         24                 I just have a  --  my question  --  I

         25  want to do a little follow up on what the   --  on
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          2  the Chairman's line of questioning with regard to

          3  respirators.  Was there any point at which the

          4  Department of Health issued a general advisory as to

          5  what type of respirator you know, should be worn for

          6  everyone that's working on the pile?  Did that ever

          7  happen?  Did the Health Department make an

          8  assessment of the air?  Because  --  and also, you

          9  know, those of us who have worked with respirators

         10  before, there are you know, different thicknesses to

         11  the purification cans, if you will.  Like the

         12  filters.  Some are very thin, some very thick.

         13  Depending on what it is that you want to filter out.

         14    So there's a host of different kinds of filtration

         15  devices you can fit into a respirator.  But at any

         16  point, did the Health Department assess the air and

         17  say, it is our belief that anyone working here on

         18  this pile should be wearing XYZ type of respirator,

         19  fitted with you know, ABC type of you know,

         20  filtration apparatus?  Did that ever happen?

         21                 DR. THORPE: I will follow up and

         22  confirm with you what I understand to be the case.

         23  My understanding  --  and forgive me if I have to

         24  follow up and correct this  --  is that the Health

         25  Department did meet with the Fire Department, and
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          2  did make early determinations that N95 and half-

          3  face respirators were the -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: What was that

          5  again?

          6                 DR. THORPE: N95 actually, and half-

          7  face respirators were the respirators we were trying

          8  to get to the World Trade Center site in as great

          9  quantity as possible.  But I will confirm that with

         10  you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: So your

         12  testimony today is that you don't know that any such

         13  formal advisory was ever given to the entirety of

         14  people who were working on the pile.  And as a

         15  follow up to that, the Health Department monitor  --

         16    those workers that  --  how can I say this?  Was

         17  the Health Department in the business of trying to

         18  make sure that people who were there working on the

         19  pile were wearing respirators?  It would seem that

         20  that would be a job for the Health Department to do,

         21  to make sure that City employees, and you know,

         22  those that were you know, contractors, you know,

         23  whatever, were you know, making sure that people who

         24  were breathing air were wearing the appropriate type

         25  of respirator.  Was that an endeavor that the Health
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          2  Department too on?  That's  --

          3                 DR. THORPE: I can tell you that

          4  thousands of Health Department employees spent hours

          5  around the clock handing out different  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: That's a

          7  different  -- that's not  --  it doesn't answer my

          8  question.

          9                 DR. THORPE: And the reason why I can

         10  tell you about that is because even as a CDC

         11  employee at the time, sent on assignment here,

         12  that's one of the things that I volunteered with the

         13  Health Department to do.  And I was physically out

         14  at the site, handing out respirators.  And in Staten

         15  Island, I can't  --  I was not here, and I cannot

         16  tell you the details, but if you say did the Health

         17  Department endeavor, there was an incredible

         18  endeavor.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Maybe I

         20  misspoke when I asked the question.  I mean, you

         21  know, to quote Yoda, it's like, you know, do or not

         22  do.  Like you know, there is no try.  You know. And

         23  so, that's what we're really trying to get at.  You

         24  know, was it the Health Department's you know,

         25  affirmative posture that they have some level of
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          2  responsibility in making sure that the information

          3  was disseminated to say that even if we can't

          4  provide you with the respirator, you ought to be

          5  wearing this, if you're working on that pile.  And

          6  that's you know, that's what I'm trying to gauge.

          7  The you know, extent to which the Health Department

          8  was --  had it as one of their main goals, that they

          9  were to accomplish, and how successful they were in

         10  achieving that.  But it seems as though I won't be

         11  able to get the answer to that fairly fundamental

         12  question at this hearing.  That's regrettable.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         15  Council Member Gennaro.  I know that you mentioned

         16  time is limited.  I just have a couple of questions

         17  to run through here.

         18                 We mentioned opposite goals, clearing

         19  the way for these workers to come forward and get

         20  treatment, monitored, and so forth.  Are there any

         21  legal obstacles?  I know you're not the law

         22  department, and I understand that.  That being said,

         23  do you foresee that these workers have any legal

         24  obstacles you know, them versus the City, as far as

         25  trying to get treatment?
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          2                 DR. KELLY: Not to my knowledge.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Dr. Thorpe, just

          4  reviewing your testimony, if you can elaborate a

          5  little bit on treatment.  I saw a lot of monitoring

          6  in your Department of Health report.  Can you

          7  elaborate a little bit more on what kind of

          8  treatment has been done since the workers have come

          9  forward?

         10                 DR. THORPE: Are you saying treatment

         11  in the City? Or treatment by the Health Department?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Treatment by the

         13  Health Department please.

         14                 DR. THORPE: The treatment by the

         15  Health Department that we have been undertaking has

         16  been mental health treatment.  We have been actively

         17  involved in the mental health services to all those

         18  affected, collaborating with the Counseling Services

         19  Unit at FDNY, with the Police Foundation, and POPPA

         20  a Police organization providing contracts for mental

         21  health services to a wide variety of organizations,

         22  helping to facilitate some of the federal dollars

         23  that have been made available, and most recently,

         24  the Mayoral initiative has direct funds to continue

         25  and sustaining, and augmenting services that would
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          2  otherwise soon no longer be available.  And that

          3  includes to families of uniformed services workers

          4  and the general Lower Manhattan and beyond general

          5  public.

          6                 We don't have large- scale clinics.

          7  We don't do direct care treatment.  That's our

          8  sister agency.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.  I

         10  understand.  Thank you.

         11                 Substance abuse.  And zero tolerance.

         12    Obviously, if there is a worker out there who is

         13  experiencing substance abuse, and it's been

         14  determined that it's related to the affect of 9- 11,

         15  how does that go in light of the zero tolerance

         16  policy?

         17                 DR. KELLY: Our commitment to

         18  treatment of members is not limited to World Trade

         19  Center exposure.  It's a commitment to taking care

         20  of people that have substance abuse issues.  That's

         21  been a tradition that has gone on with our

         22  Counseling Service, and our referrals to patients

         23  for inpatient and outpatient care.

         24                 Zero tolerance is an expression of

         25  the vitally important work our members do.  And that
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          2  is, when you have a firefighter, a fire officer, an

          3  EMT, who appears in public, and must fulfill a

          4  public obligation, you want to ensure that that

          5  employee is not abusing substances.  I mean, that's

          6  a commitment that we need to make as an agency to

          7  the City that we serve. People coming forward for

          8  assistance and help can get that help. Again, we've

          9  done everything possible to reduce barriers  We've

         10  made people  --  we hope we've made people

         11  understand the importance of taking care of their

         12  health.  And seeking help for substance abuse.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So substance

         14  abuse, 9- 11 related or not 9- 11 related are

         15  treated the same?

         16                 DR. KELLY: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  Do you

         18  coordinate with others?  Your dialogue with others.

         19  And what I mean by "others", others in the medical

         20  industry, Bellevue Hospital, Mt. Sinai, who may be

         21  here today.  Others meaning union representatives,

         22  the presidents of unions.   And sharing information

         23   --  not confidential information  --  but maybe

         24  medical information for their members.  Are you

         25  confident that the dialogue is where you want it to
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          2  be?  Or can we improve on the dialogue?

          3                 DR. KELLY: I think we can always make

          4  improvements. But I think there's been a real

          5  commitment by all of the involved partners to stay

          6  focused on this topic.  Currently, there's a

          7  steering committee that meets at regular intervals.

          8  That's monthly, in which the partners from Mt.

          9  Sinai, the Fire Department, both union and

         10  management, meet to discuss again, trends, problems,

         11  trying to find ways so that we can direct our

         12  services to the greatest number of people.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry Dr.

         14  Kelly.  That steering committee.  Can you just list

         15  out who comprises that steering committee again

         16  please?

         17                 DR. KELLY: It's a large table.  Mt.

         18  Sinai, which would include the members of that

         19  Consortium; that includes  --  I may leave someone

         20  out  --  Stonybook, New Jersey Rutgers; NYU

         21  Bellevue; Mt. Sinai; and Queens.  The Fire

         22  Department.  Union and management from all of these

         23  groups.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Union members

         25   --  union representatives are included in that
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          2  steering committee?

          3                 DR. KELLY: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          5                 DR. KELLY: And those are both unions

          6  for Fire/EMS, as well as some of the other trade

          7  unions in the New York City area.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And that's a

          9  good point, Dr. Kelly.  And let me just digress here

         10  for a second.  We are doing a hearing today on

         11  uniformed services.  That is not in any way to

         12  discount the work that was done by the other trades.

         13    The iron workers, and so forth.  And we may find

         14  ourselves at another hearing.  We want to do a

         15  focused hearing on uniformed services today.  But

         16  again, we will obviously acknowledge the work that

         17  was done by the other trades, with reference to 9-

         18  11.

         19                 Lastly, I mentioned in my opening

         20  statement the confidence that the worker has that

         21  they and their families will be taken care of now,

         22  and in the future.  How do we get that confidence to

         23  them?  How do we instill new workers by way of

         24  information, by way of act, treatment.  How do we

         25  instill in the workers the confidence that they can
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          2  go out, go their job, respond to another similar

          3  situation, and them and their families will be taken

          4  care of?

          5                 DR. KELLY: I think that's an

          6  important message that we send when we make sure

          7  that funding is available to take care of people who

          8  really laid down their lives on 9- 11.  The tragedy

          9  of the people we lost  --  we'll never be able to

         10  bring back those people.  But it would be even more

         11  tragic if we forgot the people who develop medical

         12  illnesses, and had mental health serious effects

         13  that were not treated or not diagnosed, because we

         14  did not have adequate funding.  And I think it's a

         15  commitment that all of us need to make.  I think

         16  what we've done through our efforts both in reaching

         17  for resources, but also publicizing and utilizing

         18  the science that we've gathered to help people

         19  understand the types of problems that we're seeing,

         20  so that we can make people aware that that

         21  commitment from our Department is there, the City,

         22  the State, and the federal government.  We owe it to

         23  the people who gave their time and effort.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I couldn't agree

         25  with you more, Doctor.  We need to do whatever we
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          2  have to do to instill that confidence, and

          3  obviously, obtain that funding that we have to, as a

          4  government that we have to do for these workers.

          5                 Again, I know your time is limited,

          6  and I want to thank you for your time and testimony

          7  today, and the opportunity to follow up.  Obviously,

          8  after this panel, we will hear from the union

          9  representatives, and there may be issues that need

         10  to be followed up.  So I'm going to appreciate the

         11  open dialogue that we may have you know, after

         12  today's hearing.  Okay?

         13                 I want to thank this panel very much

         14  for being here today.  Thank you.

         15                 Just so you know, even though this

         16  panel is leaving, the Administration is here.  We

         17  have a representative from the Mayor's

         18  Administration to stay here for the duration of the

         19  meeting, so that your issues are going to be heard.

         20  So just wanted to reiterate that.

         21                 I want to call up our second panel.

         22  And it's Robert Gottheim.  He is a staff member at

         23  Congressman Jerry Nadler's office.  And he has a

         24  statement from Congressman Nadler.

         25                 Mr. Gottheim, thank you for being
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          2  here today.  Just please state your full name, and

          3  your position.

          4                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And give your

          6  testimony please.

          7                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Good afternoon.  My

          8  name is Robert Gottheim.  I am Congressman Nadler's

          9  Director of District Relations.  First, I want to

         10  apologize that the Congressman could not be here and

         11  give this testimony himself.  Congress is in

         12  session, and he is needed to be in Washington.

         13                 I will begin?  Okay.

         14                 Thank you Chairman Addabbo and

         15  members of the Committee for this opportunity to

         16  provide testimony at the Civil Service and Labor

         17  Committee oversight hearing on access to medical

         18  care by uniformed municipal employees involved in

         19  the September 11th recovery effort.

         20                 The barbaric attacks of September

         21  11th, 2001 posed a true test of our collective and

         22  individual character. Unfortunately, the federal,

         23  State, and City governments failed the test on 9-

         24  11.

         25                 No failure is more stark that the
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          2  Environmental Protection Agency.  Instead of leading

          3  the effort to respond to the environmental

          4  catastrophe of 9- 11, the EPA told residents,

          5  workers, and school children that it was safe to

          6  return to the area, when clearly, it was not,

          7  placing these people in harm's way.  In addition to

          8  the outright deceptions, 9- 11 residents and workers

          9  have had to endure so- called cleanup plans that are

         10  totally lacking in scientific merit, and inexcusable

         11  delays that continue to endanger the health and

         12  lives of countless people.

         13                 Beginning just two days after 9- 11,

         14  with EPA Administrator Christie Todd Whitman's

         15  completely false statement, based on no empirical

         16  data, that the "air is safe to breath, and the water

         17  is safe to drink", the EPA began systematically

         18  misleading the public about the safety of the

         19  environment.  To this day, we have still not had a

         20  comprehensive indoor testing and cleanup program

         21  that is so desperately needed, and that the EPA's

         22  own Inspector General called for three years ago.

         23                 There is no doubt that people are

         24  sick from the World Trade Center contamination.

         25  Studies come out every few months that keep
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          2  demonstrating that a majority of the people exposed

          3  to 9- 11 dust and debris suffer from severe adverse

          4  health effects.  The most recent of these is the Mt.

          5  Sinai study released last week, which found  --  or

          6  maybe the week before  --  which found that 70

          7  percent of more than 9,000 first responders studied

          8  severe health problems related to their work at

          9  Ground Zero.  But this is not really news.  We have

         10  known for years that people are sick.  In fact, the

         11  Congress held hearings on this many times since

         12  2003.  And while some funds have been appropriated

         13  for first responder treatment, it is a fraction of

         14  what is needed.

         15                 It is a national disgrace that

         16  Hollywood has spent more money making and promoting

         17  a film on the World Trade Center than the federal

         18  government has set aside for the medical monitoring

         19  and treatment of our first responders.  Much less,

         20  the students, residents, workers, and tourists,

         21  whose health were affected.

         22                 The President keeps talking about the

         23  War on Terror. In an earlier war, President Lincoln

         24  spoke of society's obligation to "care for him who

         25  shall have borne the battle."
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          2  One can only conclude that the federal, State, and

          3  City government had betrayed those who have borne

          4  the battle.  The residents and workers caught in the

          5  plume on 9- 11 or still working or living in

          6  contaminated spaces, and the 40,000 first

          7  responders, the heroes of 9- 11, who worked in a

          8  highly toxic environment for weeks and months

          9  without proper protection.  Thousands of these

         10  people are now sick, and are being shown the back of

         11  the hand when they seek medical or other assistance.

         12                 But even the last few days have shown

         13  that the five year coverup is finally and rapidly

         14  breaking down.  Just the other day, Governor Pataki

         15  admitted we were mislead by the EPA.  Today,

         16  Christie Todd Whitman and former officials of the

         17  Giuliani Administration are pointing their fingers

         18  at each other.  But we can sort out the blame  --

         19  moral, political, perhaps criminal  -- later.  The

         20  important thing now is to provide comprehensive

         21  medical treatment for all those exposed to the World

         22  Trade Center's contamination.

         23                 That is why, last week, I introduced

         24  the 9- 11 Comprehensive Health Benefits Act, which

         25  would provide medical care to all those suffering
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          2  adverse health impacts from 9- 11 in a sensible,

          3  easy to access, and cost- effective manner, through

          4  the Medicare system.  This includes mental health

          5  benefits where necessary.

          6                 All costs, including premiums,

          7  deductibles, and co pays, related to their 9- 11

          8  connected illnesses, would be covered, and the

          9  benefits would provide total care.  The bill

         10  authorizes the necessary funds to cover these costs

         11  so as not to impair the solvency of the Medicare

         12  Trust Fund.

         13                 Under this bill, people will be able

         14  to use the long- established Medicare framework to

         15  see their own doctors or practically any specialists

         16  they feel necessary without having to navigate a

         17  bureaucracy designed to contest their workers'

         18  compensation claims.  The 9- 11 victims' frustrating

         19  experience with the adversarial bureaucracy of the

         20  State Workers Compensation system has shown that we

         21  need a very different approach.  There is no time

         22  limit on Medicare.  So people will be able to

         23  receive treatment 10 or 20 years down the line,

         24  should their systems (sic) persist.  Or worse,

         25  should new ones emerge.
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          2                 Medicare has a low overhead and

          3  administrative costs of only two percent.  And since

          4  it already covers over 40 million people, and

          5  routinely accepts approximately two million people a

          6  year, it can easily absorb this new population,

          7  which might eventually total 50- or 60,000 people.

          8  There is no need to reinvent the wheel, or create a

          9  new bureaucracy, or force 9- 11 victims to wait

         10  until the federal government gets its act together.

         11  All we need to do is give the 9- 11 victims

         12  immediate access to Medicare, just as we do for

         13  millions of people every year.  My bill would do

         14  just that, and I hope that the Republicans and

         15  Democrats in Congress, and the Bush Administration

         16  will support this approach.

         17                 The 9- 11 Comprehensive Health

         18  Benefits Act would also establish a federally-

         19  funded consortium of institutions, practitioners,

         20  and community- based organizations with expertise in

         21  providing outreach, screening, monitoring,

         22  treatment, and research for 9- 11 health- related

         23  conditions.  A state- of- the- art clinical facility

         24  would also be established in Lower Manhattan.

         25                 Recovering from 9- 11 is not a simply
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          2  a matter of building skyscrapers, transit hubs, and

          3  memorials.  It is about coping with the long- term

          4  health and environmental consequences of this

          5  unprecedented attack on American soil.  The

          6  terrorist attacked the United States, and the City

          7  and State of New York should not be expected to

          8  shoulder the enormous financial burden associated

          9  with providing essential health care.  Not to

         10  mention that the federal government is largely to

         11  blame for sending people back into contaminated

         12  spaces, and not enforcing occupational safety and

         13  health laws at the World Trade Center site.

         14                 Until we adequately protect the

         15  health and safety of all those still at risk from

         16  the attacks of 9- 11, we perpetrate and exacerbate

         17  the tragedy of that day.  It would be a disgrace if

         18  future historians are compelled to record that

         19  dishonest actions followed by callous inaction by

         20  the federal and local governments ultimately were

         21  responsible for more deaths than Osama bin Laden.  Thank

         22  you for this opportunity to address this Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         24  much, and please express to the Congressman that we

         25  appreciate obviously, his efforts, and the efforts
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          2  of his colleagues in Washington, and that obviously,

          3  we will do in the City Council whatever that can be

          4  done to work with our federal elected officials for

          5  the sake of the workers and their families.  So

          6  again, please express that statement to the

          7  Congressman, and I look forward to working with him

          8  in the future.  Thank you.

          9                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Absolutely.  Just one

         10  other thing I would just add.  Just as of yesterday,

         11  which isn't in my testimony, is that the Congressman

         12  and two of his colleagues, Bill Pasquerell, from New

         13  Jersey, and Congressman Anthony Weiner, from

         14  Brooklyn and Queens, have called on Attorney General

         15  Alberto Gonzalez to appoint a special prosecutor to

         16  look into Christie Todd Whitman, because he truly

         17  feels that there are criminal things that should be

         18  looked at for her statements based on no evidence

         19  whatsoever.  So that was just yesterday, and the

         20  testimony was written before that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And while I

         22  appreciate that, if somewhat indirectly, that helps

         23  our workers, I'm all for it.

         24                 Council Member Melissa Mark-

         25  Viverito.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: I

          3  don't have a question, I just wanted to  --

          4  hopefully you can send the message to mostly what

          5  the Chairman said also to the Congressman, that his

          6  leadership is very much appreciated on this issue.

          7  I think that his statement really speaks volumes,

          8  and very succinctly puts forth how many of us feel.

          9  And you know, in particular, sitting here and

         10  listening  -- that we're even having this

         11  conversation  --  you know, that we have to beg in a

         12  way, almost for assistance for those that have given

         13  their lives in this way, and that continue to be

         14  afflicted.  You know, it's just really grossly

         15  negligent on this Administration.  The level of

         16  indifference that's demonstrated, I think.  And

         17  obviously, is clearly outright incompetence as well.

         18                 So I really want to thank the

         19  Congressman for his leadership, and for the words

         20  that he spoke in here today.

         21                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Sure.  I will

         22  absolutely pass that on. And just to add, it's

         23  always interesting  --  finally, five years

         24  afterwards, it's coming out.  But for those who have

         25  been working on this for the last five years, this
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          2  is not any news at all. Maybe the news media have

          3  just finally put attention to it, and with the Mt.

          4  Sinai study, really putting it forward.  But for

          5  those who have been working on this since the few

          6  days afterwards, it's unfortunate that it took so

          7  long to finally we're actually going to hopefully

          8  see some action.  And with his bill, he says maybe

          9  it will not move in this Congress, and this

         10  Congress's term is almost up, but it's the right

         11  approach, and it's a vehicle to move the next

         12  Congress come back in January.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         14  much.  I want to again thank you for your time as

         15  well.  Regards to the Congressman.

         16                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         18                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: At this point,

         20  we're going to call up Dr. Michael Crane, from Mt.

         21  Sinai.  Doctor.  Thank you for being here today.

         22  Doctor, in reference to time, what we're going to do

         23  is, if you can summarize your statement, so that

         24  obviously, we can allow for questions and answers.

         25  That would be helpful. And we appreciate Mt. Sinai's
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          2  report, which obviously has been out there, and it

          3  was interesting reading, so to speak.  So please,

          4  Doctor, thank you very much.

          5                 DR. CRANE: So I have a green light?

          6  Okay.  Thank you very much Mr. Chairman and

          7  Committee Members for inviting us today.  My name is

          8  Dr. Michael Crane.  I am the Deputy Director of the

          9  World Trade Center Medical Monitoring Program at Mt.

         10  Sinai.  I am honored to offer the Committee a brief

         11  presentation about the program's findings.  My

         12  colleagues in the program have already published

         13  these findings in the medical literature, and shared

         14  them with the press.  And my remarks today actually

         15  reiterate the comments of my colleague, Dr. Robin

         16  Herbert before the House Committee on Government

         17  Relations, Subcommittee on National Security,

         18  Emerging Threats, and International Relations, on

         19  September 8th of this year.

         20                 The World Trade Center Medical

         21  Monitoring Program, federally funded by NYOSH and

         22  the CDC, consists of a Data and Coordination Center,

         23  and five Clinical Centers in New York City, New

         24  Jersey, and Long Island.  It is the "sister" program

         25  to the program based at the Fire Department of the
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          2  City of New York.  The program provides periodic,

          3  comprehensive clinical examinations for the World

          4  Trade Center responders in the New York, New Jersey

          5  metropolitan area and throughout the nation.  We've

          6  examined over 16,500 World Trade Center responders

          7  to date.  Our responder patients are a highly

          8  diverse group, and includes members of the building

          9  trades, law enforcement officers, utilities and

         10  communication workers, transit workers, public

         11  sector workers, health care workers, and many

         12  others.  We serve many immigrant workers.  Fourteen

         13  percent of our program's examinations have been

         14  conducted in languages other than English.  The

         15  unifying factor amongst our patients is that all

         16  rushed in to respond to the attack on our nation.

         17  They were united by their service, and now, sadly,

         18  are linked by the illnesses that they have

         19  developed.

         20                 As many of you are aware, a Tuesday

         21  ago, we released very sobering findings on the

         22  health impact of the disaster on 9,422 World Trade

         23  Center responders, who underwent medical

         24  examinations between July of 2002 and April of 2004.

         25    This study, coupled with the findings of other
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          2  studies, should leave no doubt that many World Trade

          3  Center responders are sick as a result of their

          4  work, and that they will need ongoing health

          5  monitoring and treatment, for the rest of their

          6  lives.  Of the 9,442 patients examined:

          7                 Sixty- nine percent developed new or

          8  worsened respiratory symptoms while performing World

          9  Trade Center recovery work.  And 59 percent still

         10  had symptoms at the time of their examination, as

         11  long as two and a half years after the attacks.

         12                 One third had abnormal breathing

         13  tests, and the rate of the most common abnormality,

         14  low forced vital capacity, was five times greater

         15  than the rate expected in non- smokers.

         16                 There was a very strong relationship

         17  between time of arrival at the World Trade Center

         18  site and the prevalence of symptoms and breathing

         19  test abnormalities.  Strongly confirming the

         20  relationship between World Trade Center response

         21  work and respiratory disease.  And I just might add,

         22  very similar to what Dr. Kerry Kelly just discussed

         23  with you.

         24                 Subsequent work will focus on the

         25  mental health consequences of the disaster, and on
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          2  the characterization of patterns of self- reported

          3  diseases, such as interstitial lung disease and

          4  cancers in responders.

          5                 Even before our recent study, because

          6  early on, we saw that many responders who were

          7  clinically quite ill, but lacked access to much

          8  needed specialty medical testing and treatment, at

          9  Mount Sinai, we sought and received philanthropic

         10  funding to establish the World Trade Center Health

         11  Effects Treatment Program, to make sure responders

         12  could obtain the medical care they needed. At the

         13  present time, in addition to the federally- funded

         14  monitoring program, Mount Sinai and the other

         15  clinical centers, have World Trade Center Treatment

         16  Programs that have been funded largely by the Red

         17  Cross, and other private donors.  These treatment

         18  programs have been virtual lifelines for our

         19  patients.  At the Mount Sinai Treatment Program, we

         20  see very ill, and very vulnerable workers. About

         21  half do not speak English.  About 40 percent have no

         22  health insurance.  And another 40 percent are

         23  grossly under- insured. Among patients seen in the

         24  past year, fully 84 percent are still suffering from

         25  upper respiratory illnesses such as chronic
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          2  sinusitis.  Forty- seven percent have persistent

          3  lower respiratory problems such as asthma  --  the

          4  World Trade Center cough  --  and 37 percent have

          5  persistent mental health consequences related to the

          6  World Trade Center disaster, including depression

          7  and post traumatic stress disorder.

          8                 Now, as so many World Trade Center

          9  responders have become ill, I hope they will all

         10  receive the medical and mental health care they need

         11  and deserve.  We need a comprehensive, coordinated

         12  and permanent program that will guarantee both life

         13  long medical monitoring to identify World Trade

         14  Center- related illness, and life long treatment for

         15  World Trade Center- related illnesses.  I hope our

         16  nation will repay the World Trade Center responders

         17  for the sacrifices they made by guaranteeing testing

         18  and treatment for any illness they develop as a

         19  result of their heroism.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: All right,

         21  Doctor.  Thank you very much for your testimony.  We

         22  do have some questions.  And I do appreciate your

         23  understanding our time situation.

         24                 DR. CRANE: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: But again, thank
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          2  you for being here, because this report was

          3  obviously very important.  Is this report and annual

          4  report?  Or is this going to be just you know, a

          5  report?  Because I think it's helpful for future

          6  planning that if this was an annual report, I think

          7  that would be helpful.

          8                 DR. CRANE: I can't say as to annual,

          9  but I know that, for example, this covers up to

         10  2004.  Certainly there will be subsequent

         11  installments to cover the additional time periods as

         12  we go forward.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I read your

         14  report, and on pages six and seven, you allude to a

         15  unified structure.  You made an issue of basically

         16  educating and informing workers.  And our previous

         17  panel, that was an issue.  Do you foresee that we

         18  can improve on getting a cohesive group together

         19  again, so that the workers would have a more easier

         20  time?  We could facilitate them getting the

         21  monitoring and treatment that they need?

         22                 DR. CRANE: I think you can never do

         23  too much health communication for workers who have

         24  been afflicted.  I mean, if you consider your own

         25  experience when you go to the doctor's office with
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          2  your child, and there's something wrong, literally

          3  half the time, you can't remember half of what the

          4  doctor said.  I'm a father.  And I know I can't

          5  remember anything the pediatrician ever tells me

          6  when my daughter was sick, and I'm a doctor.  So

          7  it's a real problem, and the more communication, the

          8  more avenues, the better.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.  We

         10  have a question from Council Member Gennaro.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you Mr.

         12  Chairman. Dr. Crane, I just want to follow up on my

         13  previous line of questioning, with regard to

         14  respirators.  And is it your professional opinion

         15  that to the extent that someone who worked on the

         16   --  at the site, at the World Trade Center site,

         17  conscientiously used the respirator all the time,

         18  did that make a very significant difference in the

         19  type of illness?  Or just how they fared physically?

         20                 DR. CRANE: That's my belief,

         21  Councilman.  I'm a very strong believer in

         22  respirators and all of us at Mount Sinai share that

         23  belief.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Did you find

         25  cases where people reported to you that you know,

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  notwithstanding the fact that they were very good

          3  about wearing the respirator, they still had

          4  problems and difficulties?  Is that something that

          5  you encountered?

          6                 DR. CRANE: Well, what  --  I have to

          7  sort of clarify.  I've only been with Sinai now

          8  since Spring of this year, so a lot of this paper

          9  was written before I even was there.  But just in

         10  conversation with the patients, yes.  They

         11  appreciated the use of the respirators, and what you

         12  usually hear  --  what I've heard anyway  --  is

         13  that "You know doc, we have to talk".  So to talk

         14  effectively on a noisy site, you have to pull it

         15  back.  So even with the respirators, we you know  --

         16    we've very concerned about workers in any kind of

         17  environment like that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

         19  Thank you Dr. Crane.

         20                 DR. CRANE: Thank you sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         22  Council Member Gennaro.  Question.  Earlier, the

         23  Administration was first, and they mentioned this.

         24  The dialogue they have amongst other City agencies,

         25  amongst the union representatives, and again, you're
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          2  part of the steering committee  --  the big table.

          3                 DR. CRANE: The big table.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How critical is

          5  that?  How critical is it that uniformly, and we

          6  coordinate this  --  and I alluded to maybe possibly

          7  a federal oversight commission.  How critical is

          8  that, that we're all sitting on the same page, in

          9  order to improve what we're already doing for the

         10  treatment of these ill effects of 9- 11?

         11                 DR. CRANE: It's absolutely critical.

         12  Personally, I would be lost without the steering

         13  committee.  The support of the folks in the unions.

         14  The guidance to me as a relatively new physician for

         15  Mount Sinai.  I couldn't do without it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In your opinion,

         17  how is it as it exists today?  Because we'd like to

         18  improve it, but how does it exist today?  Are you

         19  happy with the dialogue that's going on now?

         20                 DR. CRANE: I think we can  --  I

         21  think we can always do more.  I think the more

         22  overall discussion we have, the better it will be

         23  for all the workers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Doctor, again, I

         25  want to reiterate our gratitude to the efforts that
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          2  you've done with Mount Sinai, in respect to our

          3  workers who need the help.  Thank you very much.

          4  And I look forward  --  and this Committee looks

          5  forward to working with you in the future and Mount

          6  Sinai.

          7                 DR. CRANE: Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          9  much Doctor.  I appreciate your time and testimony.

         10                 At this point, we're going to start

         11  to call up our union representatives who are here

         12  today.  And I'm grateful for all of who have

         13  participated.  As I call you up, if you have members

         14  who would like to join you at the table, that's up

         15  to you.  And of course, after the union

         16  representatives have been all called up, any further

         17    --  anyone from the public who wishes to speak

         18  after that, of course, we will be here.  So again,

         19  if I call you up, and you want some members to come

         20  with you, by all means, bring them up.

         21                 Our first panel will be Patrick

         22  Lynch, who is from the PBA.

         23                 MR. LYNCH: Mr. Chairman, good

         24  afternoon.  Members of the Council.  I appreciate

         25  this  --  the opportunity to speak here on something
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          2  that's so important.  But before I begin my

          3  testimony, let me introduce myself as Patrick Lynch,

          4  President of the Patrolmen's Benevolent Association.

          5    To my right is Michael Murray, the General Counsel

          6  to the New York City PBA.  To his right is Chris

          7  Heinz, a New York City Police Officer, who

          8  unfortunately, is suffering from sarcoidosis from

          9  his heroic deeds on September 11th, and in the

         10  aftermath.  And also in the room with me is the

         11  Executive Board of the New York City PBA, and with

         12  them are many members, who I will ask to rise, who

         13  are true heroes of the City of New York, members who

         14  are, unfortunately, battling many of the illnesses,

         15  not all the illnesses we hear of, and will speak of

         16  today.  So I ask them to rise too and be recognized.

         17

         18                 And that's a small cross section of

         19  our members who are sick, that were able to attend

         20  here today.  Many at home suffering, and we're going

         21  to get into some of that testimony as we go.

         22                 So good afternoon Mr. Chairman, and

         23  distinguished Members of the Council.  We're here

         24  today to testify about an issue of tremendous

         25  importance to the New York City PBA and our members.
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          2  The health of New York City police officers who

          3  served this City in the aftermath of September 11,

          4  2001.

          5                 It is well documented that on

          6  September 11, 2001, and the days, weeks, and months

          7  following, New York City police officers and other

          8  first responders gave unselfishly and heroically to

          9  this great City, undertaking a rescue and recovery

         10  effort that has never been seen in this country

         11  before.

         12                 When the call went out, New York City

         13  police officers answered that call without question.

         14    As a result, this City, and even this country, was

         15  quickly put back on its feet. This is an effort we

         16  would like to see duplicated in the event another

         17  disaster of this magnitude happens, and that

         18  unfortunately, is a distinct possibility.

         19                 As a result of exposure to Ground

         20  Zero, and other sites, New York City police officers

         21  have suffered various health consequences and

         22  illnesses.  Some tragically resulting in death. But

         23  when New York City police officers put out the call

         24  that they were in need, that they were ill and

         25  suffering, and that they needed their government's
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          2  assistance, that call for help went not only

          3  unanswered, but outright rebuffed.

          4                 In the five years since September

          5  11th, government has failed the workers who were

          6  made ill in every facet of health related issues.

          7  First, the programs set up to monitor and treat New

          8  York City police officers are under- funded and

          9  woefully inadequate.  Treatment from first rate

         10  physicians versed in the nuances of September 11th

         11  illnesses is non- existent.  Other basic treatment

         12  programs take months to access.  Union welfare funds

         13  are now seriously strained, because they have

         14  shouldered the burden of paying for prescription

         15  drugs associated with 9- 11 illnesses.  Our recent

         16  retirees are paying out of pocket to satisfy

         17  substantial co payments associated with their

         18  retiree plans.

         19                 This is burden that should not be

         20  borne by our welfare funds, but more importantly,

         21  absolutely should not be borne by our sick members.

         22  All these costs must be assumed by the government,

         23  as they are obligated to do under law.

         24                 Existing monitoring programs at

         25  various agencies and hospitals are also inadequate.
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          2  They've been slow to release data, and do not

          3  utilize the very latest of diagnostic tools and

          4  procedures.  Likely, because they too are under-

          5  funded.

          6                 The Department of Health Registry is

          7  conducted by survey, and lacks any clinical

          8  diagnostic component.  It is also closed to new

          9  entrants who are becoming sick as we speak.

         10                 The work of all the programs to date

         11  seems largely confined to respiratory ailments and

         12  post- traumatic stress disorders, which are serious

         13  ailments that disable our members. However, they do

         14  not represent the full range of illnesses our

         15  members are experiencing, including such life-

         16  threatening illnesses as cancers of many types.

         17  Sarcoidosis, tumors, organ failure and removals.

         18  And other serious conditions.

         19                 Only recently, a report was released

         20  that confirmed that what we have known for some

         21  time, and common sense dictates. That New York City

         22  police officers are very sick from their response on

         23  September 11th and the aftermath.  However, the

         24  report was confined to data collected through a date

         25  in the year 2004. None of the post 2004 data was
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          2  included.  Our members, our police officers deserve

          3  better.

          4                 As a result of that shortcoming, the

          5  PBA has started its own registry, which documents a

          6  host of serious illnesses. We're going to ask also

          7  that that be entered into the record.  We have a

          8  copy here for you today.  It's done so our members

          9  can have the information to make educated medical

         10  decisions that may save their life.

         11                 These programs need to be better

         12  funded and managed, in order to do a number of

         13  things.  Employ the latest in diagnostic testing

         14  tools.  Provide for timely release of all relevant

         15  data and information.  In addition, all responders

         16  should have access to first- rate medical treatment

         17  programs, staffed by physicians trained in, and

         18  familiar with, the nuances of World Trade Center

         19  related illnesses.  All of this should be done at no

         20  cost to our member, the responder.

         21                 Finally, the existing programs, both

         22  monitoring and treatment, should be controlled by

         23  and independent overseer.  One without any vested

         24  interest other than the responders' health and well

         25  being.
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          2                 Next, the Department of Health needs

          3  to better communicate information to guide medical

          4  professionals in the care of treatment of those made

          5  ill by September 11th.  Our members have walked into

          6  their private physicians' offices and the private

          7  physicians have absolutely no idea of the special

          8  implications of September 11th exposure.  It was a

          9  failure of government that it took until August 31,

         10  2006, almost five years later  --  five full years

         11  later  --  for DOH to release treatment protocols

         12  for the medical community.  We, as responders, and

         13  as citizens and police officers, have a right to

         14  know why.  We have a right to know why it took five

         15  years to release guidelines in an epidemic you know

         16  is coming.  Why were City lawyers reviewing drafts

         17  before they went out?  How much time and delay did

         18  the lawyers' involvement cause our members' health

         19  and the release of those protocol?  Why were lawyers

         20  involved in what primarily and fundamentally is a

         21  health issue between their doctor and the patient?

         22  How, if at all, are City lawyers involved in other

         23  aspects affecting the medical treatment, diagnosis,

         24  and provision of benefits to first responders?

         25                 Also, why were no guidelines issued
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          2  for serious illnesses like emerging cancers,

          3  sarcoidosis, and other ailments? These questions

          4  should be considered by this body, and must be

          5  answered by the Mayor and others.  In that vein, we

          6  understand that certain decisions being made about

          7  the provision of benefits to sick responders are

          8  still being influenced by City attorneys.

          9                 Our view is that the Law Department

         10  should play no role in any of these issues on first

         11  responders' health and access to treatment, and

         12  other benefits should be paramount and only concern.

         13    Putting aside the legal obligation that entitles

         14  police officers to funded medical treatment and

         15  benefits for injuries and illnesses sustained in the

         16  performance of their duties, the City and country

         17  have a moral obligation to provide for those who

         18  made that call that day, and answered that call

         19  without question.  It is time that the City, State,

         20  and federal government honor that commitment.  Not

         21  with commissions.  Not with task forces.  But with

         22  actions that will save lives, like we saved lives on

         23  September 11th.

         24                 If funding is needed to honor this

         25  obligation, this Administration, every form of

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  government should be joining hands with the unions

          3  to travel to Washington, to demand that we get the

          4  funding that we deserve.  That we worked for.  That

          5  we've earned. Fully- funded and top- quality

          6  diagnosis, treatment, monitoring, and benefits need

          7  to be made available to sick responders now.  And it

          8  must start immediately, to prevent further serious

          9  illness and loss of responders' lives.

         10                 As I testified, on September 11th, a

         11  call went out to New York City police officers and

         12  others, and without question, we responded, waded

         13  through that toxic cloud, climbed onto that pile,

         14  and then climbed into that pit, and did our job.

         15  Now the City's phone is ringing.  Are they going to

         16  answer?  I sit here and I wait for more testimony

         17  from the City, State, and federal governments.  I

         18  sit here in anticipation of waiting for testimony

         19  from the Police Department, to explain to us about

         20  the treatment procedures.  The things available to

         21  New York City police officers. But I won't hold my

         22  breath.  They're not here.  They're are none. I'll

         23  answer the question before it's asked.

         24                 There's a number of things that need

         25  to be done. They're not.  Why are we asking these
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          2  questions five years later? I hear testimony as I

          3  sit here that there's no protocol or scientific

          4  evidence that says that cancers will emerge.  And

          5  that's why it takes so long for protocols.  That's

          6  ridiculous.  Common sense dictates when a human

          7  being walks through a toxic cloud, breathes in toxic

          8  vapors, dusts of any kind, that cancers come out the

          9  other end.  Why is it that the City prepares for

         10  epidemics that might come, and not for an epidemic

         11  that will come?

         12                 These questions need answers.

         13  There's many more questions, but time dictates

         14  otherwise.  I thank the Council for having these

         15  hearings to shed light on an issue.  The City is

         16  looking at this.  The federal government and State

         17  has a money issue, has a dollar and cents issue.

         18  This issue is a life and death issue.  It's been

         19  stated by the Mayor that police officers are looking

         20  for a free lunch.  My members are not looking for a

         21  free lunch.  What my members are looking for is to

         22  be able to breathe.  My members want to go home and

         23  have dinner with their children, and rear their

         24  families.  That's what they want.  We only want what

         25  we've worked for and we're entitled to.  Questions
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          2  being asked now, procedures being reviewed by

          3  attorneys, not a dollar and cents issue.  It's a

          4  life and death issue.

          5                 I thank you Mr. Chairman, and your

          6  fellow Council Members for allowing me to speak here

          7  today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you Mr.

          9  Lynch.  Thank you very much.  A couple questions

         10  before I get to my colleagues.  A couple questions I

         11  have with your testimony.  And again, looking

         12  forward to working with you for the sake of your

         13  members.  On page three, you mentioned that slow to

         14  release data  --  the agency has been slow to

         15  release data  --  obviously, this information would

         16  be helpful to you for your members as well.  The

         17  Administration was at the panel earlier, and they

         18  said that there is a steering committee, of which

         19  union representatives are involved.  Is that true,

         20  to your knowledge?  And how helpful is this kind of

         21  steering committee?

         22                 MR. LYNCH: It's absolutely helpful to

         23  get the words, but the action is too slow from it.

         24  Again, the steering committee will have discussion,

         25  the fellow members of union and labor that will sit
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          2  on that committee will ask the questions and bring

          3  up the issues.  But then, if you take that and have

          4  the attorneys look at it, we all know, many of us

          5  are in business, you understand, that should not be

          6  part of the procedure.  It should be, this needs to

          7  be done, it needs to be done now.  There's life and

          8  death involved.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So what kind of

         10  information, if you had your druthers, what kind of

         11  information would you want more readily available to

         12  you?

         13                 MR. LYNCH: What we need is the

         14  different kinds of diseases.  It's been released the

         15  different types of breathing ailments and the like

         16  that are there.  Where are the lists of cancers?

         17  Where are  --  we have members that have lost

         18  organs, have organs removed, brain tumors,

         19  melanomas.  Where is the information and where is

         20  the gathering of this information, so that New York

         21  City police officers and other first responders can

         22  make educated medical decisions with their medical

         23  professionals? That's why we had to start our

         24  registry.  There was no one keeping track of those

         25  cancers that have already surfaced.  To say that
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          2  it's going to take five years or more to get

          3  scientific information --  it reminds me of what

          4  comes up time and time again.  It was in an article

          5  today.  It reminds me of our veterans from Vietnam

          6  saying that Agent Orange is affecting them, and them

          7  being told, well there's no scientific proof.  It

          8  defies logic.  It defies logic to go onto that pile

          9   --  and many of us here and those that are sick,

         10  and others who may become sick, realize that they

         11  were breathing in toxin, but we did it knowing  --

         12  foolishly, maybe  -- that we would be taken care of.

         13    We upheld our end of the bargain. We took care of

         14  the citizens of this great City.  And undertook the

         15  largest and best heroic rescue in history.

         16                 Why now, when we put out a call?  Why

         17  now, when we are asking the questions, there's

         18  obstacles being put up. Obstacles that defy common

         19  sense.  Obstacles that are morally wrong.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: On page five,

         21  you had mentioned that both monitoring and treatment

         22  should be controlled by independent overseer.

         23  Again, earlier it was mentioned possibly a federal

         24  commission.  Is that your idea of possibly a federal

         25  commission as an independent overseer to look over
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          2  everything?

          3                 MR. LYNCH: We need someone, whether

          4  it's federal or otherwise, that has the courage to

          5  stand up, look at the evidence, look at common

          6  sense, and make the calls as they see them.  Without

          7  any vested interest in politics.  And I get elected

          8  myself. Without any politics, without any business.

          9  Without any connection other than that doctor, that

         10  patient, what's medically right, what's common

         11  sense, and what's best for the issue and nothing

         12  else.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You had

         14  mentioned on page seven about City lawyers.  And I

         15  had questioned the Administration earlier about

         16  legal obstacles.  We want to clear the way of

         17  obstacles for our workers.  Do you feel there are

         18  still legal hurdles that our workers need to jump

         19  over in order to get to the access of medical  --

         20  of quality health care that they deserve?

         21                 MR. LYNCH: I asked the question  --

         22  why five years to put out protocol?  I know the

         23  answer.  The answer is it's been reviewed by

         24  attorney upon attorney upon attorney.  Attorneys

         25  aren't doctors.  It should be just doctors coming up
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          2  with protocols that are real.  That goes across the

          3  board.  Put people under oath, ask the same

          4  question, if that's the reason it stopped, you might

          5  get a different answer.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you know if

          7  any of your members currently have legal obstacles

          8  stopping or preventing them from getting the health

          9  care?

         10                 MR. LYNCH: We know that we have

         11  presumption bills and the like.  I asked the

         12  question, how many of our members have gotten out on

         13  pre- quotas pension benefits because of their

         14  illness from September 11th?  We know that's coming

         15  down the pike, that the City will actively oppose

         16  each and every one of those.  I ask you to put the

         17  City on, ask these same questions.  I'm going to do

         18  just like they do.  I'm going to look at the

         19  numbers.  The numbers say there's obstacles and

         20  they're not doing what's right by the member.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And obviously,

         22  those obstacles that we want to get rid of,

         23  obviously.

         24                 Dialogue between you, the other  --

         25  again, the other City agencies.  Possibly those who
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          2  are again, claiming that they have successful

          3  treatment.  Are you happy with that dialogue now?

          4                 MR. LYNCH: No.  I'm absolutely not

          5  happy with that dialogue.  It's dialogue for the

          6  sake of dialogue, doesn't work. Dialogue for the

          7  sake of action works.  To find out what our concerns

          8  are, and disregard them, doesn't work.  Again, I

          9  point to --  we heard testimony from the Fire

         10  Department about the treatment, diagnosis they have.

         11    And available to their members. I asked where is

         12  it for the Police Department?  That question needs

         13  to be asked.  There is none.  Where is the Police

         14  Department keeping the data of World Trade Center-

         15  related illnesses?  Again, I'll answer.  There is

         16  none.

         17                 How can our members make an educated

         18  medical decision without that information?  How can

         19  the City of New York keep track to know what the

         20  next step for them should be, if they're not keeping

         21  track of that?  I've been dumbfounded to find out if

         22  you ask questions of New York City police officers

         23  who were on the pile, what was their role?  What was

         24  their role?  Ask someone who was covered with soot,

         25  that was carried out by a police officer.  Look at
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          2  your own pictures.  Look at your own channel. Look

          3  at Channel 74.  Watch.  See police officers of all

          4  cuts, all kinds.  All ranks, all uniforms.  White

          5  shirt, blue shirt. Dungarees and otherwise, climbing

          6  onto that pile and staying there for months and

          7  months and months.

          8                 The one complaint that came from

          9  unionized police officers during September 11th, was

         10  nothing more than "How come I can't get on the pile

         11  and how come I can't spend more time?".  They were

         12  there, they done their work.  They're sick.  Now

         13  it's time for the Administration to do their work.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We had mentioned

         15  the time- off issue.  Do any of your members have an

         16  issue getting the time that they need, away from

         17  their job, in order to get monitored, identified,

         18  treated?

         19                 MR. LYNCH: Yes, and one of the issues

         20  that's been brought up is we have the unlimited sick

         21  in the New York City Police Department.  But, with

         22  that, if you go sick from these ailments more than

         23  three times, you're made chronic sick.  If you're

         24  made chronic sick, then you're disciplined for going

         25  chronic sick. You're denied promotions, good details
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          2  and the like, so there's a Catch 22.  Fix your

          3  health.  Go get the treatment you need, if you can

          4  find it.  But if you go sick too many times, you're

          5  going to be disciplined and called chronic sick, and

          6  a malingerer from there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How do you see

          8  we address this? How do we address it?

          9                 MR. LYNCH: First off, the Police

         10  Department has to come up with some kind of way of

         11  processing and some kind of way of treating and

         12  diagnosing our members, which is not there.  Then

         13  it's quite simple.  Go on time.  Go on overtime.  Go

         14  whenever necessary. And the Department should not

         15  put up an obstacle to doing that. The City

         16  Administration is doing just that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         18  Melissa Mark Viverito.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Thank

         20  you for your testimony.

         21                 MR. LYNCH: Thank you Councilwoman.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: And

         23  you know, I have questions about the registry that

         24  you, as a PBA, are keeping.  You have an example

         25  that you gave us here.  Because you're saying that
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          2  the Police Department is not doing this.  So

          3  clearly, with regards to just the resources.  If you

          4  could speak to it, that your union is putting

          5  towards this.  The symptoms that are demonstrated

          6  here, the diagnosed illnesses, the time spent at

          7  Ground Zero, how is that information compiled?  Is

          8  it based on monitoring that you are doing of your

          9  members?  Or is it based on  --  you know, if you

         10  could speak just a little bit about the registry.

         11                 MR. LYNCH: Sure.  What we've had to

         12  do is take on the role that City government and

         13  others should be doing.  There was no place where

         14  they were collecting the data, and the question

         15  being asked or compiled, besides the breathing

         16  issues that we have, the lung ailments, of what

         17  cancers and other diseases are coming from September

         18  11th, so we had to do that.  And we're getting that

         19  directly from our members.  Interviews with out

         20  members.  We only started this a number of weeks

         21  ago, and you see there's hundreds of issues.  What

         22  we found as they call in, is that they had no place

         23  to turn.  They were literally on their couches at

         24  time getting sick,  and sicker by the day.  And no

         25  place to turn for any of the treatment or ailments.
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          2  We had to call from a member who was recently

          3  retired, who was in New Hampshire recently, who is

          4  having organs removed, had no idea where to go, or

          5  what to do.  So we had to compile this information.

          6  And the reason we're doing this is so that our

          7  members, sick or well, can know what's there, what

          8  to look for, what are symptoms coming from our

          9  members that are saying, "Before I got diagnosed

         10  with the cancer, sarcoidosis, and the like, these

         11  are the ailments I had.  These are the headaches I

         12  had before the brain tumor.  These are things to

         13  look for."  So our members can look on there, talk

         14  to each other, to find out what to look for, so then

         15  they can go to their medical professionals and say,

         16   -  and it's an education process  --  "I was there

         17  on September 11th and the aftermath, these are the

         18  things they should look for". There was no place for

         19  medical professionals or the member to look to find

         20  out these are the diseases that are coming, these

         21  are the tests to take, these are the symptoms to

         22  look for.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: So

         24  basically, this registry you're saying, is somewhat

         25  voluntary, meaning your members are calling in, and
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          2  letting you know.

          3                 MR. LYNCH: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: And

          5  the symptoms that are outlined here are ones that

          6  they have gotten diagnosed through their visits,

          7  personal visits probably to doctor?  Or are they

          8  doing this through another  --  I mean, so I'm just

          9  trying to get a sense of  --

         10                 MR. LYNCH: Sure.  It's directly from

         11  the member. Those that were diagnosed, and otherwise

         12  by doctors of the symptoms, the diseases, and the

         13  effects that they've had to their exposure and the

         14  diseases that they had.  It's coming directly from

         15  the member.  Many speaking to their private

         16  physicians.  And again, it goes back to there was no

         17  protocol for the private physicians to ask that

         18  question, when coming in, and we have men and women

         19  in their 30s and 40s that are having organs removed,

         20  cancer, sarcoidosis.  It's absurd.  And then to say

         21  there's no scientific proof.  No scientific proof.

         22  When you look in a sarcoidosis, I believe it's one

         23  in 100,000 people in the general population.  I

         24  believe we have 16 in the NYPD PBA.  Common sense?

         25  Is that evidence?  I don't know, but it certainly
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          2  should turn the lights on, and it hasn't.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Now

          4  let me ask a question, because you know, we had the

          5   --  Dr. Kelly here before, from the FDNY.  And they

          6  seem to have implemented  --  and they have

          7  federally funded  --  a real serious, rigorous  --

          8  sounds like, based on the testimony  --  of a

          9  monitoring system of the first responders.  And

         10  you're saying that was in regards to the Police

         11  Department, that's not  --  that does not exist.  So

         12  what would you attribute this discrepancy with

         13  regards to the way that the FDNY works versus the

         14  Police Department?

         15                 MR. LYNCH: Politics of terrorism,

         16  politics of September 11th, politics that don't look

         17  at we need the funding, we need all the funding we

         18  can get, to make sure all the responders -  I

         19  represent New York City police officers, so I'll

         20  speak for them.  But others as well.  Why is that

         21  funding not there?  And if there was funding, where

         22  did it go?  Was it used for other things rather than

         23  used for the setting up treatment and screening

         24  programs in the NYPD?  These are questions that need

         25  to be answered.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Right.

          3    Because I mean, obviously, you're talking about

          4  two agencies, City agencies. And one implements and

          5  yet one isn't.  So I think that's something that it

          6  would be interesting to find out more information as

          7  to why that's the case.  But I mean, this is just

          8  very frustrating. That's the least I can say.  And I

          9  want to thank those that are here, that have served.

         10    And thank you for the time that you've given, and

         11  it really pains me to see that we've been as a

         12  country, I'm going to say, and again, I always

         13  revert back primarily to the federal administration,

         14  which I think has been so negligent, but it really

         15  pains me that we are turning our backs on you.  And

         16  so, I guess you know, we need to keep raising the

         17  alarm, organize, raise the  --  and we can serve as

         18  advocates, and spokespeople.  That's what our job

         19  is, as representatives.  And to ensure that we get

         20  the monies we deserve, and that the treatment is

         21  there for those that have served us.  So thank you

         22  for your testimony.

         23                 MR. LYNCH: Council Member, thank you

         24  for asking the questions along with us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you
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          2  Council Member. Council Member Mike Nelson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you

          4  President Lynch. And your men and women here.  We

          5  said some of the same things.  I don't know if you

          6  were in the room or not.

          7                 MR. LYNCH: We surely did.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So we're on

          9  the same frequency there.  But one dangling

         10  participle I think hanging over us, connected to

         11  this was that your men and women have to go and seek

         12  health remedies, and yet, you said that if they go

         13  too many times, then there may be some disciplinary

         14  measure taken.  Is that modus operandi?

         15                 MR. LYNCH: It's oft times talked

         16  about how we have unlimited sick.  If a New York

         17  City police officer is sick, they go sick.  But if

         18  you go sick too many times, three times, you're made

         19   "chronic sick".  So if a member is having symptoms,

         20  feeling sick, goes sick, too many times, then

         21  they're disciplined.  Put on chronic sick, which

         22  then begins a whole host of different things that

         23  may affect a career.  Details and otherwise.

         24  Promotions and the like.  So if you feel sick, and

         25  then you're going for treatment and monitoring, and
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          2  you do it too many times, you're put under the

          3  chronic sick.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: There will be

          5  some members that  --   politicians included, that

          6  will take advantage of certain situations.  Rabbis,

          7  priests, reverends.  But I wouldn't -  That would be

          8  the minority.

          9                 MR. LYNCH: But more than a minority.

         10  New York City police officers are of a certain

         11  character and cut, and they go above and beyond all

         12  the time.  No one would want to get  -- people say

         13   --  the statement was made by the Mayor, we're

         14  looking for a free lunch.  Look.  That's fine in a

         15  regular time.  But when you see people you work with

         16  that are not what they used to be before September

         17  11th, when people are walking up stairs and can't

         18  breathe.  People aren't taking advantage of that.

         19                 The bigger question, the bigger

         20  problem is, why are we focusing?  Why is Mayor

         21  Bloomberg focusing on those that may try to malinger

         22  and take advantage.  And not focusing on the guy

         23  behind him, the woman behind them, that's having

         24  trouble, problems walking up the steps because they

         25  can't breathe.  Why are we not going to the
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          2  hospitals that a person with brain tumors?  Why are

          3  we not asking why is a man and woman in the 30 and

          4  40 years old, who went through the screening for the

          5  NYPD who are healthy otherwise, have their kidneys

          6  removed?  That's a better question to ask, than ask

          7  the question, is there someone in the corner with

          8  nefarious reasons?  I think that's ridiculous.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I would think

         10  in the current zikist (phonetic), you and your guys

         11  and gals would want to really  --  well, bang them

         12  up against a wall is far fetched perhaps, but really

         13  censure individuals who would take advantage of

         14  this, because they're really smacking the face of

         15  people who really are sick and deserving of

         16  everything that we can give to them.

         17                 MR. LYNCH: I would be the first one

         18  to go after someone that's taking advantage.  Bring

         19  them to me.  But what I'm going to bring to you and

         20  to others, is the members that are in this room that

         21  are sick.  I'm going to bring to you the other

         22  police officers who couldn't be here today, because

         23  they are sick. I'm going to bring to you the police

         24  officers who are out sick, and couldn't come here

         25  today because of fear of being disciplined. Those
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          2  are the people I'm going to bring.  And those

          3  numbers out number any number of a malingerer that

          4  you can bring before me.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Terrific.

          6  Glad I asked you that.

          7                 MR. LYNCH: Thank you very much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you

          9  Chair Addabbo.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         11  Council Member Nelson.

         12                 Last page of your testimony, you had

         13  mentioned, this Administration should join hands

         14  with the unions and travel to Washington to secure

         15  that funding.  That's a great suggestion.  And

         16  hopefully someday we can do that.  What do you

         17  suggest we do right after this hearing?  Seriously.

         18  What do you suggest that we collectively do in order

         19  to get what we need to get in terms of funding?  Or

         20  resources?

         21                 MR. LYNCH: These hearings here today,

         22  and the attention they're going to get is terrific.

         23  That's going to help answer some of the questions

         24  that I've asked, and you have all asked.  And we

         25  seem to be on the same page.  What should we do now?
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          2  We should rent a bus.  I'll pay.  Let's get on it,

          3  go to Washington, and get the funding.  That's what

          4  needs to be done. It's not a complicated scenario.

          5  It's a scenario of saying this is right and wrong.

          6  This is police officers who are sick.  This is a

          7  moral obligation of our government, our Department.

          8  Fill in the blank to do something.  You'll find that

          9  we'll need more buses than I can pay for, because

         10  you'll have the police officers, of course you'll

         11  have our able Council Members here as well, but

         12  you'll also see the citizens of the City on there.

         13  Because of the Daily News and others and Melissa

         14  Russo and the like, shedding light on this issue.

         15  It's on the front page.  Let's take advantage of

         16  that front page, that first story.  Let the cameras

         17  follow us.  Let the reporters follow us.  Let them

         18  walk through the halls, let's ask the questions, and

         19  see who says no.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, I want to

         21  thank you for your time here today, and again, this

         22  is definitely an issue that needs to be addressed

         23  after today.  So we look forward to working with  --

         24                 MR. LYNCH: Chairman, Council Members,

         25  thank each and every one of you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Our next panel is Peter Gorman, who

          5  is Uniformed Fire Officers Association.

          6                 MR. GORMAN: Thank you Chairman

          7  Addabbo and Members of the Committee.  I appreciate

          8  the opportunity to testify before you this

          9  afternoon.  And I know it's getting late, so I will

         10  be very brief, as I know other speakers want to say

         11  a few words as well.

         12                 I represent the Fire  --  my name is

         13  Pete Gorman, representing the Fire Officers of New

         14  York City, 2,500 members. And let me just focus on

         15   --  take a different tact.

         16                 What's happened at Mount Sinai, the

         17  report that's been released, and the report before

         18  that by Dave Presant (phonetic).  The medical

         19  evidence  --  if there was ever any doubt before,

         20  there shouldn't be any now.  But it's been a long,

         21  difficult struggle to focus attention of the

         22  problems that we know is real.  Conditions that sick

         23  and dying firefighters and police officers and

         24  others who answered the call have been living with

         25  all this time, and we still don't know the full
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          2  dimensions of the effects of the highly toxic clouds

          3  of dust at the Trade Center.

          4                 Over these past five years,  --  and

          5  Councilman Addabbo, you said you'd be partnering

          6  with the Fire Department, the Police Department.

          7  You have been partnering with us.  The Civil Service

          8  unions have come before the City Council with our

          9  plea for home rule messages to the State Legislature

         10  that signaled your approval of bills that would help

         11  the first responders and their families.  We are

         12  grateful to you, and your participation in the

         13  process that resulted in the passage of a World

         14  Trade Center Presumptive Bill in 2005, and this

         15  year, for the passage of a second bill that would

         16  provide death benefits to those who die from World

         17  Trade Center- related illnesses.

         18                 I can't leave that subject without

         19  expressing our deep disappointment with the apparent

         20  lack of sympathy for these people and their

         21  families, from the Mayor's Office.  Everything we've

         22  been able to accomplish in these last five years,

         23  was done over the Mayor's objections, and it was

         24  done with cooperation of the City Council and our

         25  legislators, and the Governor of the State of New
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          2  York.

          3                 Now, finally, the press and the

          4  public, and our elected officials have been given

          5  documented evidence from respected medical

          6  professionals that we are staring at a very serious

          7  health crisis for untold numbers of first

          8  responders. Personally, I'm optimistic that our

          9  public officials at every level of government, City,

         10  State, and federal, will address this issue with a

         11  new determination that will result in greater

         12  protection for first responders who became seriously

         13  ill, and I want to thank you in advance for your

         14  role in those efforts.

         15                 Having said that, there is something

         16  very troubling that has not been addressed to date

         17  and I hope the City Council and its leadership will

         18  investigate.  The Fire Department has hundreds of

         19  firefighters and fire officers on limited duty as a

         20  result of World Trade Center- related illnesses.

         21  The medical officers of the Fire Department,

         22  including Dr. Kelly and Dr. Presnat, have declared

         23  them unfit for active duty, and they are not

         24  permitted to return to firehouses.  Many of them

         25  have applied for disability pensions, but the
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          2  Pension Board, which is independent from the Fire

          3  Department doctors, has been reluctant to approve

          4  those applications. Instead, sending those

          5  firefighters back to their desks for another six

          6  months or a year of further testing.  For some of

          7  those sick firefighters,  --  some of those sick

          8  firefighters have been waiting for more than two

          9  years for a decision.

         10                 The problem can best be described as

         11  a dispute between the doctors.  The medical officers

         12  of the Fire Department say the firefighters are too

         13  sick to perform normal duties, and will not return

         14  them to full duty.  The doctors at the Pension Board

         15  say they're not sick enough to retire.  Those are

         16  the firefighters that are lost in limbo for the last

         17  four and a half years.  The situation is ludicrous

         18  at its face.  And we as a union, we contend that if

         19  there's any doubt between the doctors, the benefit

         20  of the doubt should go to the member, to the sick

         21  firefighter.

         22                 And we're not just talking about

         23  financial interests of sick firefighters and their

         24  families.  The general public is being held hostage

         25  here too.  A limited duty firefighter simply cannot
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          2  fight fires or answer emergency calls to heart

          3  attacks, strokes, asthma and choking incidents.  The

          4  Fire Department was operating shorthanded by as many

          5  as 467 firefighters as recently as last month.  The

          6  normal process has always been that when a

          7  firefighter is retired, a vacancy occurs that is

          8  filled by a young recruit.  On a supervisory level,

          9  when a fire officer retires, that vacancy is filled

         10  by a qualified member from eligible lists.  The

         11  time- honored process has been terribly disrupted

         12  and distorted by a bureaucracy that continues to be

         13  unfair not only to sick firefighters, but to the

         14  public we serve as well.

         15                 We are asking the City Council to use

         16  its oversight powers to inquire about this

         17  inexplicable log jam at the Fire Department Pension

         18  Board.  Perhaps if we shine a light on a bad

         19  situation that has remained a secret too long, we

         20  will have a better Fire Department to show for and

         21  its effort.

         22                 And I just want to say that I

         23  certainly commend the efforts of Dr. Kelly and Dr.

         24  Presant, who have documented and got separate

         25  funding to monitor the firefighters and to treat
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          2  them.  We do have an issue, as Pat Lynch said, we

          3  have our own members that had limited drug

          4  prescription plans, using drugs, the psychotropic

          5  drugs for mental health issues, for lung

          6  medications, and sinus medications, which is an

          7  illness that was almost unfound in firefighters and

          8  police officers before 9- 11.  We have hundreds of

          9  members with sinus conditions.  Many of them have

         10  been operated on. They don't qualify under our

         11  Presumptive Bill for pension.  And these are the

         12  lost firefighters.  We have members right how that

         13  are before the Pension Board, sometimes waiting two

         14  years before they get their case heard.  We have

         15  some members, because they're on limited duty, and

         16  that's not what they want to do, are actually

         17  returning to full duty and trying to work, while

         18  taking inhalers, which is not a safe situation.

         19                 And the tone of the hearings today,

         20  while I appreciate everyone   --  let's go down to

         21  Washington to get money --  but here in our City, we

         22  need to take care of our police officers,

         23  firefighters and other first responders.  And so

         24  far, the Presumptive bills that we've worked on, in

         25  cooperation with our brother union leaders from the
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          2  Police Department, we've been able to get that with

          3  the home rule messages.  With the Council, and by

          4  working with the State.  And the bill the Governor

          5  just signed, it's unfortunate that Mike Palladino

          6  had to have a detective die, and we had a medical

          7  examiner who did determine that that member died as

          8  a  --  from World Trade Center exposure.  And it's

          9  high time that someone told the Mayor  --  I have a

         10  lot of respect for him  --  that he says, I don't

         11  see the connection.  He said that the same day Mount

         12  Sinai medical experts said there should be no doubt.

         13    And the Mayor is still doubting it.  And I think

         14  that's a big problem.  Particularly coming from a

         15  Mayor who is spending millions of his own dollars on

         16  a Stop Smoking campaign.  Which I applaud.  And part

         17  of that campaign is the dangers of secondary smoke.

         18  Well, if we can recognize the dangers of secondary

         19  smoke, we damn well better recognize the dangers

         20  that police officers, firefighters, sanitation, so

         21  many others suffered as a result of 9 11.  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         24  Again, we'll do all the testimony, let me just take

         25  a side note, to I believe, congratulate you on your
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          2  reelection of the UFOA.  Congratulations Mr. Gordon.

          3    Patrick Bahnken.

          4                 MR. BAHNKEN: Good afternoon Chairman

          5  Addabbo and Members of the Committee.  My name is

          6  Patrick Bahnken, and I'm the President of the

          7  Uniformed EMTs and Paramedics of the New York City

          8  Fire Department.  And I am also the Chairman of the

          9  Labor Advisory Committee to the World Trade Center

         10  Health Registry.  And I have some things to say

         11  about that later on.

         12                 I want to thank you for the

         13  opportunity to testify here today.

         14                 On September 11th, thousands of lives

         15  were lost. Today, five years later, many people

         16  continue to die from these attacks.  The illnesses

         17  that we see range from cancer, respiratory

         18  illnesses, gastro-esophageal reflux, unexplained

         19  skin rashes.  And with each day, new health effects

         20  are revealed.

         21                 Studies from reputable institutions

         22  like Mount Sinai indicate that many of our first

         23  responders have lost a consider amount of lung

         24  capacity, and have likened the effect to aging the

         25  lungs 12 years.
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          2                 The effect of the toxic stew of

          3  cadmium, chromium, asbestos, lead, mercury, silica,

          4  et cetera, were either  -- continue to have our

          5  members  --  continue to have an effect on our

          6  members.

          7                 In the days and weeks following the

          8  attacks, our government constantly reassured us that

          9  the air quality was safe. Many of us had our doubts,

         10  and now, five years later, we find our suspicions

         11  are correct.  Additionally, we heard earlier today,

         12  people talk about N95, and paper surgical masks.

         13  I'm a federally certified OSHA inspector, and I'm

         14  telling you that the N95 masks, and the paper

         15  surgical masks have absolutely no effect on the fine

         16  particulate matter that we came into contact with.

         17  Those masks were about as effective in protecting

         18  our members as the former Mayor was when he ran

         19  around telling people to put them on.

         20                 It's been said, and even by Chairman

         21  Addabbo, that many of us had a choice whether to

         22  respond.  I believe we had no choice.  The public

         23  has a sacred trust in those of us firefighters, EMS

         24  personnel, police officers.  They have a sacred

         25  trust in us, that we will protect their lives and
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          2  their safety.  We take vows, we take oaths to ensure

          3  and maintain that trust, and we will not let them

          4  down.  We do not take these oaths lightly.

          5                 But rather than being met with the

          6  best assistance, the best medical assistance that

          7  the greatest nation in the world could provide,

          8  those who fell ill were instead met with a wall of

          9  denial.  People like Timothy Keller, Felix

         10  Hernandez, and Debra Reeve were left wanting for

         11  adequate and aggressive medical attention, proper

         12  medication, and economic support, while their health

         13  continued to deteriorate, and their personal lives

         14  fell into financial ruin.

         15                 We talked about  --  Dr. Kelly said

         16  if fire  --  if EMS personnel were treated like

         17  equals.  I want you to know that the dirty little

         18  secret of this Fire Department is that EMS personnel

         19    -- when you heard police officers and others talk

         20  about the burdens of unlimited sick leave  --  my

         21  guys look at those burdens and say, that would be a

         22  god send.  Because we fall under Workers

         23  Compensation.  So when a Workers Compensation claim

         24  is routinely controverted by the City, the Fire

         25  Department denies my members their line of duty
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          2  injury benefits that would give them a year and a

          3  half to recuperate, recover, or retire.  And

          4  instead, they force them to use their own personal

          5  leave banks.  And when those leave banks are dried

          6  up, that person loses their wages, their benefits,

          7  they are swept out the door and they are just left

          8  in financial ruin.  They are off the radar screen.

          9                 Bureaucratic red tape should never,

         10  ever be a cause of death.

         11                 Five years later, we are now starting

         12  to see measures put into place that will alleviate

         13  these problems for the immediate future, with

         14  regards to treatment and monitoring.  And yet, much

         15  more funding will be needed to continue these

         16  efforts for decades to come.

         17                 Another significant issue is the

         18  psychological and emotional toll that these attacks

         19  have had, and will continue to have, on our members.

         20    Today, many of the warning signs of psychological

         21  and emotional problems are met with discipline

         22  rather than treatment.  The New York City Department

         23  of Health and Mental Hygiene, in their own clinical

         24  guidelines, the City's doctors, recognize the fact

         25  that the people will self medicate through the
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          2  increased use of illegal drugs and alcohol.  Rather

          3  than address these work- related problems with

          4  compassion and treatment, the Fire Department has

          5  decided to enact a zero tolerance policy.  Simply

          6  put, if you use, and we catch you before you come to

          7  the point where you come for help, we fire you.  We

          8  jettison you from the ranks, and we sweep you off

          9  the radar screen.

         10                 When the unions objected to this type

         11  of approach, we were met with the criticism that we

         12  are just interested in protecting drunks and dope

         13  fiends.  This is simply not true.  We firmly believe

         14  that people should never be impaired when they are

         15  working.  We also believe that if people are using

         16  alcohol or illegal drugs to escape the mental

         17  anguish of the World Trade Center attacks, that they

         18  should seek help.  Where we differ from the Fire

         19  Department, is that what we do not believe that

         20  these people are expendable.  We believe that the

         21  first cause of action should be treatment of the

         22  cause.  Not elimination of the symptom through

         23  termination of employment, that only exacerbates the

         24  underlying cause.

         25                 In closing, the overall answer is
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          2  more.  More funding, more treatment for those

          3  affected, and the many more that are sure to come in

          4  the future.  We stand ready to join with the other

          5  labor leaders and the elected officials, and travel

          6  down to Washington to secure proper funding.  The

          7  World Trade Center attacks were not an attack on New

          8  York City.  They were an attack on the United

          9  States.  And the citizens of this City should not

         10  have to bear this burden alone.  That we can send

         11  hundreds of billions of dollars over to Iraq, we

         12  ought to be able to send a billion dollars to New

         13  York to treat and properly care for the men and

         14  women who stepped up on the day that this City was

         15  attacked.

         16                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         17  testify, and I'm available to answer any questions

         18  you may have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         20  much.  Just one question.  How many of your members

         21  are ill at this point, that you know of?

         22                 MR. BAHNKEN: We have about 467 cases

         23  pending before the Pension Board right now.  That's

         24  of all ranks.  And by the way, Steve Casio

         25  (phonetic) would be joining me here today, but he
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          2  did have a union meeting out in Queens.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: To your

          4  knowledge, are you happy with the monitoring that is

          5  being done within the FDNY, the agency?  Can the

          6  monitoring improve?  And really in the hope of

          7  improving treatment.

          8                 MR. BAHNKEN: We are  --  for the Fire

          9  Department, because of the $25 million we got from

         10  that federal grant, that Dr. Presant and Dr. Kelly

         11  are doing, we are very happy with the monitoring

         12  that they're doing.  We're always concerned about

         13  the funding stream, how long it will last.  I think

         14  that's the biggest question.  And Dr. Kelly alluded

         15  to the fact that treatment, and the money for

         16  treatment is another issue that we have to deal

         17  with, because our members right now are draining our

         18  welfare funds on some of these medications.  So I'm

         19  happy with the monitoring, but I think the next step

         20  is to get funding for treatment, long- term, for

         21  active and especially for retirees.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Retirees.

         23  Exactly.  Questions from Council Member Gennaro.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

         25  Thank you Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 First, I want to join the Chairman in

          3  giving you congratulations, Captain Gorman, on your

          4  reelection.  But I actually had a question for Mr.

          5  Bahnken.  You mentioned, you followed up on the

          6  respirator question.  And I had questioned the

          7  Health Department earlier about you know, what did

          8  they do, and when did they do it, regarding making

          9  an assessment of what kind of respirator would be

         10  needed, and you know, did you make an assessment

         11  that you need this kind of respirator with this kind

         12  of filter.  And they indicated that they were

         13  handing out certain kinds of respirators, and they

         14  gave me a certain number, which I think you just

         15  specified, but now, I hear from you that that wasn't

         16  a respirator at all, it was just some silly particle

         17  mask, right? Isn't that what your statement is?

         18                 MR. BAHNKEN: Yes, that is correct.

         19  And in addition to that, in the days and weeks that

         20  followed, I didn't see any respirators being

         21  provided.  It wasn't until well into the second week

         22  that I was told, as I arrived at the scene, to go

         23  down and pick up a mask that  --  a cartridge mask.

         24  And I'm told now, by other experts, that the

         25  cartridge masks that they provided us were also not
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          2  proper for what we needed.  And I would like to add

          3  to that, at no time  --  they talk about notifying

          4  people that we needed these masks, and then I've

          5  heard the conjecture that, well even if we said that

          6  they should wear their masks, they probably wouldn't

          7  have.  I can tell you that if somebody would have

          8  come up to any person here, and said, listen, here's

          9  a mask.  You need to wear it.  If you don't, you

         10  could die.  Something that simple. People would have

         11  worn those masks.  But the masks weren't there. The

         12  warnings weren't there.  And in fact, the only words

         13  that we heard from any official source came from

         14  Christine Todd Whitman. And I think that you know,

         15  we've come to learn that that's hardly the gospel.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure.  And I

         17  just want to state how you know, surprised I am that

         18  the Health Department sat there with a strange face

         19   --  with a straight face  --  and you know,

         20  characterized that what they were giving out you

         21  know, were respirators, when indeed, that was not

         22  the case at all.  And as I indicated earlier, even

         23  if you have you know, cartridge- style in a

         24  respirator, you have to have the appropriate you

         25  know, filtration device.  Because some of those
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          2  cartridges are only good for particles, others are

          3  good for you know, gaseous compounds.  And so, it

          4  was necessary to take an appropriate assessment of

          5  what was in the air, and gaseous, particles,

          6  whatever, all these various compounds.  And to have

          7  it fitted with the cartridge that was you know, up

          8  to the job of filtering out what was on the pile.

          9                 So, I want to thank you for you know,

         10  making that clarification.  And who ever is here  --

         11    who is here from the Health Department?  How is

         12  here from the Health Department? Anybody still here

         13  from the Health Department?  Just go back and tell

         14  the Health Department that it was actually

         15  disingenuous you know, for them to come, and you

         16  know, indicate that they were passing out

         17  respirators when they were really you know, nothing

         18  more than you know, ineffective masks that wouldn't

         19  help you if you were vacuuming your living room, let

         20  alone you know, working on the pile.  Thank you Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 MR. BAHNKEN: Another failure that

         23  came out of the Congressional hearings last week, is

         24  that it was brought out that there were thousands of

         25  proper masks  --  military spec masks  -- at the
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          2  Armory in Midtown.  That were available and there

          3  was never a requisition sent.

          4                 MR. GORMAN: But this morning, there

          5  was a panel discussion with the National Institute

          6  of Environmental Safety and Health, and they had

          7  people from NYOSH this morning testify.  There is

          8  another issue here, not to shift the blame away from

          9  the Health Department, but OSHA had two standards on

         10  9- 11.  They had a 100 percent enforcement at the

         11  Pentagon, and a nonenforcement policy at the World

         12  Trade Center.  I think that's something that might

         13  take federal hearings to find out.  But one of the

         14  reasons was that the City of New York, FEMA, we

         15  never went from a rescue to a recovery mode.  What

         16  you might do during rescue, when people are working

         17  frantically to save lives, police officers or

         18  firefighters, to try to save civilian lives or

         19  firefighter lives, their going to operate some way,

         20  and you might  --  it's very difficult to have 100

         21  percent enforcement.  But once you make that

         22  decision, where you're no longer in a rescue mode,

         23  there's no excuse not to have a fully applied OSHA

         24  regulation.  But they never went to that mode, and I

         25  think City Hall, and the federal authorities, and a
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          2  lot of people you can point blame at, including

          3  Christie Todd Whitman, because they never went to

          4  that mode, and OSHA, for nine months, never ever had

          5  an enforcement policy at the Trade Center, but they

          6  did at the Pentagon.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And if I

          8  could just follow up on that, when you said that  --

          9    just by way of clarification  --  when you say  --

         10    when you're talking about the mode, they didn't

         11  officially declare it a recovery mode?  It was still

         12  rescue? Is that what you're saying?

         13                 MR. GORMAN: In Oklahoma City, I think

         14  after 25 days, a determination was made, based on

         15  temperatures and a number of things, by medical

         16  people, where rescue mode stopped, and you go to

         17  recovery.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. GORMAN: And that doesn't happen.

         20  A lot of people don't realize that that never

         21  happened in the City of New York.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And what

         23  you're saying is that what didn't happen was the

         24  switch- over to the strictly a recovery effort,

         25  which would have triggered sort of like the full
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          2  compliance with safety and health and all that.  Did

          3  I say that right?

          4                 MR. GORMAN: Yes.  That's correct.

          5  And that was underscored by NYOSH this morning, when

          6  they talked at this panel this morning.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure.  And I

          8  don't mean to focus on the Health Department to the

          9   --  I don't mean to exclude federal agencies, but

         10  because we're a City entity, we can only really have

         11  the Health Department listen to us.  So that's where

         12  I've been sort of focusing.  But thank you for that.

         13    Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         15  Council Member Gennaro.  Briefly gentlemen, question

         16  to both of you.  And the issue came up previously

         17  about this.  Steering Committee  -- again,

         18  information going both ways.  You being able to give

         19  information, you being able to receive information.

         20  Are you happy with the situation that it is now?  Do

         21  you think it can improve better?  Obviously, in the

         22  future, for the betterment of your membership?  What

         23  do you think?

         24                 MR. GORMAN: Well you know, I have a

         25  lot of respect for Dr. Kelly, but the monthly
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          2  committee meetings that she talked about, I've never

          3  heard of, and I've been the President for eight

          4  years.  So  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Wait a minute.

          6  You've never been at the big table?

          7                 MR. GORMAN: No, I never have been,

          8  no.  But to be -  on the flip side, Dr. Kelly and

          9  Dr. Presant are always accessible to me and my board

         10  members to address any issue.  But I've never been

         11  part of that meeting she talked about with Mount

         12  Sinai and Bellevue and those other hospitals.

         13                 MR. BAHNKEN: I've also been the

         14  President for eight years, and although Dr. Kelly

         15  and Dr. Presant have been very accessible to me,

         16  I've never been invited to that table either.  We

         17  are represented on the Mount Sinai Medical

         18  Monitoring Committee. One of my members, my Health

         19  and Safety Chair, is a member of the steering

         20  committee.  But as far as a free flow of information

         21  back and forth, I do think that there are

         22  improvements that can be made.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Bahnken, you

         24  have roughly have about 150 members, I understand.

         25  Or ill at this time.
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          2                 MR. BAHNKEN: I have 2,000  --  oh,

          3  about approximately 150 members who are experiencing

          4  illnesses and psychological illnesses as well.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well again, to

          6  this panel, I really appreciate your time and

          7  testimony today, and look forward to working with

          8  you in the future on this issue.  Again, thank you

          9  very much.  Thank you.

         10                 Our next panel, Norman Seabrook, from

         11  the Correction Officers Benevolent Association.

         12                 Thank you very much for being here

         13  today.  If you just please state your name and give

         14  your testimony.  Thank you.

         15                 MR. SEABROOK: Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         16    My name is Norman Seabrook.  I'm the President of

         17  the New York City Correction Officers Benevolent

         18  Association.  I will be brief, because my brothers

         19  in labor, and sisters, we really, it's getting late,

         20  and we got to go.

         21                 First, let me start by saying good

         22  afternoon ladies and gentlemen.  First and foremost,

         23  I would like to thank City Council Speaker Christine

         24  Quinn, and Members of the Council for allowing this

         25  open discussion on the after- effects of 9- 11 on
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          2  the uniformed municipal workers of the City of New

          3  York.

          4                 As I said, I'm the President of the

          5  Correction Officers Benevolent Association,

          6  representing the men and women of the second largest

          7  law enforcement union in the City of New York.

          8                 Many of the men and women I represent

          9  were among the first responders who worked

         10  vigorously around the clock at Ground Zero.

         11  Correction officers, including myself, along with

         12  the Department of Corrections Support Services

         13  Division, built the temporary shelter for all

         14  volunteers, located opposite of the City's Medical

         15  Examiner's office, in Manhattan.  We removed

         16  hundreds and hundreds of victims brought from Ground

         17  Zero to the Medical Examiner's office, so that they

         18  could be identified by their loved ones.

         19                 On September 11, 2001, was supposed

         20  to be a regular day for the most part.  The Mayoral

         21  Primary was being conducted, and people were going

         22  about their normal everyday lives.  At 8:46 am, on

         23  that Tuesday morning, our lives changed forever.

         24  The North and South Towers were struck, and the

         25  aftermath began.  Over 2,000 innocent people lost
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          2  their lives.  Hundreds of thousands lost family and

          3  friends.  And millions more continue to mourn.

          4                 In the aftermath of September 11,

          5  2001, there was no blueprint to turn to, and no

          6  policies and procedures in place to direct us on

          7  what to do next.  Hundreds of brave men and women

          8  who responded to assist thousands of innocent people

          9  did not lose their lives, they gave their lives.

         10                 Thousands of men and women not only

         11  from New York, but as far away as Canada and

         12  California, and even other countries, responded and

         13  offered a helping hand.  Many of them now facing a

         14  daunting task of trying to recover themselves from

         15  what is clearly one of the most horrific diseases

         16  known to man.  It's called, "I don't know what we

         17  have".  But we know it's in our lungs, it's in our

         18  chests, it's in our blood.  But we don't know what

         19  we have.

         20                 Knowing that a first responder gave

         21  their life in an effort to save someone else, you

         22  can understand.  But watching someone who

         23  participated in Ground Zero recovery and cleanup

         24  efforts, dying right before your eyes, you cannot

         25  understand, nor accept, especially knowing that
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          2  there are medical resources available to prevent

          3  this.  All that is simply needed is allocating the

          4  necessary funds to help those individuals care for

          5  their 9- 11 health related issues.

          6                 We can continue to hold hearings that

          7  identify and address these issues.  I think it's

          8  helpful, and we should continue these discussions.

          9  But I also think that it is more important to

         10  immediately get the dollars and cents that are

         11  needed to assist not only the victims of the

         12  aftermath who are now suffering, but to assist their

         13  families as well.

         14                 Let me say that Governor George

         15  Pataki has done a very noble thing by signing

         16  legislation that secures a portion of what many

         17  first responders will need in the future.

         18                 Many of you Council Members, as well

         19  as your members of your staff, may have been

         20  affected by the air and/or the ventilation systems

         21  in your offices without even knowing.

         22                 But now, the City Council has an

         23  opportunity to write a blueprint, which we hope we

         24  may never have to use.  But a blueprint that we can

         25  turn to, if we need to in the future.
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          2                 Members of the Council, I did not

          3  bring any Correction Officers here with me to

          4  testify before you.  They have suffered enough.  I

          5  am asking that the Council once again, continues

          6  their important work, and introduces legislation as

          7  soon as possible that will help the thousands and

          8  thousands of victims.

          9                 Thank you very much for the

         10  opportunity to address you today.  And I'd be happy

         11  to answer any questions that you may have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         13  much.  And again, look forward to working with you.

         14  Let me ask you a question that I've asked

         15  previously.  This steering committee, the big table

         16  that everybody is supposed to be invited to, to give

         17  input and share information.  Are you a part of that

         18  steering committee?

         19                 MR. SEABROOK: That's a small table,

         20  because we're not on it.  I don't think there are

         21  very many unions that can say that they're on it.

         22  And I think that the bad part about it is when you

         23  sit down at a table that has been I guess put

         24  together by the same individuals that are

         25  contradicting what our members are saying, and you
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          2  don't have any union voice on it, then I don't see

          3  that as a big table.  I really see that as a small

          4  isolated table.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And so that

          6  information that is shared there, obviously would be

          7  helpful to you, no?

          8                 MR. SEABROOK: It would be very

          9  helpful.  And Mr. Chairman, let me say, I'm not

         10  going to identify the reporter, but a reporter

         11  called the union, and said that she received a

         12  complaint that the union wasn't doing enough for the

         13  first responders that worked during 9- 11 recovery

         14  at Ground Zero.  And we've done everything that we

         15  could possibly do.  And let me just state for the

         16  record, it is the City of New York's responsibility

         17  to the men and women that performed those duties.

         18  The union's responsibility, as a benevolent

         19  association, is to enhance benefits, get contracts,

         20  and do all the things that we're supposed to do.

         21  But it's ultimately the Mayor's responsibility to

         22  put forth the proper funding, task force, and

         23  everything else that is needed, so that the men and

         24  women that have given their lives and that are about

         25  to give their lives, and their families, will be
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          2  taken care of for the rest of their life.  Because

          3  we didn't ask for those planes to hit those

          4  buildings.  It hit and we did what we were supposed

          5  to do thereafter.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: True.  How many

          7  members do you know of that are ill?

          8                 MR. SEABROOK: Due to the HIPPA law,

          9  it is illegal for us to ask why are you ill.  We

         10  have hundreds, but it's illegal for us to ask why

         11  are you ill.  And until Governor Pataki recently

         12  signed that legislation, a lot of them were afraid

         13  to come forward, in fear of retaliation, based on

         14  whether it be psychological, a drug dependency,

         15  liver illnesses, chest illnesses, heart diseases,

         16  things that developed from that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You know, as

         18  time goes on, hopefully, with the implementation of

         19  the Governor's bills, we'll find out actually how

         20  many people were affected by it, correct?

         21                 MR. SEABROOK: I think you will

         22  definitely find that out throughout the City of New

         23  York.  And I think that is going to be quite

         24  surprising to not only the City, but to the country,

         25  to find out how many people were ultimately affected
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          2  by it.  And keep in mind, we don't know how far this

          3  effect takes effect on our bodies.  That's why I

          4  call it, "I don't know what it is".  God forbid that

          5  there is something so toxic that an individual, man

          6  or woman, who are participating in their

          7  relationship to have a child, something takes affect

          8  of this child.  This is something very serious that

          9  we need to take look at, and before we continue to

         10  say, it's okay, and it's just a cough, or it's just

         11  an x- ray that's needed, we need to take a look at

         12  the generation that's being born between September

         13  11th and now, to find out whether or not they have

         14  any respiratory problems that they could have

         15  inherited from the body of the mother or father.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I also want to

         17  thank you.  In your testimony, you acknowledged that

         18  we had help from other areas. You mentioned

         19  California and Canada and other countries.  But

         20  obviously, that issue is being used down in

         21  Washington to deny us possible federal dollars.

         22  Even as of today, I understand Senator Clinton's

         23  request to amend the port security legislation to

         24  add $2 billion, just to vote on that amendment, to

         25  add the $2 billion was denied.  So you'll join,
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          2  obviously, with others in saying that you know,

          3  although we appreciate the help that we got from

          4  outside of our City workforce, it's our City

          5  workforce who really you know, was the strong vast

          6  majority, 99 percent, have now had the ill effects

          7  of this 9- 11 tragedy.  Correct?

          8                 MR. SEABROOK: That is correct.  And

          9  just let me add that although I thank California and

         10  Canada, and other parts of the world, and I don't

         11  mean any disrespect when I say this, they sent ten

         12  people.  We had ten thousand.  So whatever

         13  legislation that their government puts into play,

         14  will only cover ten people and their families.

         15  Where we need the money for the men and women that

         16  did this every day, day in and day out, and did not

         17  have the luxury of going somewhere else to sleep in

         18  a hotel, or whatever, the men and women that did

         19  that job, did it for as long as their bodies allowed

         20  them to do it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, I want to

         22  thank you for your time and testimony today, and I

         23  do look forward to working with you on this issue.

         24                 MR. SEABROOK: Thank you sir.  Thank

         25  you Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Our next panel is Michael Palladino.

          5  President of Detectives Endowment Association.  I

          6  also just want to inform that public that DC37,

          7  Lillian Roberts, did submit testimony that will be

          8  incorporated into the record.  So we thank DC37.

          9                 MR. PALLADINO: Good afternoon.

         10  Before I start, I'd like to say to the Chairman, and

         11  to the other Council Members thank you very much for

         12  holding the hearings, and allowing me to participate

         13  on the behalf of New York City detectives.  And

         14  also, I'd just like to make a statement to

         15  Councilman Gennaro that your train is on the right

         16  track when you're asking questions about

         17  respirators.  And the difference between what we

         18  should have had and what we had, is the distinct

         19  difference between sickness and health, or in a

         20  detective's case, death and health.  So you're on

         21  the right track.

         22                 Let me say today that the 9- 11

         23  attack was not an attack on New York City.  It was

         24  an attack on America, and on democracy.  However,

         25  the victims of 9- 11 were in fact, New Yorkers and
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          2  the first responders.

          3                 The labor force was summoned, and

          4  they responded. Our government misled us.  The EPA

          5  lied to us when they said the air quality as safe.

          6  Our people relied on that information, and acting in

          7  good faith and filled with patriotism, first

          8  responders went to work.  Without hesitation, and

          9  with a complete disregard for their own health and

         10  safety, they helped New York City and America rise

         11  up out of the rubble, and come back to life.  Now,

         12  some of them are sick, some are disable, some have

         13  died, and others are dying.

         14                 My concern is that the rank of

         15  detective could be mostly affected.  And the reason

         16  I say that is because when 9- 11 was deemed a crime

         17  scene, the landfill and the morgue became solely a

         18  detective operation.  Additionally, our detectives

         19  did their part on the pile at Ground Zero as well.

         20  Detectives spent countless hours at the Fresh Kills

         21  Landfill, sifting through knee- deep, bubbling toxic

         22  debris, in search of evidence and body parts.  Any

         23  recovered evidence was then shipped to the morgue

         24  for detectives to analyze and for identification

         25  purposes.
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          2                 Almost immediately, detectives at the

          3  landfill experienced health issues such as upper and

          4  lower respiratory problems, chronic headaches,

          5  assorted skin disorders, and toxic levels of metals

          6  like cadmium and lead in their blood and their

          7  urine.

          8                 Shortly after that, detectives who

          9  worked long hours at Ground Zero performing rescue

         10  and recovery work, started to experience difficulty

         11  breathing, sinus problems, chronic cough, stomach

         12  disorders, and insomnia.  With each passing day, new

         13  health issues were developing, and I decided to

         14  conduct a medical survey of the 6,800 members that

         15  we had at the time in the DEA.  The results

         16  indicated that better than 400 detectives were

         17  suffering symptoms related to pulmonary, lung,

         18  sinus, skin, gastro, and psychological ailments.  In

         19  many cases, the survey disclosed that some

         20  detectives were symptomatic for multiple ailments.

         21  As the months passed, different cancers started to

         22  surface, in the throat, pancreas, liver, and blood.

         23                 The most frustrating part of this

         24  experience was that closed- minded state of denial I

         25  found with the medical division of the NYPD.  The
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          2  point of denial hinged on whether a causal

          3  relationship actually existed between the ailments

          4  being suffered and the detectives' 9- 11 related

          5  assignments.  Even the obvious cases were rejected.

          6  Detective John Walcott was suffering from acute

          7  myeloma leukemia, which is caused by a long- term

          8  exposure to benzine.  Detective Walcott, who was a

          9  healthy man pre 9- 11, had no exposure to benzine in

         10  his life, until he performed countless hours at

         11  Ground Zero, where thousands of gallons of airplane

         12  fuel was burning.  Coincidentally, the key

         13  ingredient in the airplane fuel, benzine.

         14                 Even more frustrating was the case of

         15  our deceased detective, James Zadroga.  Detective

         16  Zadroga was also a healthy young man pre 9- 11, and

         17  after 400 plus hours at Ground Zero, his health

         18  started to deteriorate rapidly.  The medical

         19  division immediately dismissed the idea that

         20  Zadroga's health problems were in fact, 9- 11

         21  related, and went as far as to tell me that Zadroga

         22  didn't really have any health problems, and his only

         23  problem was psychological  Even after a biopsy of

         24  his lung was performed and revealed glass, concrete,

         25  and other particles, I was still met with
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          2  resistance.

          3                 That denial still exists today with

          4  some elected officials.  Even though detectives

          5  Zadroga has passed away at 34 years old, and his

          6  autopsy report confirms it was 9- 11 related. For

          7  those Doubting Thomas's, could someone please give

          8  me a reasonable explanation then, how Detective

          9  Zadroga collected these particles in his lungs, if

         10  it was not at Ground Zero?

         11                 However, finally, reasonableness did

         12  prevail, and to the Department's credit, Zadroga was

         13  awarded a line of duty designation, and retired with

         14  a 9- 11 disability.  However, it came with a price.

         15  It claimed is life, and it has scarred his family

         16  forever, leaving them battered, bitter, and feeling

         17  betrayed by our City and the NYPD.

         18                 From a labor standpoint, it was quite

         19  evident that legislation was going to be necessary

         20  to overcome the denial and betrayal taking place.

         21  Today, we have two pieces of World Trade Center

         22  legislation in place that addresses the issues of

         23  disability and health.  Equally important is the

         24  message being sent to the workforce by these pieces

         25  of legislation.  Because if, and when, -   and it
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          2  probably is more like when, not if  --  this is

          3  going to happen again, our people are going to be

          4  summoned to duty again, and it must be crystal clear

          5  to them that they can go to work with confidence

          6  knowing that if their assignment causes their

          7  disability, they will be taken care of.  And if that

          8  disability should cause their death, their families

          9  will be taken care of in the form of a pension and

         10  health benefits.

         11                 But despite the legislation that has

         12  passed, despite the medical findings of Mount Sinai,

         13  and despite the Medical Examiners' report on our

         14  Detective James Zadroga, there are still elected

         15  officials in our City in denial about the health

         16  affects of 9- 11.  I say where there is denial,

         17  there is betrayal.

         18                 Also, there's a lot of finger

         19  pointing going on right now.  And I say where there

         20  is finger pointing, there is guilt.  It is glaringly

         21  evident that the EPA lied to us.  And I truly

         22  believe 9- 11 was an attack not on New York City,

         23  but an act of war.  The financial burden of securing

         24  our City from future attacks, and the cost to fund

         25  the added pensions and health care should not rest
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          2  solely on the shoulders of New York City.

          3                 Our people are truly American heroes,

          4  and they need help.  They did not hesitate on 9- 11

          5  to help.  Why is there hesitation now, when they

          6  need the help?  What happened to the government by

          7  the people and for the people?

          8                 We need to pursue funding from

          9  Washington D.C. for New Yorkers and first responders

         10  to shoulder the financial burden alone would only be

         11  victimizing these people a second time.

         12                 You know, the DEA, I tried to be

         13  extremely proactive --  as proactive as I can in our

         14  approach to the 9- 11 issues for detectives, and we

         15  have taken certain steps since 9- 11.  The first

         16  step, of course, was the medical survey we did in

         17  2002.  The second thing is what we do is, we refer

         18  our members to participate in the Mount Sinai

         19  screening program.  In fact the gentleman who sits

         20  next to me, Cecil Martinez, is a board officer, and

         21  has a seat on the Mount Sinai Medical Screening

         22  board.  And the reason Cecil is there is so we can

         23  have a good flow of information about what's

         24  happening with the health care issues, and of

         25  course, to properly represent the rank of detective.
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          2

          3                 We have also put a program together

          4  in the DEA with respect to a body scan for the inner

          5  imaging.  That was a discounted program we put

          6  together, but nevertheless, I thought it was

          7  necessary.  It's an $850 body scan, that we've

          8  negotiated down to $375, and then through a portion

          9  of the Health Benefits Fund, I can subsidize another

         10  $200 as an incentive for our detectives to get in

         11  there and get checked.  So for $175, I think our

         12  detectives can get in there and get checked.

         13  Because early detection is everything.

         14                 And I'm happy to say, thus far, we

         15  only put the program into place, I think August 1st,

         16  and we've had 300 detectives sign up.  Fifty- two of

         17  those 300 detectives have in fact some type of an

         18  issue that's being investigated further.

         19                 But those are part of the programs

         20  that we've tried to put together at the DEA to be a

         21  little proactive.

         22                 What I just want to go over with you

         23  is just a few numbers that I do have.  And the

         24  reason I think we need some federal funding here.

         25                 With respect to Mount Sinai, 2,370
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          2  detectives have been screened at Mount Sinai.

          3  Seventy percent, or almost 1,700 detectives are

          4  symptomatic for respiratory and pulmonary ailments;

          5  GERD, and other gastro issues; sinusitis; asthma;

          6  sarcoidosis; and post- traumatic stress.  With

          7  respiratory and pulmonary leading the way with those

          8  issues.

          9                 With respect to New York City

         10  detectives filing at the Medical Board for

         11  disabilities, currently to date, I've had 78

         12  detectives file for a disability.  I've had 39

         13  approved.  The approvals have been for pulmonary

         14  issues; cancers; hearing; leukemia; orthopedic

         15  issues; post- traumatic stress; and two liver cases.

         16

         17                 All told, out of that 78, 47 percent

         18  are respiratory related; six percent are hearing

         19  related; 21 percent are post traumatic stress; 10

         20  percent are orthopedic; three percent enlarged

         21  organs, like the liver; one percent renal cell

         22  carcinoma; one percent breast cancer; one percent

         23  brain cancer; one percent colon cancer; one percent

         24  sinus.

         25                 Now with respect to the Health
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          2  Benefit Fund.  If we don't get some additional

          3  funding, I can tell you the Health Benefit Funds are

          4  going to suffer financially.  Just to go over a few

          5  numbers with you with respect to the active fund.

          6  Currently, the active fund is spending about $6

          7  million a year on prescription drugs alone, for just

          8  the rank of detective.  That means I'm spending

          9  about $500,000 a month to give detectives

         10  prescription medication.  Currently, the active

         11  detectives foot about 15 percent of that bill

         12  through co- pay.  The other 85 percent is absorbed

         13  by the union.  But the numbers I'm giving you are

         14  just the union's numbers.  This is outside of the

         15  co- pays that my detectives are paying.

         16                 Now with respect to 9- 11 related

         17  issues, those medications would fall under the

         18  psychotropic and the asthmatic drugs.  Currently, or

         19  to date, we've spent a little over $700,000 for

         20  active detectives just for those two drug

         21  categories. Psychotropics and asthmatic drugs.  And

         22  I can tell you, the co- pay there is much steeper

         23  for retirees.  But for our detectives in the 85- 15

         24  program for the active ones, $1.2 million will be

         25  spent by the Detectives Endowment Association, just
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          2  for detectives on those two drug categories alone.

          3  And the members themselves  --  and this should be

          4  considered the line of duty injury  --  however,

          5  they're coming out of pocket themselves.  $200,000.

          6  So all told, the DEA, for detectives alone, will

          7  have spent $1.4 million alone, in the year of 2006,

          8  for just these two drug categories.

          9                 Now, with respect to retirees, it's

         10  quite different. And once they go from active, and

         11  then they come over to the retiree fund, and by law,

         12  these two funds are separate entities, and the funds

         13  cannot be commingled, as you know.  But these

         14  numbers are astonishing.  For retirees  --  and I

         15  have 9,500 retirees  -- the DEA is expending $12

         16  million a year in prescription drugs for our

         17  retirees.  It's costing me well over $900,000 a

         18  month to give retired detectives prescription drugs

         19                 Now with respect to their co- pays,

         20  the normal co- pay for a retired detective is a 70-

         21  30 co- pay split.  They pick up 30 percent, the DEA

         22  picks up 70 percent.  However, with respect to

         23  psychotropics and asthmatic drugs, which are the 9-

         24  11 related drugs, we couldn't possibly afford those

         25  drugs at that particular co- pay.  So these drugs
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          2  used to fall under the PICA program.  The City

          3  relinquished that, and then the unions had to take

          4  up the other half.  But co- pays for those

          5  particular drugs are a 55- 45 co pay.  That means

          6  the union picks up 55 percent, and our detectives

          7  pick up 45 percent.  Well, for the year of 2006, and

          8  estimate based on the numbers we have, for

          9  psychotropics and asthmatic drugs, the Detectives

         10  Endowment Association will lay out $1.1 million for

         11  psychotropics and asthma.  However, and this is why

         12  I say I think we need federal funding, because our

         13  people are going to be further victimized by their

         14  9- 11 related work, but my members are picking up

         15  co- pays of $900,000 a year for their psychotropic

         16  and their asthmatic drugs.  As I said, I could not

         17  afford to subsidize those at a 70- 30 co- pay.

         18                 So those are very, very important

         19  numbers.  They're very alarming numbers.  But

         20  nevertheless, they're accurate.  And that is why I

         21  echo the comments of my other labor leaders in that

         22  we need to get down to Washington D.C..  I think

         23  it's not going to happen unless we form some type of

         24  an alliance, or some type of coalition of labor

         25  leaders, and State and local elected officials.    We
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          2  need to put the denial and the finger pointing

          3  aside.  I think the Mayor should be involved in this

          4  as well.  And we need to focus on Washington D.C.,

          5  and get the funding that we need.  I think the

          6  timing is perfect right now.  It's a hot issue. We

          7  just passed the five year hump.  But I can tell you,

          8  just as everybody said, "Oh, we'll never forget,

          9  we'll never forget", shortly after this five year

         10  time period goes, they're going to forget.  But the

         11  timing is right now, the issue is hot.  Our New York

         12  delegation is on our side.  Congressman Nadler,

         13  Congressman Fosella, Congresswoman Maloney, and

         14  especially Senator Hilary Clinton.  They're on top

         15  of this issue.  We have the help we need, and we

         16  should jump on board right now with some of this

         17  legislation that's going on in Washington D.C., and

         18  get the funding that we need for the 9- 11 related

         19  health care.

         20                 I thank you for your time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Palladino,

         22  thank you very much.  The issue you brought up about

         23  out- of- pocket expenses is absolutely deplorable

         24  with regards to this issue.  And I think you speak

         25  for many and we'll make a generalized statement that
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          2  should apply to every worker who is ill, and the

          3  bottom line is not a penny should come out of their

          4  pocket for something that they did on behalf of our

          5  City and our country.  And that's going to be the

          6  ultimate goal, is how do we figure out, you know,

          7  obviously, getting the resources we need, so that no

          8  workers spend a penny out of their pocket.  So I

          9  appreciate your raising that point.

         10                 Police officers have the Registry.

         11  The firefighters have their annual monitoring, their

         12  annual exams.  And you have body scans.  I bring you

         13  back to an earlier point about uniformity. We see

         14  everybody you know, doing what's good for their

         15  membership. Do you feel it's important that we have

         16  some type of  --  it was mentioned an independent

         17  overseer.  Basically, maybe even again, a federal

         18  commission that overlooks and oversees everyone so

         19  that information that everyone is doing whether it

         20  be body scans, Registry, or monitoring, is all

         21  shared amongst each other, in an effort to improve

         22  informational you know, information going either

         23  way, or ultimately, treatment?

         24                 MR. PALLADINO: Well, I would say

         25   "yes" to that question.  Uniformity, of course, is
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          2  probably the answer to a lot of our problems.  I

          3  will say I was pretty impressed with the Fire

          4  Department's Health Service Division.  The fact that

          5  they have monitoring, and they have quite a few

          6  things.  And I think it's far superior to what we

          7  currently have in the NYPD's medical division. In

          8  fact, although we've tried to break the barrier, I

          9  think it's more of them/us type of attitude, with

         10  the medical division and the NYPD employees.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I really thank

         12  you for your time and testimony.  And to the panel,

         13  I do hope as well, and again, we look forward to

         14  working with you.

         15                 MR. PALLADINO: Great.  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 At this moment, I do want to thank

         20  everyone again for their time and patience.  Again,

         21  the complexity of this issue, and the amount of

         22  witnesses we have, we are going to get to everyone.

         23                 The next panel I'm going to call up

         24  is a multiple panel.  So bear with me here.  It's

         25  Meg Callaghan and Tony Garvey, from the Lieutenants
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          2  Benevolent Association.  We're going to call up at

          3  the same time, Peter Meringolo, Corrections

          4  Captains.  And we're also going to call up Tom

          5  Eppinger, Uniformed EMS.

          6                 And if the Sergeant- at Arms could

          7  just add a chair, I'd appreciate it, if we need.

          8                 I want to thank this panel.  If you

          9  would just please state your name and give your

         10  testimony.

         11                 LT. CALLAGHAN: I'm Lieutenant Meg

         12  Callaghan, the Political Action and Safety Director

         13  for the NYPD's Lieutenant Benevolent Association.

         14  And with me is the President of the LBA, Tony

         15  Garvey.

         16                 I want to commend this Committee, its

         17  Chairperson, and Speaker Quinn, for conducting these

         18  hearings, and more importantly, recognizing the

         19  critical need to obtain help for the many

         20  individuals who have been exposed to toxic

         21  environment resulting from the devastating collapse

         22  of the World Trade Center. The New York Daily News

         23  must also be acknowledged for their leading role on

         24  this issue.

         25                 For reasons of brevity, I'll simply
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          2  limit my remarks to the ailments of our first

          3  responders, and the recognition of the important

          4  work of the Mount Sinai medical staff.

          5                 Our members are now faced with the

          6  reality that their rescue and recovery work may very

          7  well end their careers. The pension medical boards

          8  must recognize what the medical community has.  Our

          9  members, afflicted with lung diminishment and post-

         10  traumatic stress disorder, need to have the peace of

         11  mind for themselves and their families that they

         12  will receive the proper disability compensation

         13  associated with the ailments established.  The

         14  medical boards that will be examining our members,

         15  must give recognition to what other medical experts,

         16  especially those in the field of occupational safety

         17  and health, that "there should no longer be any

         18  doubt about the effects, the health effects of the

         19  World Trade Center".  This statement, made by Dr.

         20  Robin Herbert, the director of the 9- 11 program at

         21  Mount Sinai, must be the foundation in which our

         22  medical boards function.

         23                 A precedent has been set with the

         24  federal government's response to our veterans who

         25  have been exposed to toxic substances through the
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          2  establishment of the Veterans Administration's

          3  Agent Orange monitoring and assistance program.

          4                 Finally, the federal government must

          5  step up to the plate and participate in the funding

          6  to treat and compensate those that answered the call

          7  during one of America's darkest and finest hours.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 MR. MERINGOLO: Okay, thank you.  I'm

         10  Peter Meringolo.  I am the President of the

         11  Corrections Captains Association, and I'm also going

         12  to speak as the Chairperson of the New York State

         13  Public Employee Conference.

         14                 Chairperson Addabbo and Members of

         15  the Committee, I would like to express my

         16  appreciation and thanks that your Committee has seen

         17  fit to initiate these hearings to look into the

         18  health needs of the September 11th first responders.

         19                 I am the President of the New York

         20  City Correction Captains Association.  In that

         21  capacity, I represent approximately 900 Correction

         22  Captains, who are the first- line supervisors in the

         23  New York City Department of Corrections.  Many of my

         24  members were some of the responders at Ground Zero.

         25  I am also the Chairperson of the New York State
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          2  Public Employees Conference, representing more than

          3  50 New York State public sector unions, many of

          4  which represent employees that work for the City and

          5  other covered organizations whose employees also

          6  responded to Ground Zero.

          7                 On Monday past, the eyes of the world

          8  were focused on New York City, as we honored and

          9  remembered the victims of 9- 11. Five years have

         10  passed since that horrific day, and we still feel

         11  the pain.  If we truly want to honor the memory of

         12  the victims, we must care for those who risked their

         13  lives to help others.

         14                 One of the great disappointments and

         15  embarrassments of 9- 11 is the fact that the City

         16  Administration has resisted providing the monetary

         17  resources necessary to provide long- term care for

         18  our heroes.  There is an attitude within the

         19  Administration that views 9- 11 in terms of dollars

         20  and cents.  The human factor is not part of the

         21  equation.  The Administration has tried to convince

         22  the public that if the City spends money on caring

         23  for the 9- 11 responders, they will not be able to

         24  afford to provide important City services.  We all

         25  know that is a false argument.  We all know the
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          2  City's record surplus.  And we all know that if we

          3  were to ask our fellow New Yorkers to make the

          4  choice between slightly diminished City services

          5  versus meeting our moral obligations to care for our

          6  heroes, they would demand we spare no expense to

          7  ease the pain.

          8                 As Chairman of the New York State

          9  Public Employees Conference, our number one

         10  legislative goal was to pass the 9- 11 Presumptive

         11  Disability Bill.  That took four years.  The reason

         12  for that delay was primarily the Mayor's insistence

         13  that it not be passed.  So four years was an awful

         14  long time to get that passed.

         15                 Recently, the Governor passed a bill

         16  that would provide for members who did retire under

         17  the Presumptive Disability Bill, that if, God

         18  forbid, they should now succumb to those injuries

         19  and die, as the Detective did, their families would

         20  be provided for.  That too, was opposed by our

         21  Mayor.  In fact, it was sadly disheartening to hear

         22  the response when the Mayor did not respond to the

         23  bill- signing ceremony, that now we will have to

         24  close another firehouse, or change the hours of a

         25  library to pay for that bill.  That is sad.  We all
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          2  know that is not true.

          3                 We need the City Council to send a

          4  message to the Administration that we must do

          5  everything we can to help our heroes and their

          6  families.  We need to stop counting pennies and

          7  start acting with the same selflessness as our

          8  heroes.

          9                 Recently a newspaper article in the

         10  New York Times equated that these pension benefits

         11   --  they equated that to Christmas bonuses.  I

         12  don't know of any public employee in this City that

         13  gave of him or her self.   Okay, would like to go

         14  home and offer to their spouse the Christmas present

         15  that they are dying, or they will be permanently

         16  disabled.  I think that is also sad, and I think

         17  that newspaper may echo some of the City

         18  Administration's point of views.

         19                 The recently released medical study

         20  conducted by Mount Sinai Medical Center confirmed

         21  what we have been saying all along.  That 9- 11 has

         22  caused long- term health problems for those who

         23  worked at Ground Zero.  While it may appear that the

         24  Administration has begun to soften its position to

         25  providing resources for long- term care, the City
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          2  has allowed a lot of time to pass and a lot of

          3  people have suffered as a result.

          4                 If and when another attack occurs on

          5  our City, you can be sure City workers will once

          6  again respond heroically, despite the City's failure

          7  to respond to their needs following 9 11.

          8                 We need to begin to take care of our

          9  heroes now, and the City needs to make a moral and

         10  financial commitment to ensure 9- 11 heroes get what

         11  they need.

         12                 The organizations I represent are

         13  eager to work with elected officials to obtain State

         14  and federal funding to provide the services needed

         15  by our heroes.  However, I must emphasize that

         16  whether or not we receive State and federal funding,

         17  our heroes must be taken care of now.  The City as

         18  already waited too long. Thank you.

         19                 MR. EPPINGER: My name is Thomas

         20  Eppinger.  I am the President of the Uniformed EMS

         21  Officers Union.  And I am joined today by Marianne

         22  Pizzitola, the Disability Pension and Benefits

         23  Coordinator for my union.  Also in the audience, I'd

         24  like it if you would stand please, my friend, my

         25  fellow classmate from my academy class 18 years ago,
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          2  and a member of my Lieutenant's class when we got

          3  promoted top of the list, John Vinciguerra, who is

          4  very sick, who will testify.  And his wife, Leanne,

          5  who is a former EMT on our job.

          6                 First, I would like to thank

          7  Councilman Addabbo, Speaker Quinn, and the Members

          8  of the City Council and the Civil Service and Labor

          9  Committee for holding this hearing today.  This is a

         10  topic of vital importance to the members of my

         11  union.  The issues that will be heard today are

         12  issues that we've been fighting for since our

         13  members have become ill.  I also want to acknowledge

         14  the other union leaders in this room who have been

         15  working so diligently to shed light on the 9- 11

         16  health issues facing their members.

         17                 Local 3621 represents over 400

         18  Lieutenants and Captains that are the front- line

         19  leadership for FDNY EMS.  Our members responded to

         20  the World Trade Center attack on 9- 11, and did not

         21  leave until the last piece of steel was removed.

         22  Five years later, my members are paying for their

         23  unselfish dedication, patriotism, and commitment.

         24  Many of them are very ill, and feel like they have

         25  been forgotten.
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          2                 Rather than go into detail about what

          3  our members' health issues are, I think we are all

          4  in agreement that Ground Zero workers are facing

          5  considerable illnesses as a result of their work on

          6  Ground Zero.  I thought the most productive use of

          7  my testimony today would be to identify and provide

          8  background for four key issues we need your help on.

          9    There are many others, followed by a suggested

         10  resolution to these issues.

         11                 These key issues relate to a mounting

         12  bureaucracy that my members must navigate to secure

         13  benefits they so rightfully earned.  The agencies

         14  that I specifically want to focus on today are the

         15  FDNY, the New York City Law Department, and the

         16  Employees Retirement System.

         17                 Issue Number One:  FDNY continues to

         18  deny member contractual Line of Duty benefits.

         19                 It has been our experience that the

         20  FDNY is recommending to controvert 9- 11 cases for

         21  Workman Compensation for EMS workers.  When the New

         22  York City Law Department adopts a recommendation as

         23  their own, the FDNY continues to deny that member

         24  contractual Line of Duty benefits, thus forcing that

         25  member to use banked sick or vacation time, if they
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          2  had any.  If not, they are placed off payroll, and

          3  lost their health insurance.

          4                 Suggested Resolution: The City should

          5  provide for unlimited sick for EMS workers, as it

          6  does for other uniformed workers.  Or require FDNY

          7  to advise the worker that it is suggesting to

          8  controverse the case, and why.

          9                 Issue Number Two: Exceedingly long

         10  time period for Workman Compensation hearings.

         11                 In many cases, the time period to

         12  schedule Workman's Compensation hearing with the New

         13  York City Law Department can be two to three months,

         14  with the decision taking upward of a year. The

         15  result in the worker being without pay and benefits

         16  for long, sometimes fatal periods of time.  To make

         17  matters worse, the FDNY has terminated some of these

         18  cases under Section 71 of the Civil Service Law.

         19  Most claims are denied because the workers became

         20  too ill, two years after 9- 11, and the Law

         21  Department was sending notice to the worker stating,

         22   "No industrial accident, no occupational disease,

         23  no notice, no medical evidence of causal

         24  relationship, exceeded two- year statute of

         25  limitations, accident did not arise out or in the
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          2  course of employment".  It is an outright egregious

          3  on every level that the New York City Law Department

          4  sends a statement like this to a World Trade Center

          5  rescuer.

          6                 Suggested Resolution: The City

          7  Council should consider legislation that mandates

          8  the Law Department expeditiously schedule and make

          9  decisions on 9- 11 health cases, or remands 9- 11

         10  cases back to another hearing within two weeks.  If

         11  the City is not prepared, it should lose its

         12  opportunity to request a continuance, or adjourn for

         13  another day.  Enough time has been wasted, and

         14  workers should not experience any further delay in

         15  their care. Timeframes should be implemented and

         16  must be followed.

         17                 Issue Number Three: NYCERS decisions

         18  inconsistent with employing agency.

         19                 Our members continually run into

         20  instances where the FDNY has found them to be

         21  disabled, while NYCERS' medical board would find

         22  them not disabled, preventing them from securing

         23  Line of Duty Disability retirement benefits.  FDNY

         24  EMS members are not City workers that can sit in an

         25  office all day.  Our members go into buildings that

                                                            172

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  are not the cleanest environments, to fires where

          3  there is smoke, fumes, chemicals, and to assignments

          4  where there are respiratory irritants to workers

          5  already compromised respiratory systems make just

          6  breathing a challenge.

          7                 Suggested Resolution: Policy should

          8  be enacted one, that forces the City to commit to a

          9  criterion for disability, and two, forces NYCERS to

         10  accept the decision when Workman's Comp, Social

         11  Security, and the employing agency finds a member

         12  disabled, in a timely fashion.  I also recommend

         13  that doctors that sit on the NYCERS' medical board

         14  have term limits, and are limited as the number of

         15  boards they can serve on.  We have seen many of the

         16  same doctors at NYCERS also serve on other boards,

         17  and some are even retirees from City agencies.

         18                 Issue Number Four: Difficulty in

         19  receiving approval for payment of health benefits by

         20  the New York City Law Department.

         21                 While the New York City Law

         22  Department acts as an insurance carrier for most

         23  City workers, recent history has shown that they

         24  often deviate from State Workman's Comp law, by

         25  ignoring doctor's requests for treatment, ignoring
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          2  bills, and in some cases for years, to the point

          3  that a doctor would advise my members that they

          4  could no longer treat them because they are not

          5  getting paid. My office has to assist the doctors in

          6  explaining to the State to force the Law Department

          7  to pay for bills that they have already b been

          8  authorized treatment for.  What complicates this is

          9  the State advises us they have no authority over the

         10  operations of the Law Department, only the Mayor

         11  does.  The State Insurance Department has no

         12  oversight either, as the City is self insured.

         13                 Also, my members find the number of

         14  doctors authorized as Workman Comp Physicians to

         15  treat them in short supply, especially in the area

         16  of mental health providers, oncologists, internists,

         17  nutritionists, and cardiologists.  When reviewing

         18  the list on the State site, most refused to take on

         19  new patients, or would not take comp if the carrier

         20  was the New York City Law Department.  Others

         21  preferred not to treat 9- 11 workers.

         22                 Often, the Law Department would delay

         23  or refuse medication or breathing diagnostic tests

         24  for months, and tried to force workers to use their

         25  in- house Express Scripts Pharmacy or One Call
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          2  Medical for radiology.  This issue was the pharmacy

          3  to take two to three weeks to send medication, and

          4  on a few occasions, did not direct bill the Law

          5  Department, and instead, billed the member's union

          6  health plan.  In addition, doctors complained that

          7  One Call Medical films are of poor quality.

          8                 Suggested Resolution: The City

          9  Council should consider legislation that can provide

         10  for the oversight of the New York City Law

         11  Department for Workman's Compensation benefits.  For

         12  example, the City might consider legislation to

         13  force the Law Department, as the City's insurer, to

         14  follow the same rules as the insurance company, and

         15  provide claimants with the proper recourse

         16  techniques.

         17                 To conclude, I want to commend the

         18  Mayor for releasing his series on 9- 11 health

         19  initiatives last week. However, I feel strongly that

         20  the City Council must continue to work with the

         21  Administration to ensure that these policies are

         22  enforced and moved in an expeditious manner.  Also,

         23  it is important to note, while we believe the

         24  State's World Trade Center Compensation legislation

         25  will fix some of these problems in the Workman's
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          2  Comp arena, we still have concern with FDNY

          3  Workman's Compensation Unit, and with NYCERS'

          4  commitment with protecting Ground Zero workers.

          5  Local 3621 intends to continue to pursue these

          6  policy changes with the State.

          7                 On behalf, again, of the members of

          8  the Uniformed EMS Officers Union, I cannot thank the

          9  City Council enough for your commitment on this

         10  issue.  Marianne, my Pension Counsel and I are happy

         11  to answer any questions.

         12                 And just one more note.  We put some

         13  information together.  We keep track of our members,

         14  like John and his wife. We're in touch with all our

         15  members that are ill.  I can tell you right now, 27

         16  of our members are sick from Trade Center- related

         17  illnesses.  Only nine have received a three- quarter

         18  disability pensions.  Three have opted for regular

         19  pensions, because psychologically, they cannot fight

         20  anymore.  We encouraged them, but they just don't

         21  have it in them.  Or, they'll opt for a regular

         22  pension because they're afraid they're going to go

         23  off payroll. Four members of mine are off payroll,

         24  which means no pay, no benefits, no medicine, no

         25  nothing.  That's seven percent of my membership that
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          2  is ill, after responding to the World Trade Center

          3  incident.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          5  much.  And again, I want to thank this panel.  A

          6  number of you brought to light the fact that we're

          7  not going to let the State off the hook. I know we

          8  have brought the issue to the forefront today that

          9  we definitely need more federal dollars.  We are not

         10  going to ignore our legislative colleagues in the

         11  State.  They need to kick in as well.  Obviously,

         12  this is going to take a cooperative effort to get

         13  the resources we need, so that these workers don't

         14  have to go out on regular pensions.  That they don't

         15  have to make out- of- pocket expenses regarding

         16  their medication that they need.  So we also

         17  definitely want to include the State.

         18                 And if you could just give us an

         19  insight how the State is treating you differently.

         20  If it is treating you differently at all.

         21                 MR. EPPINGER: Yes, I will.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Please.

         23                 MR. MERINGOLO: Right after the

         24  signing of the 9- 11 disability bill, I, under the

         25  urgency of the members, which are over 50 members,
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          2  we had a meeting, and we utilized the headquarters

          3  of Randy Weingarten.  It was a big enough space for

          4  us.  And we invited everybody to attend.  Now the

          5  State pension system, I don't have the names of the

          6  gentlemen with me, but they actually got up on a

          7  podium, and they participated in a panel.  A

          8  question and answer panel.  And I actually, later on

          9  in the newspaper, complimented them on the process

         10  they had instilled, that when a member applies, they

         11  have a process to get back to them.  The City people

         12  sent people from NYCERS, but they were not at

         13  liberty to speak.  I don't know exactly what that

         14  meant.  I went to them, I said, "Would you join and

         15  be as part of a panel".  No, they were there to just

         16  observe.

         17                 There is no system, as I know of

         18  right now, in the City pension system, that affords

         19  protection when that member submits an application.

         20  Where does it go?  Is there any response to them

         21  back to them within 30 days, as the State does?

         22                 And to Councilman Gennaro, while I

         23  may run a very small union, I do Chair a very

         24  important organization.  And I am on the task force

         25  as one of Speaker Silver's seats for the 9- 11
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          2  committee.  I know nothing of that other steering

          3  committee.  I have never been asked to sit on it, on

          4  behalf of the 50- sum odd public employee unions

          5  that I represent.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.  And

          7  while we're on that point of that steering

          8  committee, which I was led to believe that many were

          9  involved, and now I'm finding out more and more not,

         10  this panel, are you on, or have been invited to that

         11  table?  That steering committee, or not?

         12                 MR. EPPINGER: I was under the

         13  impression that Dr. Kelly, if that's her name, was

         14  speaking only of the Fire Department.  The Police

         15  Department, I have never met with anyone in the

         16  Police Department 9- 11 related.  The attention to

         17  9- 11 related diseases is treated far differently in

         18  the Police Department. There are no exams being

         19  given.  There is a disconnect between the Pension

         20  Boards and their determinations.  Disabilities, and

         21  the common knowledge that's out there with the Mount

         22  Sinai study, and Dr. Herbert's conclusions, as

         23  compared to the medical boards. They just deny, it

         24  appears, that that medical evidence exists.  And

         25  they are a separate entity from the Police
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          2  Department.  And they are unwilling to render

          3  disabilities to many of these individuals who cannot

          4  continue on, and retire, basically on service

          5  retirement, and leave City government out of the

          6  frustration.

          7                 I think what needs to happen is

          8  there's a registry, at least with all of the pension

          9  systems.  That registry requires anyone who has

         10  worked down at any of the locations, the pile, the

         11  landfill, the morgue, for these individuals to

         12  register with the pension section.  I think what

         13  needs to happen is that all of those individuals

         14  need to be medically examined by either the Mount

         15  Sinai staff, or the Police Department to undertake,

         16  in the case of the Police Department, examination of

         17  all of those individuals who are filed.  I mean, we

         18  clearly know who has worked on the pile through the

         19  documentation that is required of our members to

         20  provide to the Pension Board.  And a movement in the

         21  Police Department should be to examine these

         22  individuals.  That has never been done.  Mount

         23  Sinai, on their own, and the Detectives Endowment

         24  Association really took the lead role.  And I

         25  commend Mike Palladino for focusing on that Mount
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          2  Sinai study, and those that Bahnken, who chairs.

          3  But something has to be done within the internal

          4  structure of the agencies themselves, objective to

          5  the Pension Board.

          6                 MR. EPPINGER: If I could just add,

          7  the steering committee of Mount Sinai, our union

          8  changed hands in 2004, and at no time was I ever

          9  advised by our former union leaders in my

         10  organization, or have received a invitation to the

         11  Mount Sinai committee.  It wasn't until I had

         12  meetings with Dr. Presant, from the Fire Department,

         13  regarding Trade Center health issues and the Bureau

         14  of Health Services, that he asked where I was at the

         15  table. And I did not know I had a seat.  And I will

         16  be attending.  And the other unions  --  all the

         17  union leaders should be attending. Everyone

         18  responded.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree.

         20                 MR. EPPINGER: And no one should be

         21  excluded.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree.

         23                 MR. GORMAN: Could I just comment on

         24  something you hit the nail on.  Your comment that

         25  shouldn't there be an oversight, a singular
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          2  oversight.  You know, this is not uncommon to Agent

          3  Orange.  Which is a toxic substance that the

          4  Veterans Administration oversees in its

          5  administration.  It has a registry. And has

          6  oversight and I just want to read what the

          7  requirement is for this toxic substance from the

          8  federal government.  The VA presumes that a

          9  condition is service connected  --  and they have 11

         10  listed identifiers conditions, as well as 19 birth

         11  defects.  And Norman Seabrook said it earlier.

         12  Nineteen birth defects associated with Agent Orange.

         13    What we had at 9- 11 is not different, not far

         14  different from the toxic substances of Agent Orange

         15  itself.

         16                 So I think you're on target.  There

         17  should be one entity, I think.  As an oversight.

         18  And it should really fall on the shoulders of the

         19  federal government, because they have the finances

         20  to do that.  So I fully agree with I think the path

         21  you're headed down.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you Mr.

         23  Gorman.  And part of the follow up to this hearing,

         24  as we digest what was said today, is to look into,

         25  if we can formulate some type of commission, or
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          2  propose one.  So we will follow that up.  And again,

          3  I want to thank this panel, also for their

          4  suggestions.  Mr. Eppinger, thank you, in your

          5  testimony.  You know, that's helpful.  So even the

          6  prior panel, anyone, if you have suggestions on how

          7  we can correct or again, like we mentioned earlier,

          8  clear obstacles for these workers, we will act on

          9  those.  So I really appreciate the input, and we

         10  will continue to have a dialogue about this.  So

         11  thank you very much for your time and testimony.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 Our next panel is one person,

         14  Jonathan Bennet, from NYCOSH.  And I want to thank

         15  Mr. Bennet for his patience, as all, I appreciate

         16  all of your patience.  We have three panels left.

         17                 We have your testimony.  Thank you

         18  Mr. Bennett.

         19                 MR. BENNETT: I'm Jonathan Bennett,

         20  with the New York Committee for Occupational Safety

         21  and Health.  We appreciate the opportunity to

         22  testify today.  This is an abbreviated version of my

         23  testimony.  We have provided the complete testimony

         24  to the Council.

         25                 All of the heroic workers and
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          2  volunteers whose health has been compromised by

          3  exposure to the horrendous physical and

          4  psychological hazards at and around Ground Zero,

          5  must receive the very best medical screening,

          6  monitoring, and care.  Our rescue, recovery, and

          7  cleanup workers must receive such care, not only

          8  because they selflessly put themselves at risk, but

          9  because the City bears a heavy burden of

         10  responsibility for exposing them to such a hazardous

         11  environment.

         12                 Under both the Federal Occupational

         13  Safety and Health Act, and the State's Public

         14  Employee Safety and Health Law, an employer is

         15  required to provide employees with "a place of

         16  employment which is free from recognized hazards

         17  that are causing, or likely to cause death or

         18  serious physical harm".  Of course, the City did not

         19  create the hazards at Ground Zero.  But our safety

         20  and health laws apply equally to hazardous

         21  workplaces as to workplaces that are safe and

         22  healthful.  If the air in a workplace is hazardous,

         23  or potentially hazardous, the Public Employee Safety

         24  and Health Law, and the respiratory protection

         25  standard, require the City to conduct a hazard
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          2  assessment.  And then, so far as possible, provide

          3  its employees with the equipment necessary to

          4  protect them from anything that is likely to cause

          5  death or serious physical harm.

          6                 In the first 24 hours after the

          7  attack, more than 100 FDNY responders required

          8  medical care for respiratory distress, including

          9  three who were hospitalized with life- threatening

         10  inhalation injuries.

         11                 Whatever EPA, OSHA, and the State

         12  Labor Department's Public Employee Safety and Health

         13  Bureau said or did about conditions at Ground Zero

         14  has no effect on the City's legal obligation as an

         15  employer to assess the hazard and protect its

         16  employees as soon as possible.  And when protective

         17  equipment is necessary, the employer is required to

         18  ensure that it is properly used.  No government

         19  agency, federal, State, or local, has the authority

         20  to relieve an employer of that obligation.

         21                 It is sometimes said that the World

         22  Trade Center response was a rescue operation, and

         23  that hence, the employer's obligation did not apply.

         24    That assertion is wrong on two counts. First, how

         25  long after a building collapse, or other disaster
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          2  can a rescue operation last?  Once no rescue is

          3  possible, it was not, in fact, a rescue operation.

          4  Second, even if a rescue operation could continue

          5  for six months, the Occupational Safety and Health

          6  laws are not invalidated during that time.  During a

          7  rescue operation, an employer is required to comply

          8  with Occupational Safety and Health laws to the

          9  extent possible.  And to the extent that doing so

         10  does not interfere with the operation.

         11                 The City owes an enormous debt to

         12  those of its employees with 9- 11 related illness,

         13  and to those who may develop such illnesses in the

         14  future.  Providing the very best medical screening,

         15  monitoring, and care, is only a partial fulfillment

         16  of that debt.  We implore the Council to ensure that

         17  the City does everything possible to meet its

         18  obligation in full.

         19                 Thank you very much.  I'll be happy

         20  to answer any questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Bennett,

         22  thank you very much.  A couple of quick questions.

         23  Does NYCOSH in its own, monitor the situation, as

         24  far as who is ill, and what kind of treatment

         25  they're getting?  And the cost involved?
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          2                 MR. BENNETT: Our Executive Director

          3  is on the Board of Directors of both the Mount Sinai

          4  Clinic, and the Mount Sinai -  he's on the Advisory

          5  Board of the worker and volunteer screening and

          6  treatment operation.  So I mean, you know, he gets

          7  those reports.  But you know, other than his getting

          8  those reports, and us talking about them in the

          9  office, we don't have an operation to monitor

         10  anything like that.

         11                 I mean, we try to collect any

         12  information that's out there, but it's whatever we

         13  get.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you know,

         15  obviously, the daunting task we have of trying to

         16  get funding from the federal and State governments.

         17  As well as trying to find our own funding.  Do you

         18  have any suggestions on how we can go about it?

         19  NYCOSH joining the fight in that endeavor.

         20                 MR. BENNETT: Well, we're certainly

         21  heavily engaged in the fight already.  I can't say

         22  that I have any unique insight. I mean, you know,

         23  lobbying.  You know, trying to figure out where

         24  there are pots of money that can be dipped into.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And of the
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          2  information you do have, again, that's been a

          3  prevalent issue today, information being transferred

          4  back and forth, are you part of this informational

          5  highway, regarding this issue?  Are you involved in

          6  discussions, negotiations, and sharing of

          7  information?

          8                 MR. BENNETT: Not formally, no.  Let

          9  me say that I think the Chairman's idea that there

         10  be some kind of an overarching body that would

         11  create some kind of uniformity in all of these

         12  operations is a good one, but it's also very

         13  important that that body adopt good policies.  You

         14  know, because uniformity in bad policies is  --  it

         15  would be better to have everybody doing their own

         16  thing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: True.  But

         18  again, we look forward to that day when, hopefully,

         19  the uniformity would equal a more feasible way of

         20  these workers getting their treatment, so  --

         21                 MR. BENNETT: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree with

         23  you, and I thank you for your time and your patience

         24  today.  Thank you very much Mr. Bennett.

         25                 MR. BENNETT: Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel

          3  will be John Vinciguerra and Leigh- Ann Vinciguerra.

          4                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: Good morning

          5  Chairman Addabbo, Council Members, and guests.  My

          6  name is John Vinciguerra.  I am 38 years old.  I'm

          7  married and a father of four.  I'm also a Lieutenant

          8  with the Fire Department EMS Command.  And I am just

          9  one of the many people that were sickened by the

         10  dust and debris that was released after the

         11  destruction of the World Trade Center complex.

         12                 Shortly after the collapse, I

         13  developed a cough that has haunted me for years.  I

         14  went to see the Fire Department doctor in January of

         15  2002, was given medication, told to see my own

         16  doctor, and follow up with my routine physicals.  In

         17  the months following, my primary doctor changed and

         18  added to my medications, in order to try to keep me

         19  healthy.  This seemed successful, until April 30,

         20  2005.  At that point, I was admitted to an Intensive

         21  Care Unit with severe breathing problems.  After

         22  some testing to rule out other problems, the doctors

         23  at the hospital quickly zeroed in on the reason for

         24  me being sick.  My exposure to toxins at the World

         25  Trade Center.

                                                            189

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 The night I was admitted to the

          3  hospital, my wife notified the Fire Department that

          4  I was in the hospital, and the reason that the

          5  doctors believed that I was sick.  However, it was

          6  not until June 7, 2005, over a month later, that the

          7  Workers Compensation was submitted by the Fire

          8  Department to the New York City Law Department.  The

          9  Law Department then took another month until July,

         10  2005, to controvert, or deny the claim.  This denial

         11  was made not only because I passed the two- year

         12  deadline, a complication that has been eliminated

         13  due to recent legislation, but also, according to

         14  the Law Department, there have been no industrial

         15  accident, no occupational disease, no medical

         16  evidence of causal relationship, and the accident

         17  did not arise out of, or in the course of

         18  employment.

         19                 Since I was unable to return to work

         20  after release from the hospital, I had to use time I

         21  saved.  Fortunately for me, I had five months of

         22  sick leave, and another two months of personal leave

         23  vacation time that I had not used.  Even still, with

         24  my wife at the time pregnant with out daughter, and

         25  my savings quickly running out due to the costs of
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          2  medications and tests, we had to sell our home to

          3  make sure we kept our heads above water.  And in

          4  September of 2005, facing the prospect of running

          5  out of leave and losing my paycheck and my health

          6  benefits just in time for the birth of our daughter,

          7  I was forced to go back to a desk job.

          8                 Since I had been involved in the

          9  Hazardous Materials Division, the Department had

         10  given me a physical, including pulmonary function

         11  tests since 1995.  And it clearly showed that I had

         12  significant dropoff in my lung capacity after 9- 11.

         13    Even still, the Law Department continued to drag

         14  its feet.  In May of 2006, my pulmonary doctor

         15  informed me that he would rather not treat me any

         16  more, because he had not been paid in the year since

         17  he started seeing me.  And it was hurting his

         18  practice to have such a large bill outstanding.

         19                 It wasn't till June 27th of 2006,

         20  over a full year after I had fallen ill, that I was

         21  able to appeal my case to the Law Department, and

         22  win.  Even with the records from the Department, and

         23  the independent medical review agreeing with my

         24  doctor, the Law Department was still hostile to my

         25  case, and did not it to proceed.  And they still, to
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          2  this day, have not paid dollar one to my doctor, or

          3  for my medications.

          4                 I can only believe that the recent

          5  legislation and public pressure are the only reasons

          6  the Law Department has decided not to appeal the

          7  decision of the State Workmans Compensation Board.

          8  And I thank all of you for that.

          9                 I hope that the continued pressure,

         10  legislation, and funding will help others in my

         11  situation, and those who may not be ill, to prevent

         12  them from having to endure what I have, or worse.  The

         13  other thing I would like to see come out of this, is

         14  for there to be a place set up where information can

         15  be obtained about benefits or treatments available

         16  to speed the process of obtaining assistance.  I

         17  know that in the time since 9 11, a lot of programs

         18  have been made available.  However, if you don't

         19  know how to get them what good are they?  Thank you.

         20                 MS. VINCIGUERRA: Well, I'm a little

         21  overwhelmed with all the testimony that I've heard

         22  today.  I actually learned a lot of testimony and

         23  it's very overwhelming for me.

         24                 I'm John's wife, and my husband, he

         25  works for the Fire Department.  He's worked for 18
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          2  years.  I watched him, over the years after 9- 11,

          3  have more problems with his breathing. Despite all

          4  the medicine that he's been taking, he is not the

          5  same active, healthy man that I married.  My husband

          6  has been diagnosed with RADS, Reactive Airway

          7  Disfunction Syndrome, exacerbation of asthma, sleep

          8  apnea, and he has scarring on his lungs.

          9                 At one point, I watched my husband

         10  gasping for air, in sheer panic.  I rushed him to

         11  the hospital in respiratory distress.  Just like my

         12  husband rushed into work on 9- 11, to help anyone

         13  that he could, he was there for the City when they

         14  needed him most.  Unfortunately, the City is not

         15  there for him.

         16                 I would like for all of you to know

         17  our experience so it does not continue any more, for

         18  my husband or anyone else in this situation that we

         19  have been put through by the Workmans Compensation

         20  division, and the New York City Law Department.

         21  They have made it very stressful, and we've had to

         22  fight to get him his Workman's Compensation

         23  approved.

         24                 There is no reason why we should have

         25  had to put up such a fight with the Workmans
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          2  Compensation division, when we have enough stress

          3  that we have to deal with.  The doctor came to us

          4  and told us that we don't know.  We should prepare,

          5  because we don't know what's going to happen with

          6  him.  So as a family, we need to prepare for him not

          7  being around much longer.  And hearing that, and

          8  dealing with that, selling our house, with four

          9  children, was enough to deal with.

         10                 I didn't appreciate the way that the

         11  Law Department has been so hostile.  My husband,

         12  with all the stress that he's under, I have taken a

         13  lot of the burden of making phone calls, calling

         14  Workmen's Compensation, the Law Department, and they

         15  act either very nasty or they act like I'm almost

         16  taking money out of their own pockets.

         17                 I just want his medication paid for.

         18  We are paying approximately, with co- payments that

         19  we are covered by our own insurance, we are still

         20  paying close to $130 to $150 a month just in co-

         21  payments alone.  And enduring that, with his

         22  medication constantly changing, that's a big expense

         23  for us.  That's not including doctors, and that's

         24  not including testing.  That's just medication

         25  alone.
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          2                 Dr. Presant, with the New York City

          3  Fire Department, has been great.  When his doctor

          4  told him that he can no longer see him anymore

          5  because the bills haven't been paid, Dr. Presant

          6  took care of my husband.

          7                 The only thing is, the monitoring  --

          8    what I feel that needs to be done is a total

          9  reform with the Workmen's Compensation system.  So

         10  if there's an easier access for people to go into

         11  there, and say their case.  And obviously, you have

         12  the proper medical documentation, you wouldn't be

         13  there.  And have it a fast process.  Get your

         14  medical bills paid for.  Even though he's been

         15  approved, we still have no official letter saying

         16  that he's been approved  We just heard it through

         17  the Fire Department.  And, we're still paying for

         18  our medications.  I just paid $134.90 the other day,

         19  at CVS for a co- payment for his medications.  So

         20  we're still sitting and waiting.

         21                 The other thing is, the Mount Sinai

         22  program, my husband did go to.  Okay?  And he saw

         23  them seven months ago.  They told him they would

         24  contact him when he can get an appointment.  He did

         25  get an evaluation.  But he went one time.  And I do
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          2  believe that people that don't have insurance and

          3  aren't covered, and are very, very ill, and don't

          4  have medication, they should be there, and they

          5  should be prioritized.  However, seven months have

          6  gone by and we still haven't gotten a phone call

          7  from Mount Sinai to come back and still do

          8  screening.

          9                 So I love everybody talking about all

         10  this screening that they're doing.  It's just that

         11  there's not really available treatments.  We are

         12  still, at this time, seeing our own private

         13  physician for is illness.

         14                 And also, one other thing.  The New

         15  York City Fire Department has a monitoring program.

         16  And I wanted to  --  I called myself to find out

         17  what they had available for my husband.  Which is

         18  basically, since I worked for the Fire Department as

         19  an EMT, I am familiar with getting a daily physical

         20  every year.  That monitoring program is almost the

         21  same thing as your daily yearly physical.  Except

         22  they added on another hour and a half of paperwork

         23  that you have to fill out for psychological and past

         24  medical history.  There is no treatment from this

         25  program in the New York City Fire Department.  I
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          2  asked them, is there any treatment.  They said they

          3  don't have enough money  --  funding  -- this is

          4  from Captain Quinn, from the New York City Fire

          5  Department --  there isn't enough money or funding

          6  for treatment.  The only treatment that we had, is

          7  we went to Dr. Presant.  Even though he worked for

          8  the Fire Department, and he's a pulmonologist for

          9  the Fire Department, we were still told we had to go

         10  to our private physician for treatment.  So, you

         11  know, it's called a treatment monitoring program,

         12  but there's not really any treatment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

         14  you both for your time, because you've just given us

         15  a face for the problem. You are a snapshot of what

         16  many workers are experiencing throughout the City.

         17  And that's why I appreciate your being here today,

         18  to again, give us a face to the problem.

         19                 If I had to ask a question, one

         20  question I'd like to know, if you don't mind.  Out-

         21  of- pocket expenses.  Do you have any idea of the

         22  dollar amount that came out of your pocket to date

         23  for your condition?

         24                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: To date, I haven't

         25  added it up, but it's been in the thousands.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In the

          3  thousands.  Like I said, you have put a face onto

          4  the issue for me, and I'm sure to my colleague.  And

          5  the bottom line is, we appreciate that.  And I'm

          6  hopeful, that because of this hearing, that we can

          7  again, do something about that.  For you and for

          8  those in the future.  So again, thank you for your

          9  time and testimony today.

         10                 MS. VINCIGUERRA: Thank you very much

         11  Councilman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ladies and

         13  gentlemen, a unique situation.  We need the  --  the

         14  Council needs this room at five o'clock for an

         15  event.  But thanks to the Sergeant- at- Arms and

         16  their efforts, we have agreed that we can move right

         17  next door to the other Committee room to finish up

         18  the last three panels.  And because of your

         19  patience, I'd like to do that.  So we're going to

         20  take about a five- minute time- out, and we're going

         21  to move into that Committee room to finish up this

         22  hearing.  So we'll see you next door.  Thank you.

         23                 A brief recess was taken.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon

         25  everyone. Welcome to Part Two of the Civil Service
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          2  and Labor Committee hearing.  Again, I appreciate

          3  everyone's patience here today on what is a complex

          4  but most important issue to the City.  And really to

          5  the country.  I think a lot of people around the

          6  country are watching us at this point, and how we

          7  treat our workers.  And for future events,

          8  obviously, it may play a part.

          9                 The first panel, we'll do 2 three

         10  panels of three, I believe.  The first panel is Dr.

         11  David Root, from the New York Rescue Workers Detox

         12  Project; Jim Woodworth and Pete Gleason, also of the

         13  Rescue Workers Detox Project.

         14                 I want to thank you gentlemen for

         15  being here today. Please state your name and give

         16  your testimony please.

         17                 DR. ROOT: Chairman Addabbo, and

         18  Members of the Committee, I thank you for allowing

         19  me to speak this afternoon.  My name is Dr. David

         20  Root.  I am a Board Certified specialist is

         21  occupational medicine, and a Fellow of the American

         22  Academy of Occupational and Environmental Medicine.

         23  I direct an occupational medicine facility in

         24  Sacramento, California, at which I have overseen the

         25  detoxification of nearly 4,000 people over the last
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          2  20 years.

          3                 I have collaborated with scientists

          4  and physicians in the Unites States, Europe, and

          5  Russia in research projects involving the Hubbard

          6  detoxification program.  I have chaired three

          7  international conferences, examining the use of

          8  detoxification to address the effects of

          9  occupational and environmental chemical exposures.

         10                 It has also been my privilege to

         11  serve as the senior medical advisor to the New York

         12  Rescue Workers Detoxification Project.  Prior to

         13  entering private practice, I served a full career in

         14  the United State Air Force, retiring as a Colonel.

         15  I care deeply about the well being of those in all

         16  types of uniformed service.

         17                 May involvement in this project began

         18  in January 2002, when I came to New York at the

         19  invitation of some of the firefighters and union

         20  safety officers, who were interested in the

         21  detoxification program as I was using it in

         22  Sacramento.  At that time, I found that the

         23  consensus among health officials was that any

         24  problems rescue workers were manifesting, would

         25  resolve within a year or so.
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          2                 Based on my experience with chemical

          3  exposures, including individuals exposed during

          4  Vietnam and the Persian Gulf Wars, I felt this was

          5  an overly optimistic assessment.  We decided to

          6  respond to the requests for a detoxification

          7  facility in Manhattan, and each year that has passed

          8  has made it more evident that this was the right

          9  thing to do.

         10                 Just this week, the Institute of

         11  Medicine of the National Academies published a

         12  report on the health status of veterans in the 1990-

         13   '91 Persian Gulf War.  While the report

         14  acknowledged that these individuals manifested

         15  significantly more symptoms of illness than soldiers

         16  who did not serve in the Gulf, it could identify no

         17  specific syndrome that applied to them.

         18                 The federal funds allocated to

         19  researching this subject are in the range of a half

         20  a billion dollars, perhaps more. One of the

         21  ramifications of this inconclusive result, after so

         22  much expense, is that no progress has been made in

         23  identifying an effective treatment for the symptoms

         24  that are acknowledged to exist.

         25                 I am deeply concerned that we could
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          2  see a similar pattern with the WTC rescue workers.

          3  While we hear talk of treatment, most of what is

          4  being offered is diagnosis and symptomatic

          5  medication.

          6                 As is the case with Gulf War

          7  veterans, there is no real agreement regarding which

          8  chemicals or combination of chemicals might be

          9  responsible for the health problems that we are

         10  seeing.

         11                 Most of those who served at the WTC

         12  knew full well that they had entered a toxic zone

         13  more dangerous than anything they had ever seen.

         14  They could taste it, they could smell it, they could

         15  feel it.  Yet they did not hesitate to do their

         16  duty.

         17                 They should not have to wait 15 years

         18  for help. This detoxification project has

         19  demonstrated time and time again that detoxification

         20  can return quality of life and job fitness to the

         21  level these men and women enjoyed before their

         22  exposures.  The method used involves the use of

         23  vitamins, exercise, sauna, and oil supplements.

         24  Further details are available on the project's

         25  website and the scientific journals, and in a
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          2  article that I will be providing with Dr. Gelb's

          3  testimony.

          4                 Several cases reviewed by the courts

          5  in California have ruled that this method of

          6  detoxification was compensable under Workers

          7  Compensation law.  In fact, in one case, the highest

          8  court in California, the California Supreme Court,

          9  has made such a ruling with respect to this

         10  rehabilitative therapy.  There is no reason this

         11  service should only be available to through the

         12  generosity of private citizens and foundations.

         13                 More than 700 cases, 716 as of this

         14  morning, have established that his program brings

         15  relief to those affected by the World Trade Center

         16  exposures.  Has this answered every question about

         17  the exposures and their effects?  Of course not.

         18  But it has answered one extremely important

         19  question: What can we do now to help those who are

         20  suffering?

         21                 Increasingly, as news of the

         22  worsening condition of the rescue workers spreads,

         23  those who come to this project are quite angry that

         24  they were not informed of this program through

         25  official channels.  I am hopeful that you will use
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          2  your powers to remedy this situation.  Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

          5  doctor.  Jim.

          6                 MR. ADDABBO: Thank you Mr. Chairman,

          7  and Committee Members for holding this very

          8  important hearing on the health crisis facing the

          9  rescue workers of 9- 11.

         10                 In my work as Director of Community

         11  Outreach and Education for the New York Rescue

         12  Workers Detoxification Project, I find it very

         13  upsetting that day in, and day out, I encounter

         14  heroes of 9- 11 who are suffering from serious

         15  health problems.

         16                 I am saddened by their illness.  This

         17  sadness is made more intense because the physicians

         18  that I work with know that a simple, effective, and

         19  safe solution exists that could bring many of them

         20  immediate relief and restore their quality of life.

         21  But because it does not have broad support from

         22  government, we cannot provide this solution to every

         23  man and woman who is suffering needlessly.

         24                 Everyone knows of the asthma,

         25  fatigue, acid reflux, PTSD, and numerous other
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          2  symptoms that have resulted from the worst toxic

          3  environmental disaster our country has ever seen.

          4  In the last years, we have also seen an increasing

          5  number of deaths that appear to be linked to these

          6  exposures.

          7                 Our physicians and staff have

          8  completed more than 715 men and women affected by

          9  World Trade Center exposures with over 90 percent

         10  reporting significant relief of all their symptoms.

         11  These results are well known within the rescue

         12  worker community, but to our surprise, some health

         13  officials have expressed relatively little interest

         14  in these recoveries.

         15                 I have been told by a few City

         16  doctors and some elected officials that the reason

         17  for this and the reason that our services cannot be

         18  funded, is that we do not have an independent

         19  scientific study verifying our results.  We are

         20  certainly interested in such a study, but there is a

         21  Catch 22 that is problematic.  A study of sufficient

         22  size to satisfy such experts is expensive, easily

         23  costing more than a million dollars.

         24                 Because we do not receive annual

         25  government funding, and the fact that we are
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          2  committed to providing services to rescue workers at

          3  no cost, we depend on private sector donations.

          4  Understandably, private sector donors would much

          5  prefer to see their donations directly benefiting

          6  rescue workers.  We can help hundreds with a million

          7  dollars.  It is a full- time job, in fact, to try to

          8  raise the funds to meet all who have asked for our

          9  help.

         10                 Beyond this, the scientific experts

         11  at funding agencies have proved to be reluctant to

         12  support a study of the size needed, unless we can

         13  provide a study showing the need for another study.

         14  You can see how silly this can become.

         15                 Even so, a peer- reviewed protocol

         16  has been developed by an independent team of

         17  researchers led by David Carpenter, Director of the

         18  CUNY Albany School of Public Health.  They are ready

         19  to begin work as soon as funding is available.  As a

         20  matter of fact, they have been ready for more than a

         21  year.

         22                 We respectfully ask for help from

         23  you, the City Council of New York, the State

         24  Legislature, and the federal government's help in

         25  securing this funding.  As well as additional funds
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          2  to provide services to the ever- increasing number

          3  of sick rescue workers on our waiting list.

          4                 The program provided by the

          5  physicians of the New York Rescue Workers

          6  Detoxification Project was developed by L. Ron

          7  Hubbard.  Mr. Hubbard is well known as the founder

          8  of the Scientology religion.  It is less widely

          9  known that he developed methods and materials that

         10  are used in hundreds of government, community, and

         11  educational programs throughout the world.  These

         12  programs are not religious.

         13                 The detoxification program he

         14  developed has been used to address occupational and

         15  environmental exposures for a quarter of a century,

         16  and has been the subject of a continuously growing

         17  body of published scientific papers.  Given the fact

         18  that physicians receive very little training in

         19  environmental health, it is not surprising that

         20  their education would not include a review of this

         21  work, which is well documented, but not part of the

         22  routine established academic curriculum.

         23                 Ignorance of the scope of Mr.

         24  Hubbard's work in this field and the programs that

         25  utilize it, has not prevented some individuals from
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          2  making inaccurate statements that confuse both the

          3  public and officials who are trying to help these

          4  rescue workers.

          5                 I would like to take this opportunity

          6  to clarify the most common and divisive

          7  misconceptions.  The first is that this project is

          8  part of a religion, the Church of Scientology, and

          9  that the project design is to win converts.  This is

         10  not true.  We are an independent 501 C 3 as

         11  recognized by the IRS and are not part of any

         12  church.  We have no religious mission.

         13                 To date, the project has served

         14  rescue workers who are members of diverse faiths,

         15  Catholic, Jewish, Muslim, Mormon, Jehovah's

         16  Witnesses, Born Again Christians, Buddhist, and many

         17  others.  If you have the time and interest, members

         18  of each of these faiths could appear for testimony.

         19  They would consider it well worth the time if such

         20  testimony could help more of their colleagues

         21  receive our services.

         22                 Quite frankly, the attention given to

         23  these non issues, and the tone of the discourse

         24  regarding them, can only be characterized as

         25  bigotry.  The worst thing is, that this hate speech
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          2   --  and there is no other word for it  --

          3  overshadows the only important issue: This program

          4  has helped hundreds of rescue workers. That is what

          5  any sane, compassionate person would find worthy of

          6  attention.

          7                 Given the magnitude of the rescue

          8  workers' health problems, it would be extremely

          9  irresponsible to allow bigotry and ignorance to get

         10  in the way of a program that has brought relief in

         11  hundreds of cases, where all else has failed.

         12                 Our agenda is simple: We want to help

         13  the rescue workers.  We are accomplishing this.  End

         14  of story.

         15                 We are well aware that this project

         16  did not arrive on the usual channels, and that in

         17  the world of politics, it takes considerable courage

         18  to do something different.  I want to thank you Mr.

         19  Chairman, and the Labor Relations Committee Members,

         20  for having the courage to hold this hearing, and to

         21  include a project which surely has a different

         22  approach that's handling the health problems of the

         23  rescue workers, our heroes, but has been

         24  demonstrated, over the course of four years, to be

         25  effective.
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          2                 We need your help, and I can assure

          3  you that the rescue workers need and want what we

          4  have to offer.  Thank you very much.

          5                 MR. GLEASON: Good evening Chairman

          6  Addabbo and the Civil Service and Labor Committee

          7  here at the New York City Council.  My name is Peter

          8  Gleason, and I'm a retired New York City firefighter

          9  and now a practicing attorney.

         10                 Five years after the attack on the

         11  World Trade Center, thousands of rescue workers

         12  remain ill.  Conventional medicine has few answers.

         13  Worse, the brave men and women who answered the call

         14  on 9- 11 are still waiting for the City

         15  Administration to treat them as individual human

         16  beings, rather than a set of replaceable,

         17  interchangeable numbers.  I believe that's the bean

         18  counters we heard people referring to earlier on in

         19  the testimony.

         20                 It's not enough to make speeches.

         21  It's not enough to set aside money for so- called

         22  treatment that turns out to be nothing more than

         23  health surveys and medication to suppress symptoms

         24  that just won't go away.  We should be guided by the

         25  fearless determination that was commonplace at
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          2  Ground Zero.  We should be seeing daily evidence

          3  that no one in government or public health will rest

          4  until a path is found that leads to recovery of the

          5  health and quality of life.  Unfortunately, we are

          6  not.

          7                 Certain public officials just don't

          8  seem to get it. It's apparent that some of these

          9  public officials gauge the tenor of their public

         10  statements by weighing the political ramifications,

         11  rather than the truth of the issue at hand.

         12  Unfortunately, this sends the wrong message  --

         13  this sends the message that the City could care less

         14  about its emergency service personnel, our first

         15  line of defense against terrorism and other

         16  disasters.  I can assure you, this sends a very

         17  dangerous message that will be transmitted through

         18  generations of City employees.  Not only is it

         19  inhumane, it's bad business.

         20                 I had retired from the FDNY prior to

         21  9- 11, but nonetheless, rejoined my former

         22  colleagues during the first week of the rescue and

         23  recovery operations.  This was enough exposure to

         24  put me into a chronic respiratory condition.  The

         25  tightness in my chest began soon after, though it
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          2  took a while for the damage to my immune system to

          3  bring the inflammation into full- blown asthma,

          4  chronic sinusitis, and unremitting acid reflux.

          5                 By about a year after my exposure, I

          6  had a tremendous amount of difficulty breathing.  I

          7  had no choice but to grab for the drugs that were

          8  offered.  It was quite simply a choice between

          9  breathing and not breathing.  Along with these were

         10  many courses of antibiotics for chronic sinus

         11  infections, drugs treating only the secondary

         12  effects of the damage.

         13                 Representing many of these injured

         14  rescue workers gave me a truly good reason to fight

         15  to breathe.  As one who has suffered the after

         16  effects of toxic exposure with them, I felt I was in

         17  a unique position to serve as their attorney.

         18                 I grew quite frustrated over the next

         19  four years. My medication began to have less and

         20  less of an impact on my symptoms.  When I first

         21  heard about the detoxification from one of my

         22  clients, I had the fairly standard response: Drug

         23  and alcohol detox.  Than I discovered that the word

         24  referred to a procedure, the Hubbard sauna

         25  detoxification, that was vastly improving my
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          2  clients' health.

          3                 Based on the results of a number of

          4  my clients, which they shared with me, I decided to

          5  take a month off from work to participate in this

          6  detoxification.  During the 35 days while I was

          7  going through it, I have to be honest, I was

          8  thinking what the hell am I doing here?  But when

          9  it's over, it becomes absolutely clear why I did it.

         10    I felt great, breathing more freely than I had in

         11  quite some time.  With increased lung capacity came

         12  heightened stamina, greatly improved energy level,

         13  and an overall terrific quality of life.

         14                 I'm convinced that it is critical

         15  that other rescue workers should have choices beyond

         16  the "time will heal" approach that has left so many

         17  waiting in vain for the day that their health will

         18  return.  This form of chemical detoxification was a

         19  positive alternative that has helped hundreds.  To

         20  advocate for choice of treatment, I agreed to chair

         21  an organization called "Rescue Workers for Health

         22  and Justice".

         23                 However, we have a long road ahead of

         24  us.  For starters, the New York City Health

         25  Commissioner, Thomas Frieden, needs to publicly

                                                            213

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  address and justify his unsubstantiated findings

          3  that there was no correlation between the death of

          4  NYPD Detective James Zadroga and his exposure to the

          5  toxic World Trade Center cloud of 9- 11.

          6                 Interestingly enough, I saw Dr.

          7  Frieden come into this very building today at

          8  approximately 2:30, and he is conspicuously absent

          9  from these proceedings.

         10                 If firefighters and police officers

         11  can get paid leave for alcohol detoxification, they

         12  should be extended the same privilege for chemical

         13  detoxification.  This is certainly a job related

         14  issue.  While it's highly commendable that hundreds

         15  of individuals, along with numerous foundations and

         16  corporations have donated funds to make this program

         17  free to rescue workers, it should be covered through

         18  insurance and/or governmental funding.            In

         19  addition to helping men and women regain their

         20  health, we need a breath of fresh air to sweep away

         21  the emotional toxicity of 9- 11.  City officials

         22  could send a healing message by taking visible steps

         23  towards including this program in the option

         24  available to rescue workers.

         25                 I thank you for your time.

                                                            214

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I thank you for

          3  your time and your testimony.  To this panel, just a

          4  couple of quick questions. You had mentioned it

          5  earlier about notice to the workforce that this

          6  program exists.  And obviously, if you feel that our

          7  agencies are not doing it amongst themselves, have

          8  you ever considered to reach out, and you saw many

          9  union representatives here today, they all have

         10  names and addresses.  Have you ever considered

         11  reaching out to the heads of the unions to say, hey,

         12  we were here if you want to give us a shot?

         13                 MR. WOODWORTH: Yes.  As a matter of

         14  fact, the President of the DIA, John Flemming, his

         15  union fully supports us. We've treated numerous

         16  members, from the Detectives Investigative

         17  Association for all the District Attorneys.  Local

         18  78, we have hundreds of Local 78, the Lead,

         19  Asbestos, and Hazardous Materials Workers Union

         20  individuals in the waiting list.  We've treated well

         21  over a hundred of them.  I've met with the EMT,

         22  Paramedic EMT Pat Bahnken.  We've treated numerous

         23  members from the Paramedic EMT unions.  And

         24  tomorrow, I have people from the PBA coming to tour

         25  the project.  And there's a number of other unions.
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          2  So the word amongst the unions now is that this

          3  program works.  And their members are getting

          4  better.  The problem is, we do not have enough money

          5  to  --  for example, we have 125 New York City

          6  police officers who have signed up for our program

          7  in the last four weeks alone.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well we're going

          9  to get to the money in a second.  How many currently

         10  have your treated already? And how many workers are

         11  still in the pipeline, being treated?

         12                 MR. WOODWORTH: Seven hundred and

         13  sixteen.  Our 716th patient was completed this

         14  morning.  And we have probably 20 to 25 people

         15  currently  --  because we have limited space right

         16  now  -- but we have hundreds and hundreds  --

         17  Staten Island, Upstate New York, that are just

         18  waiting for us to have the funding to be able to put

         19  them on the program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So you have a

         21  waiting list of hundreds.

         22                 MR. WOODWORTH: Well, 125 police

         23  officers.  We have another 200 plus Local 78

         24  workers.  And then, if I added up all the other

         25  different types of workers from sanitation workers
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          2  to iron workers, carpenters, firefighters, that's

          3  another probably 150 to 200.  So there's hundreds

          4  and hundreds.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Now without the

          6  governmental funding, how have you been able to

          7  sustain yourself?  Totally private donations?

          8                 MR. WOODWORTH: Yes.  We did receive

          9  $630,000 from the City Council; $10,000 initially

         10  from Margarita Lopez, from her Discretionary funds;

         11  another $20,000 from former Council Member Lopez.

         12  Then she secured a $300,000 contract for six

         13  sanitation workers, which we fulfilled.  The final

         14  $300,000 contract was held up until June 30th, so we

         15  were not able to access that for the other 65 or 70

         16  sanitation workers that wanted our services.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you claim

         18  that roughly, your success rate is about 90 percent

         19  or so.

         20                 MR. WOODWORTH: And that's being you

         21  know, very conservative.  Dr. Root could probably

         22  speak better as to the numbers of individuals who

         23  come off medications, and reductions in symptoms.

         24  And I believe he's going to provide some statistics

         25  for you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Lastly, I just

          3  do want to complement you in bringing up the

          4  criticisms.  Obviously, in the past, we've heard

          5  about those criticisms, and what has been said about

          6  the detoxification project.  I'm glad you brought

          7  that up and brought it to the forefront.  So

          8  hopefully, in the future, we can, again, we want to

          9  promote any project that's going to help our City

         10  workforce.  So to get rid of the obstacles and go

         11  foreword in trying to help our workforce, I

         12  appreciate that.

         13                 MR. WOODWORTH: Thank you sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         15  much for your time and testimony today.

         16                 MR. WOODWORTH: You're welcome sir.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         18                 Our next panel  --  I understand Dr.

         19  Phyllis Gelb is not here, but her testimony will be

         20  read into the record now.  Pat Lydon, a rescue

         21  worker, and is it Lindy?  Aubrey Linde.  Did I get

         22  it right?  Aubrey, please step forward.  The rescue

         23  worker as well. We'll call up also Steve Mona, a

         24  rescue worker, I Bolivia.  Thank you Steve.

         25                 And again, I want to thank you all
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          2  for being here today.  And for your patience, most

          3  importantly.  Flip a coin, do an arm wrestle, or

          4  whatever you need to do, but figure out who wants to

          5  speak first.  Please state your name and then give

          6  your testimony.

          7                 DR. ROOT: Chairman Addabbo, I'll go

          8  first.  I'm reading the statement of Dr. Phyllis

          9  Gelb.  And I'll just read it verbatim if I may, and

         10  she has included with her statement a copy of the

         11  Townsend Letter, which has an article in it

         12  regarding the detox program, which can give you

         13  quite a bit more detail about the program and the

         14  elements of the program, which may be helpful to

         15  you.

         16                 And I quote   --  My name is Phyllis

         17  Geld.  I have asked my colleague, Dr. Root to read

         18  my testimony today, due to the fact that I have lost

         19  my voice due to a nagging cold.

         20                 I am the treating physician providing

         21  medical oversight for the rescue workers who undergo

         22  detoxification.               First, I would like to

         23  thank the Chair and the Committee Members for

         24  calling this important hearing.  Like most New

         25  Yorkers, I want to do everything I can to help the
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          2  rescue workers who serve us so well.

          3                 To date, this project has helped more

          4  than 700 men and women.  It is my privilege to be of

          5  service to these brave men and women.  The

          6  recoveries that I am seeing on a daily basis

          7  continue to surprise me.  They are a dramatic

          8  contrast to the sad stories that appear in our

          9  papers, and the dire predictions of life- long

         10  illness that we have heard recently from health

         11  officials.

         12                 I consider it a good result if a

         13  patient comes to me with a complaint, and the remedy

         14  that I offer causes the compliant to decrease

         15  significantly, or vanish altogether.  My experience

         16  tells me that we can expect this to be the case when

         17  an individual fully completes the detoxification

         18  program.

         19                 We are doing all we can to rigorously

         20  monitor these outcomes.  A recent report on nearly

         21  500 cases completing the detox program, provides

         22  ample evidence that this therapeutic intervention

         23  warrants further study, and may well offer the most

         24  cost- effective and humanitarian means for providing

         25  relief to rescue workers still suffering.  I am
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          2  providing you with a copy of this report today.

          3                 The cases reviewed report remarkable

          4  severity reduction in each of ten categories of

          5  symptoms associated with chemical exposures.  As a

          6  result, 84 percent of clients who had required

          7  medications to manage symptoms related to the World

          8  Trade Center exposure, were able to discontinue

          9  their use by program end. These outcomes are all the

         10  more significant in view of the fact that a number

         11  of the medications that rescue workers have now been

         12  taking for years, were not intended for long- term

         13  use.  They are being prescribed in combinations that

         14  are governed by the symptoms commonly seen, not on

         15  the basis of established science.

         16                 The effort is to suppress symptoms

         17  enough to make life bearable.  By contrast,

         18  detoxification appears to be restoring function and

         19  balance to the body, eliminating the need for

         20  symptomatic medication.

         21                 From an environmental health

         22  perspective, the events of 9- 11 are so complex and

         23  unprecedented that they will never fully be

         24  understood.  No one can claim certainty regarding

         25  their eventual consequences.
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          2                 However, from a humanitarian

          3  perspective, and taking into account my basic

          4  responsibility to ease suffering, I consider it a

          5  profound injustice for the rescue workers to suffer

          6  if means exist to relieve their suffering.

          7                 We are not dealing with statistics.

          8  We are dealing with men and women who have spouses

          9  and families, who come to this project in despair,

         10  beaten down, without hope, without energy, to live

         11  their lives or pursue their dreams.  They regain

         12  hope and quality of life as a result of what we

         13  offer them.  I consider this to be an excellent

         14  outcome.  We are seeing these improvements retained

         15  stably in individuals who completed the program as

         16  long ago as 2002.

         17                 We cannot predict what their long-

         18  term condition will be, but there is do doubt that

         19  detoxification resulted in major improvements in

         20  their quality of life, from basic health to their

         21  work fitness and family relationships.  It was the

         22  right thing to do.

         23                 The hundreds of men and women who can

         24  attest to the benefits of this program include

         25  battalion chiefs, captains, members of elite rescue
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          2  squads, paramedics, and police officers. People New

          3  Yorkers respect, trust, and depend upon above all

          4  others.  They are what matters most to me and to

          5  this project.

          6                 The last word we've had from the

          7  public health community is that it will take decades

          8  to fully understand the health impact of 9- 11

          9  exposure.  This is important work, but it offers no

         10  relief to those who are suffering now.

         11                 I hope that your leadership can

         12  change this.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MR. LINDIE: Good afternoon Chairman,

         15  and the staff here.  My name is Aubrey Lindie.  I'm

         16  an EMT and I work for the New York City Fire

         17  Department for 18 years.  Like many of my fellow

         18  rescue workers, I worked at the World Trade Center

         19  site practically every day for several months, from

         20  9- 11 on.  We never looked at it as we had to work

         21  at the site, we just did what was right, and what we

         22  had to do.

         23                 For about a year, I didn't really

         24  give much thought to my health.  Then I started

         25  notice post- nasal drip, lots of coughing, and
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          2  frequent cold symptoms.  I just was not myself.  I

          3  have six beautiful kids and found myself not being

          4  able to keep up with them.  I tried vitamins, and

          5  other herbs that a doctors have prescribed for me.

          6  It was no help.

          7                 When I saw a doctor, he indicated

          8  that it could be from the effects of 9- 11 related

          9  exposures.  There was a growing number of reports

         10  that started to appear around that time, linking

         11  declining health of rescue workers to the exposure

         12  at World Trade Center site.

         13                 I could no longer ignore my declining

         14  health.  My cough had became more and more

         15  consistent as the continuing need to spit and the

         16  nasal drip  --  it was very horrible.  It was like a

         17  constant head cold and cough.  Doctors give me

         18  various medication, but they made me very tired and

         19  sleepy most of the time.

         20                 I found out about the detox from a

         21  fellow EMT.  I now have been in the program for 38

         22  days, and close to completion. And my muscle ache,

         23  pain, spasm, is pretty much subsided.  I now feel

         24  revitalized and it's much easier for me to handle my

         25  life.  My sleeping is much improved, better.  I'm
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          2  more vibrant and energetic with my kids.  They also

          3  notice it, and my wife.

          4                 I was referred by my supervisor, a

          5  lieutenant, and would like to thank him for

          6  referring me, and I would also like to thank Dr.

          7  Gelb and the staff, the fine staff at the New York

          8  City Rescue Detoxification Program for helping me to

          9  get my life back on track.

         10                 And finally, thank you to this

         11  Committee for taking the time to listen.  Everybody

         12  should have a choice when it comes to their health

         13  care, and getting well from after 9- 11.  I hope

         14  that you are able to make this program one of the

         15  options for all who served on that day.  Thanks for

         16  your time.

         17                 MR. LYDON: Good afternoon.  My name

         18  is Patrick Lydon.  I'm a recent retiree from the New

         19  York City Police Department.  I served 20 years in

         20  the Police Department and retired on a normal

         21  pension.  When I was going to retire, I heard about

         22  Jim Woodworth speaking to a bunch of police officers

         23  that had been seriously injured in the line of duty.

         24    Most of them had been shot over the years, and

         25  they have a self- support group.
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          2                 In listening to Jim  --  the reason I

          3  listened to him is because my best friend, who

          4  served six months down at Ground Zero, has

          5  emphysema, and is blowing a three on the pulmonary

          6  function test.  I said, well maybe this is something

          7  for me to help a friend.  A fellow police officer.

          8  I listened, and I said, I have the acid reflux, I

          9  have the sinus problems, I have the short- term

         10  memory loss.  And I decided that when I retired,

         11  that I would do the program.

         12                 Excuse me one second.

         13                 So I was entered into the program.

         14  Part of the reason for me doing the program is that

         15  on December 25, 1976, my father died.  I was at the

         16  age of 12.  And my mother raised my siblings and

         17  myself, and did a fine job.  Okay?  But his own

         18  ignorance was part of the reason that he died.  That

         19  being said, I decided that I was going to be

         20  proactive in my own health, for my own children.

         21                 I didn't realize how sick I was until

         22  I actually completed the program, and felt so much

         23  better.  During the course of the program, I sneezed

         24  blood, I coughed blood, I had a variety of different

         25  things come out of my body.  Sweating grey out of
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          2  the souls of my feet.

          3                 We were all born to die.  But none of

          4  us had a problem with going there.  I was actually

          5  off on 9- 11, to respond down to the site, because

          6  it was our job.  That is what we were supposed to

          7  do.  And we did it, and we did it well.

          8                 I'm not looking to point blame at

          9  anybody, okay?  I just have a problem with me

         10  writing a check  --  actually, I don't have a

         11  problem with that, because I did it willingly  --

         12  writing a check to Jim Woodworth, because you know

         13  what?  I'm still a cop. I'm still supposed to save

         14  lives.  So I'll spend my own money to help another

         15  cop.

         16                 You gentlemen are the elected

         17  officials.  Okay?  It is your turn to be a hero.  If

         18  you see a kid running out into the middle of the

         19  street, you're going to go and you're going to stop

         20  and you're going to try and save that child.  You

         21  see a man drowning, you're going to pick up a line,

         22  you're going to throw him a line.  It might not be

         23  conventional medicine.  Okay?  But if conventional

         24  medicine had all the answers we would have a cure

         25  for AIDS, we would have a cure for cancer, and there
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          2  would be no Jerry's Kids.

          3                 I think we deserve an option to try.

          4  To get some of the poisons out of our body.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 MR. MONA: Mr. Chair, Committee

          7  Members, thank you for the opportunity to speak to

          8  you today.  My name is Steve Mona. I served the New

          9  York City Police Department for 21 years, retiring a

         10  few months ago as a Lieutenant.  As did many of us,

         11  I worked at the site from September 11, six or seven

         12  days a week, through October, and then continued for

         13  a few days a week until the end of that year.

         14                 I'll say right off that my exposure

         15  is certainly a lot less than the firefighters, cops,

         16  and iron workers, Port Authority Police, and others

         17  who were in the thick of it for much longer than I

         18  was.  It got me to wondering, if I was as sick as I

         19  was, how sick could they be?  Their symptoms have to

         20  be worse than mine, or eventually, they're going to

         21  become worse than mine.

         22                 Before my exposures, I wasn't overly

         23  active, but I was in good shape for my age.  I had a

         24  good active lifestyle.  For me, the breathing

         25  difficulty came on within six months of the
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          2  exposures, so I started to go to doctors for help.

          3                 What I didn't realize at that time

          4  was that I was attributing a lot of what was going

          5  on with me to just old age. Then I began comparing

          6  notes with others, and I realized it was not just me

          7  getting old.  It got to the point where I could

          8  barely walk for any length of time.  I could not

          9  talk without getting winded. I put on 45 pounds in

         10  the six months following 9- 11.  I had aches and

         11  pains in my arms, tingling and numbness in my hands,

         12  and I would just shake it off, thinking, oh I'm just

         13  getting older.

         14                 First, I thought I was having a heart

         15  attack, before I realized, well, it's in both hands,

         16  so I'm a little less worried. I went to doctors.  I

         17  had a stress test, and it showed my heart was okay.

         18  I was told that my problem was probably my lungs.

         19  Then I went to a lung specialist, and I was told I

         20  was okay.  Well I knew I wasn't imagining being out

         21  of breath.  One doctor said that he had seen people

         22  who were exposed and had health problems from the

         23  World Trade Center, and that I was not sick, and

         24  didn't have what they had.  It just didn't make any

         25  sense, though.  I had never smoked, and I couldn't
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          2  breathe right.  I couldn't even walk down to the

          3  lake by my house without getting winded.

          4                 I was given steroids and other

          5  medications, but I did not feel they were helping,

          6  and the steroids were causing me to put on more

          7  weight.  So I ended up stopped taking them on my

          8  own. I was however, given an inhaler for

          9  emergencies.

         10                 I am the National Secretary of a law

         11  enforcement and military motorcycle club which has

         12  supported this project, and one of our contributors

         13  knew how my health had suffered.  He wanted me to

         14  get to the program and get some relief.  It took me

         15  a while to call, but I finally got tired of being

         16  sick, and picked up the phone.

         17                 I have only been in the program for

         18  five days now, but I have already noticed changes.

         19  I'm hopeful.  I have talked to others who have been

         20  helped by Dr. Gelb and the others at the New York

         21  Rescue Workers Detox Project.  The results speak for

         22  themselves.  Many of these individuals went through

         23  the program three or four years ago, and they

         24  continue to enjoy good health. I sincerely hope I'm

         25  one of them.
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          2                 We should all have the choice of what

          3  we want to do to get our health back to normal.  It

          4  seems ridiculous to spend thousands year after year

          5  for medical care and medications when it might just

          6  be possible to address some of the underlying

          7  causes. This program could be the solution that just

          8  makes sense financially as being very fair- minded

          9  for those who served

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         12  much.  And before I go further, let me thank you all

         13  for your efforts at you know, on the days and weeks

         14  and months that followed after 9- 11. Thank you for

         15  your dedication to the City and to those who you

         16  were trying to help.  That being said, a question.

         17  To the workers who went through the program, or who

         18  are going through the program, it's no  cost,

         19  correct?

         20                 MR. MONA: Correct.  It hasn't cost me

         21  anything.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Correct. Okay.

         23  And again, I have heard the criticisms.  I have

         24  heard, you know, the joking that has gone on about

         25  this program  and what it's based on.  I'm going to
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          2  ask you point blank, I don't know of your religious

          3  affiliations, but were you, at any point, asked to

          4  convert?  Or were you coerced into changing your

          5  religious belief?

          6                 MR. MONA: One of the people I met

          7  when I went down to speak to them was a gentleman

          8  named Joe Higgins, who is a fireman.  And he's with

          9  the  --  he had been through the program. Remarkable

         10  recovery.  He had a brother who died in 9- 11, and

         11  the first thing I said to Joe  --  we got friendly

         12  because we both ride motorcycles  --  and I said,

         13   "Joe, you know, what's the deal". And he said,

         14  look, I'm a good Irish Catholic.  I go to church

         15  every Sunday.  I said, "No, you don't go to church

         16  every Sunday Joe".  He goes, all right, I really

         17  don't go, but I try to go.  But I've been with these

         18  people for four years, he goes, and it's secular,

         19  they don't care what religion you are.  They just

         20  want you to get well.

         21                 MR. LYDON: Chairman Addabbo, part of

         22  me and my persona is I want to know.  You know, part

         23  of the reason I became a cop and was a detective

         24  was, I wanted to know.  So I pressed and I asked

         25  several times, because I wanted to know, what is
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          2  this Scientology stuff?  And you know, I don't

          3  understand why you left your home in Washington

          4  these two  --  this couple, Ken and Val, who are now

          5  friends of mine  --  but I don't understand why you

          6  left, and why you came here.  Because it was the

          7  right thing to do. But what is it about Scientology?

          8    And they said, you know what? It's not a forum to

          9  discuss that.  Okay?  And I said, no, no, no. And I

         10  asked them on more than one occasion, because I

         11  wanted answers.  We will discuss it at another point

         12  in time.  This is not a forum to discuss it.

         13                 I say I'd asked probably half a dozen

         14  times.  In my 37 days of doing the program, I have

         15  learned that I was truly blessed to have met two

         16  selfless individuals.  They gave of themselves for

         17  so many, to help so many.  I had them over to the

         18  house for barbecues, and that was after the program.

         19    And I still pressed them on Scientology.  And they

         20  said no.  We don't want to cloud anything.  So

         21  that's my story.

         22                 DR. ROOT: If I may just comment.

         23  I've been administering this detoxification program

         24  for 24 years, since 1982. I'm an elder in the

         25  Presbyterian Church, and they have never asked me to
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          2  join the Church of Scientology.  It's a non- secular

          3  program. We do give attribution to L. Ron Hubbard,

          4  who came up with the program, and that's only fair

          5  in my feeling.  But it's not about religion at all,

          6  it's about helping people and about getting these

          7  toxic chemicals out of the system.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  So now

          9  that we get that issue out of the way, and we get

         10  that psychological hurdle that people may have out

         11  of the way and look at, I guess, the you know,

         12  beneficial effects of the detoxification project,

         13  how do you feel we should move in getting this

         14  program  --  and even other programs that may exist

         15  out there, that may be beneficial  --  how do you

         16  get them to the mainstream workers who need the

         17  help?  I need suggestions.

         18                 MR. MONA: Number one, I feel, and my

         19  heart bled for some of these rescue workers that

         20  have suffered so horribly financially, losing their

         21  homes et cetera.  One, it should be covered under

         22  Workman's Comp under New York State.  Okay?  It's

         23  just  --  I think that's a no- brainer.  I think you

         24  can turn around, look at California State law, okay?

         25    Say if they're using it for their firefighters out
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          2  there.  It should be implemented here.  Okay?  The

          3  police and fire are 20- year career.  Okay?  So five

          4  years ago, I only had 15 years on the job.  Five

          5  years later, I'm retired.  Okay?  So every year that

          6  goes on, you're going to have less and less exposure

          7  and more and more retirees.  And then you know what?

          8    Once you're retired, you're out of the loop.  So

          9  the pension section is  --  I don't know about any

         10  of the other unions, but for the New York City

         11  Police Department, the pension section has a listing

         12  of everybody, or every retiree that has retired

         13  since 9- 11 forward.  Okay?  So they should have a

         14  mass mailing that you know what?  This program is

         15  offered.  Okay?  If you're feeling  --  if you have

         16  acid reflux, short- term memory loss, achy joints,

         17  chronic cough, sinusitis, sinus surgeries, cancers,

         18  whatever the case might be, that this  --  you

         19  should have a mass mailing to every member, because

         20  it's only the right thing to do.  That these are

         21  some of the symptoms.  That is should be addressed

         22  on a State level, as far as Workmen's Comp.  It

         23  should be addressed on a federal level.

         24                 I have a lot of sympathy for the poor

         25  people that lost their family members down on 9- 11,
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          2  but they all got paid.  I really don't care about a

          3  monument for the dead when I'm alive.  I don't want

          4  to hear about 500 billion dollars for a monument,

          5  when, you know, you have gentlemen and women that

          6  risked their lives because it was their job, and

          7  they're having hard times paying medical bills.  It

          8  just doesn't correlate with me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, like I

         10  said, your concern is the concern of many.  And what

         11  you're doing here today, by giving this testimony,

         12  is putting a face to the problem, and actually, in

         13  the sense, a successful program face to the problem.

         14  And that's why we appreciate not only your patience

         15  today, but your testimony.  So I thank you very

         16  much.  And thank you for being the last panel today.

         17    Thank you.

         18                 Ladies and gentlemen, that will

         19  conclude our hearing. You know, after five hours of

         20  testimony, and five hours of you know, listening to

         21  issues, the bottom line is, we have a lot of work to

         22  do.  Thank you.  We have a lot of work to do.

         23  Again, I do appreciate your time and patience today.

         24    We will keep in touch about how do we go forward.

         25                 Just let me wrap up by saying, you
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          2  know, we've mentioned that we thank the workers for

          3  what they did.  I think one way we show thank you

          4  and gratification is by doing the right thing and

          5  helping these workers.  And especially by

          6  eliminating the out of- pocket expenses getting the

          7  treatment that they need.  So again, I'd like to

          8  thank all of the workers who showed up today, and

          9  their union representatives for, again, testifying.

         10  And all put together we can effectuate positive

         11  change for the better for the workers and their

         12  families.

         13                 Again, I want to thank the Sergeant-

         14  at- Arms for allowing us to come back here and

         15  finish up the hearing.  So I want to thank my staff

         16  for hanging in their with me, and my colleagues,

         17  thank you very much.  And the meeting is finally

         18  adjourned.

         19                 (The following written testimony was

         20  read into the record.)

         21

         22

         23                 Report submitted by:

         24                 Patrick Lych, President, New York

         25  City PBA
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          2                 The table below shows data received

          3  from some of our members. We are in the process of

          4  gathering as much as possible of this type of

          5  information. Please call (212) 298- 9162 to report

          6  illnesses to the PBA Registry or inquire about the

          7  WTC health related issues.

          8                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Burning of

          9  esophagus, Diagnosed Illness: Acid reflux, Hiatel

         10  hernia (life long), Time spent at Ground Zero: Lab

         11  (ten years), Morgue (two weeks), WTC (one week)

         12                 Age: 35, Sex: M, Symptoms: Persistent

         13  cough, chest pain, decreased immune system,

         14  Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Asthma, Rheumatoid

         15  arthritis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (120

         16  hours, started working on the third day.

         17                 Age: 52, Sex: M, Symptoms: Info not

         18  submitted, Diagnosed Illness: Throat cancer, Time

         19  spent at Ground Zero: Not given.

         20                 Age: 49, Sex: M, Symptoms: No

         21  symptoms, Diagnosed Illness: Aorta aneurysm, Time

         22  spent at Ground Zero: Ground Zero (one month).

         23                 Age: 37, Sex: F, Symptoms: Shortness

         24  of breath, Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time

         25  spent at Ground Zero: Clean up (bucket brigade,
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          2  Security at WTC (4 months).

          3                 Age: 42, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

          4  of breath, Diagnosed Illness: Reactive AOA

          5  disfunction syndrome (occupational asthma), Time

          6  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (between 400 and 500

          7  hours).

          8                 Age: 33, Sex: M, Symptoms: Chronic

          9  cough, Diagnosed Illness: Post- traumatic stress,

         10  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC, Fresh Kills.

         11                 Age: 40, Sex: F, Symptoms: No

         12  symptoms, Diagnosed Illness- Rectal cancer, Time

         13  spent at Ground Zero: Security at Ground Zero (one

         14  month).

         15                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: No

         16  symptoms, Blood urine, Diagnosed Illness: Renal cell

         17  cancer (kidney cancer). Time spent at Ground Zero:

         18  WTC- security (two weeks).

         19                 Age: 37, Sex: M, Symptoms: Extended

         20  cough, Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time spent at

         21  Ground Zero: WTC (two weeks)- security and traffic

         22  control.

         23                 Age: 43, Sex:M, Symptoms: Info not

         24  given, Diagnosed Illness: Bile- duct cancer

         25  (deceased), Time spent at Ground Zero: First
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          2  Responder- WTC (six months).

          3                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: Tightness

          4  in chest, high blood pressure, Diagnosed Illness:

          5  Info not given, Time spent at Ground Zero: Security

          6  in hot zone (30 days).

          7                 Age: 35, Sex: M, Symptoms: Lump on

          8  neck, Diagnosed Illness: Thyroid cancer, Stage two

          9  multiple myeloma, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (12

         10  days), S.I. Landfill (61 days).

         11                 Age: 33, Sex: M, Symptoms: Headaches,

         12  Diagnosed Illness: Brain cancer, Time spent at

         13  Ground Zero: WTC (two weeks), Bucket brigade,

         14  security.

         15                 Age: 34, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         16  breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Pulmonary disease,

         17  respiratory failure (deceased), Time spent at Ground

         18  Zero: WTC (three months).

         19                 Age: 47, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         20  of breath, joint stiffness, Diagnosed Illness: Heart

         21  attack, Sarcoidosis (deceased), Time spent at Ground

         22  Zero: WTC (three months).

         23                 Age: 39, Sex: F, Symptoms: No

         24  symptoms, Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time spent

         25  at Ground Zero: WTC (one month).
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          2                 Age: 42, Sex: M, Symptoms: Bronchitis

          3  (three times), Pneumonia, shortness of breath, loss

          4  of intake, Diagnosed Illness: Chronic lung disease,

          5  Time spent at Ground Zero: Morgue (nine months).

          6                 Age: 38, Sex: F, Symptoms: Joint

          7  pain, Shortness of breath and chest pain, Diagnosed

          8  Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

          9  (five days).

         10                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: Swelling

         11  of hands, shortness of breath, high hemoglobin

         12  level, Diagnosed Illness: Scarred lung tissue, Time

         13  spent at Ground Zero: WTC, S.I. Landfill.

         14                 Age: 41, Sex: M, Symptoms: Irregular

         15  heartbeat, shortness of breath, eyes were burned,

         16  Diagnosed Illness: Tumor in left lung, Debris,

         17  scarring, loss of function in right lung, Cataracts,

         18  Time spent at Ground Zero: South tower on 9- 11, WTC

         19  (one year- periodically).

         20                 Age: 34, Sex M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         21  breathing, tightness in chest, Diagnosed Illness:

         22  Blocked airway, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (five

         23  days at 12 hours).

         24                 Age: 41, Sex: M, Symptoms: Felt a

         25  mass in abdomen, trouble breathing, skin rashes,
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          2  Diagnosed Illness: Lymphoma, Time spent at Ground

          3  Zero: WTC (three months).

          4                 Age: 32, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

          5  of breath, chest pains, Diagnosed Illness: Asthma,

          6  Time spent at Ground zero: S.I. Landfill (one week),

          7  WTC (one week).

          8                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Weight

          9  loss, shortness of breath, loss of appetite, dry

         10  mouth, Diagnosed Illness: Pulmonary sarcoidosis,

         11  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (30 days).

         12                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Coughing

         13  blood and shortness of breath, Diagnosed Illness:

         14  BOOP, Bronchitis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         15  (start to finish), First responder.

         16                 Age: 36, Sex: M, Symptoms: Coughing,

         17  shortness of breath, wheezing, extreme heartburn,

         18  Diagnosed Illness: Asthma, RADS, Sleep Apnea, Time

         19  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (four months).

         20                 Age: 39, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         21  breathing, fatigue, increase sensibility to heat,

         22  Diagnosed Illness: Pulmonary restricted lung

         23  disease, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one week),

         24  S.I. Landfill (one week), First Responder.

         25                 Age: 45, Sex: M, Symptoms: Anxiety,
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          2  Diagnosed Illness: Hypertension, Time spent at

          3  Ground Zero: WTC (15 days).

          4                 Age: 42, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

          5  breathing, fatigued, Diagnosed Illness: Prostate

          6  cancer, Sleep apnea, Restrictive lung disease, Time

          7  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (four months), First

          8  Responder.

          9                 Age: 42, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         10  of breath, coughing, Diagnosed Illness: Chronic

         11  Obstructive Pulmonary Disease, Asthma, Time Spent at

         12  Ground Zero: WTC (six months).

         13                 Age: 34, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         14  breathing, fatigue, anxiety, Diagnosed Illness:

         15  Decreased airway, High blood pressure, Time Spent at

         16  Ground Zero: WTC (three months).

         17                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Coughing

         18  up blood, persistent cough and wheezing, gasping,

         19  Diagnosed Illness: Cardiomyopathy, Chronic heart

         20  failure, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (3 months).

         21  First Responder.

         22                 Age: 45, Sex: F, Symptoms: Swelling

         23  of the joints, pain in the bones, hips, Tumors,

         24  Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time spent at Ground

         25  Zero: WTC (six weeks).
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          2                 Age: 34, Sex: M, Symptoms: Vomiting,

          3  difficulty breathing, chest pains, diarrhea, dizzy

          4  spells, Diagnosed Illness:

          5  Asthma, GERD, Post- traumatic stress, Chemical

          6  induced bronchitis, Acid reflux, Time spent at

          7  Ground Zero: WTC (three weeks), First Responder.

          8                 Age: 37, Sex: M, Symptoms: Colds,

          9  difficulty breathing, winded, fatigue, Diagnosed

         10  Illness: Chronic sinusitis, Time spent at Ground

         11  Zero: WTC, S.I. Landfill (one month and a half)

         12                 Age: 30, Sex: F, symptoms: Swelling

         13  of the joints, swelling of the lymphoid, numbness of

         14  arms and legs, Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time

         15  spent at Ground Zero: WTC, S.I. Landfill and Morgue

         16  (five weeks).

         17                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         18  breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Chronic sinusitis,

         19  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (six months).

         20                 Age: 42, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         21  breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Chronic sinusitis,

         22  Diminished lung capacity, Reflux, Time spent at

         23  Ground Zero: WTC (nine months).

         24                 Age: 47, Sex: M, Symptoms: Relatively

         25  no symptoms, coughing, Diagnosed Illness: Heart
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          2  Attack, Triple bypass, Advanced Throat Cancer, Acid

          3  Reflux, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three

          4  months), First Responder.

          5                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Upper

          6  respiratory infection, shortness of breath,

          7  Diagnosed Illness: Acid reflux, GURD, Esphogitis,

          8  Reactive airways disease, Dispenia, Extra thoracic

          9  airways disease, Sleep Apnea, Seizures, Time spent

         10  at Ground Zero: WTC (four months).

         11                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         12  breathing, fatigue, wheezing, Diagnosed Illness:

         13  Bronchitis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (four

         14  months).

         15                 Age: 38, Sex: F, Symptoms: Abdominal

         16  pain, heavy bleeding, fatigued, Diagnosed Illness:

         17  Adenoid carcinoma, Carcinoid (stomach, gall bladder,

         18  uterus, fallopian tube, ovaries, appendix and colon,

         19  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two months) First

         20  Responder.

         21                 Age: 39, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         22  of breath, Diagnosed Illness: Decreased lung

         23  capacity, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three

         24  months) First responder.

         25                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Jaundice,
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          2  fatigued, Diagnosed Illness: Body is destroying red

          3  blood cells, Dr, wants to remove his spleen (no

          4  diagnosis), Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC, Morgue

          5  (six months), first Responder.

          6                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: Anxiety,

          7  headache, difficulty breathing and dizziness,

          8  Diagnosed Illness: Poly POD sinus disease, Asthma,

          9  lung disease, Acid reflux, Time spent at Ground

         10  Zero: WTC (six months), one year sifting through

         11  remains, First responder.

         12                 Age: 36, Sex: F, Symptoms: Chronic

         13  fatigue, trouble breathing, swollen neck, Diagnosed

         14  Illness: Thyroid cancer, Time spent at Ground Zero:

         15  WTC (five months), First Responder.

         16                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: Severe

         17  cough, Diagnosed Illness: Nasal polyps, Asthma, Time

         18  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three months).

         19                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Cough,

         20  shortness of breath, phlegm, wheezing and difficulty

         21  sleeping, Diagnosed Illness: No diagnosis, Time

         22  spent at Ground Zero: Morgue (three months), First

         23  responder.

         24                 Age: 55, Sex: M, Symptoms: Trouble

         25  sleeping, runny nose, Diagnosed Illness: Post-
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          2  traumatic stress syndrome, sinusitis, Time spent at

          3  Ground Zero: WTC (one year), First Responder.

          4                 Age: 45, Sex: M, Diagnosis: Shortness

          5  of breath, chest pain, excessive protein in the

          6  urine, Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Nephritic

          7  syndrome (affects kidney), Time spent at Ground

          8  Zero: WTC (three months), First Responder.

          9                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Jaundice,

         10  fatigue, shortness of breath, throwing up blood,

         11  joint pains, swelling of limbs, blurred vision,

         12  numbness in finger tips and toes, Diagnosed Illness:

         13  Failed liver non- alcoholic stetohepatitis, (liver

         14  transplant), GERD, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         15  (one month and a half), First Responder.

         16                 Age: 49, Sex: M, Symptoms: Headaches,

         17  coughing, fatigued, Diagnosed Illness: Sinusitis,

         18  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one month).

         19                 Age: 69, Sex: M, Symptoms: Runny

         20  nose, lung congestion, Diagnosed Illness: Sinusitis,

         21  Pre- cancerous kidney (removed), Time spent at

         22  Ground Zero: WTC (three weeks).

         23                 Age: 43, Sex M, Symptoms: Shortness

         24  of breath, chronic rashes, joint pain, numbing of

         25  limbs, tumors, Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time
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          2  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two months), S.I.

          3  Landfill (two months), Morgue (15 days).

          4                 Age: 45, Sex: M, Symptoms: Pain in

          5  left side, high calcium level, fatigued, dizziness,

          6  Diagnosed Illness: Kidney stones, Time spent at

          7  Ground Zero: WTC (one month), First Responder.

          8                 Age: 29, Sex: M, Symptoms: Coughing

          9  up blood and mucus, Diagnosed Illness: Chronic upper

         10  respiratory infection, Time spent at Ground Zero:

         11  WTC (two weeks).

         12                 Age: 42, Sex: F, Symptoms: Coughing,

         13  eye irritation, headaches, Diagnosed Illness:

         14  Sinusitis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one month

         15  and a half), First Responder.

         16                 Age: 43, Sex: M, Symptoms: Loss of

         17  hearing, runny nose, difficulty breathing,

         18  heartburn, Diagnosed Illness: Loss of hearing, Time

         19  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (nine months), First

         20  Responder.

         21                 Age: 36, Sex: M, Symptoms: Nose

         22  bleed, sinus infection, difficulty sleeping, WTC

         23  cough, Diagnosed Illness: Post traumatic stress

         24  disorder, Hypertension, Kidney stones, Sinusitis,

         25  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two weeks), First
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          2  Responder.

          3                 Age: 47, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

          4  of breath, irregular heartbeat, wheezing, fatigue,

          5  swollen left, numbness, Diagnosed Illness: Sleep

          6  apnea, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three days)

          7  First Responder, Volunteer.

          8                 Age: 47, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

          9  sleeping, tightness in chest, neckaches, bad cough,

         10  headache, Diagnosed Illness: Acid Reflux, Reactive

         11  airways, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two

         12  months), First responder.

         13                 Age: 38, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         14  breathing, constant infections, fatigue, Diagnosed

         15  Illness: Thyroid cancer, Chronic sinusitis, Time

         16  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three month), First

         17  Responder.

         18                 Age: 32, Sex: M, Symptoms: Fatigue,

         19  shortness of breath, migraine headaches, coughing,

         20  Diagnosed Illness: RAD, Time spent at Ground Zero:

         21  WTC (three months), First Responder.

         22                 Age: 36, Sex: M, Symptoms: Chronic

         23  cough, fatigue, Diagnosed Illness: Acid reflux, Time

         24  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one week), First

         25  Responder.
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          2                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

          3  breathing, short- tempered, runny nose, Diagnosed

          4  Illness: Sinusitis, Acid reflux, Time spent at

          5  Ground Zero: WTC (18 months all together), Morgue,

          6  S.I. Landfill, First Responder.

          7                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Heartburn,

          8  loss of appetite, Diagnosed Illness: Acid reflux,

          9  Hiatal hernia, Irritation to stomach lining, Time

         10  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (six months), First

         11  Responder.

         12                 Age: 35, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         13  of breath, Diagnosed Illness: None given, Time spent

         14  at Ground Zero: WTC (two months).

         15                 Age: 35, Sex: M, Symptoms: Protein in

         16  urine, high cholesterol, dizzy, fatigue, swelling,

         17  Diagnosed Illness: Focal segmental glomerular

         18  sclerosis (kidneys), Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         19  (six months), First Responder.

         20                 Age: 37, Sex: M, Symptoms: Headaches,

         21  fatigue, runny nose, Diagnosed Illness: Occupational

         22  asthma, High liver count, Acid reflux, Sinusitis,

         23  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three months).

         24                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         25  of breath, fatigue, difficulty sleeping, Diagnosed
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          2  Illness: RADS, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (six

          3  months), First Responder.

          4                 Age: 58, Sex: M, Symptoms: Mass on

          5  right side of neck, unusual snoring, blood in the

          6  mucus, Diagnosed Illness: Tonsil cancer, Time spent

          7  at Ground Zero: WTC (one week), First Responder.

          8                 Age: 35, Sex: F, Symptoms: Allergies,

          9  excessive bowl movement, abdominal pain, dry cough,

         10  Diagnosed Illness: Crohn's disease, Fistula, Time

         11  spent at Ground Zero: Not given.

         12                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Upper

         13  respiratory infection, Diagnosed Illness: Crohn's

         14  disease, allergies, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC.

         15                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: Diabetes,

         16  hip replacement, high blood pressure, Diagnosed

         17  Illness: Diabetes, Hip replacement, High blood

         18  pressure, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one and

         19  one half months), First Responder.

         20                 Age: 38, Sex: M, Symptoms: Severe

         21  headache, Diagnosed Illness: Brain tumor, Liver

         22  tumor, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (four months),

         23  First Responder.

         24                 Age: 34, Sex: M, Symptoms: Non given,

         25  Diagnosed Illness: Low lung volume, Time spent at
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          2  Ground Zero: WTC (two weeks).

          3                 Age: 49, Sex: M, Symptoms: Cough,

          4  difficulty sleeping, congestion, Diagnosed Illness:

          5  None given, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two

          6  weeks).

          7                 Age: 42, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

          8  of breath, Acid reflux, Bronchitis,  Diagnosed

          9  Illness: Asthma, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         10  (three months), First Responder.

         11                 Age: 43, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         12  of breath, fatigue, moody, nosebleeds, Diagnosed

         13  Illness: Nodules on lungs, Acid reflux, Time spent

         14  at Ground Zero: WTC (six months), First Responder.

         15                 Age: 35, Sex: M, Symptoms: Diarrhea,

         16  blood in urine, Diagnosed Illness: Colitis, Time

         17  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (five months), First

         18  Responder.

         19                 Age: 43, Sex: M, Symptoms: Blood in

         20  urine, acid reflux, Diagnosed Illness: Bladder

         21  cancer, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one week).

         22                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Anxiety,

         23  difficulty sleeping, runny nose, tightness in chest,

         24  Diagnosed Illness: Sinusitis, Sleep Apnea, Post

         25  Traumatic Stress, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC
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          2  (four months), First Responder.

          3                 Age: 43, Sex: M, Symptoms: Wheezing,

          4  shortness of breath, joint pain, Diagnosed Illness:

          5  None given, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three

          6  weeks), First Responder.

          7                 Age: 27, Sex: M, Symptoms: Chronic

          8  cough, difficulty breathing, upper respiratory

          9  infection, Diagnosed Illness: RADS, Sinusitis, Time

         10  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three weeks), First

         11  Responder.

         12                 Age: 38, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         13  of breath, coughing, fatigue, aches, headaches, loss

         14  of appetite, Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time

         15  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three months), First

         16  Responder.

         17                 Age: 36, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         18  of breath, dizziness, headache, vertigo, joint pain,

         19  Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time spent at Ground

         20  Zero: WTC (approx. Four months), First Responder.

         21                 Age: 49, Sex: F, Symptoms: Scar

         22  tissue on the lungs, shortness of breath, fatigue,

         23  joint pains, Diagnosed Illness: Obstructive

         24  pulmonary disease, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         25  (two months), First Responder.
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          2                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Rash,

          3  headaches, shortness of breath, joint pain, short

          4  temper, anxiety, difficulty sleeping, Diagnosed

          5  Illness: Acid reflux, High mercury account, Time

          6  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one month), First

          7  Responder.

          8                 Age: 45, Sex: M, Symptoms:

          9  Stomachaches, low red blood cell count, low white

         10  blood cell count, Diagnosed Illness: Spleen removed,

         11  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one week), First

         12  Responder.

         13                 Age: 42, Sex: F, Symptoms: None

         14  given, Diagnosed Illness: Recurring cyst, Time spent

         15  at Ground Zero: WTC (three months), First Responder.

         16                 Age: 39, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         17  sleeping, anxiety, Diagnosed Illness: Post traumatic

         18  stress disorder, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         19  (seven months), First Responder.

         20                 Age: 45, Sex: M, Symptoms: Fatigue,

         21  difficulty breathing, joint pains vertigo,

         22  headaches, anxiety, Diagnosed Illness: Sinusitis,

         23  Acid reflux, Ulcer, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         24  (six months), First Responder.

         25                 Age: 44, Sex: F, Symptoms: Difficulty
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          2  breathing, difficulty sleeping, Diagnosed Illness:

          3  RADS, Vocal chord damage, Time spent at Ground Zero:

          4  WTC (three months), First Responder.

          5                 Age: 43, Sex: F, Symptoms:

          6  Bronchitis, acid reflux, sinusitis, cough, Diagnosed

          7  Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

          8  (three months), First Responder.

          9                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Cough,

         10  difficulty breathing, Diagnosed Illness: RADS,

         11  Sinusitis, rhinitis, Esophagitis, GERD, Sleep apnea,

         12  Lung scarring, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two

         13  months), S.I. Landfill (one month).

         14                 Age 37, Sex: M, Symptoms: Anxiety,

         15  depression, Diagnosed Illness: Post traumatic stress

         16  disorder, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC, First

         17  Responder.

         18                 Age: 31, Sex: M, Symptoms: Diarrhea,

         19  blood in stool, Diagnosed Illness: Colitis, Time

         20  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two weeks), First

         21  Responder.

         22                 Age: 49, Sex: M, Symptoms, Blood in

         23  urine, difficulty breathing, Diagnosed Illness:

         24  Tumor in the bladder, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         25  (four months), First Responder.
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          2                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

          3  breathing, joint pain, reoccurring bronchitis,

          4  Diagnosed Illness: Sarcoidosis, Asthma, Time spent

          5  at Ground Zero: WTC (one month), First Responder.

          6                 Age: 38, Sex: M, Symptoms: Fatigue,

          7  headaches, high blood pressure, difficulty

          8  breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Glomerolul nephritis

          9  (kidney disease), Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         10  (two weeks), First Responder.

         11                 Age: 35, Sex: M, Symptoms: Bloating,

         12  heartburn, loss of appetite, Diagnosed Illness: Acid

         13  reflux, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (six months),

         14  Morgue (two months).

         15                 Age: 41, Sex: M, Symptoms: Bone pain,

         16  back pain, Diagnosed Illness: Multiple myeloma

         17  (cancer of the plasma cell), Time spent at Ground

         18  Zero: WTC (two days), Morgue & S.I. Landfill (three

         19  weeks).

         20                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Lump in

         21  the leg, Diagnosed Illness: Soft tissue cancer, Time

         22  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (one week).

         23                 Age: 45, Sex: F, Symptoms: Joint

         24  pain, trouble sleeping, Diagnosed Illness: Leukemia,

         25  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two years).
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          2                 Age: 47, Sex: M, Symptoms: Lump in

          3  throat, Diagnosed Illness: Throat cancer, Time spent

          4  at Ground Zero: WTC (two and one half months).

          5                 Age: 47, Sex: M, Symptoms: Muscle

          6  pain, Diagnosed Illness: Herniated disc, Partial

          7  tears in muscle tissue, Time spent at Ground Zero:

          8  WTC (two weeks), S.I. Landfill (one week).

          9                 Age: 37, Sex: F, Symptoms: Shortness

         10  of breath, tightness of the chest, Diagnosed

         11  Illness: Asthma, Sleep apnea, Time spent at Ground

         12  Zero: WTC (two months).

         13                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         14  breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Heart attack, Time

         15  spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two months), First

         16  Responder.

         17                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         18  of breath, Diagnosed Illness: Lung cancer, Time

         19  spent at Ground Zero: WTC & Morgue (eight months).

         20                 Age: 49, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         21  of breath, difficulty sleeping, coughing, Diagnosed

         22  Illness: PTSD, Restricted lung disease, Time spent

         23  at Ground Zero: WTC (eight months).

         24                 Age: 43, Sex: M, Symptoms: Severe

         25  cough, Diagnosed Illness: Asthma, Time spent at
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          2  Ground Zero: WTC (one and one half months).

          3                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Stomach

          4  pain, difficulty breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Acid

          5  reflux, High mercury count, Time spent at Ground

          6  Zero: WTC (one month), First Responder.

          7                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Headaches,

          8  severe cough, difficulty sleeping, short tempered,

          9  fatigue, joint pain, Diagnosed Illness: High blood

         10  pressure, Diabetes, Spots on the lungs, PTSD,

         11  Removal of Gall bladder (impacted due to stones),

         12  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (nine months), First

         13  Responder.

         14                 Age: 38, Sex: M, Symptoms: Swollen

         15  ankles, chronic cough, night sweats, Diagnosed

         16  Illness: Sarcoidosis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         17  (two weeks), First Responder.

         18                 Age: 32, Sex: M, Symptoms: Lumps, and

         19  fistulas, hernia, acid reflux, shortness of breath,

         20  skin rashes, Diagnosed Illness: Crohn's disease,

         21  Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two and one half

         22  months), First Responder.

         23                 Age: 39, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         24  breathing and sleeping, Diagnosed Illness: Asthma,

         25  PTSD, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (three months).
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          2                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shakes,

          3  difficulty sleeping, severe cough, Diagnosed

          4  Illness: High blood pressure (still in testing

          5  phase), Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two and one

          6  half months), First Responder.

          7                 Age: 37, Sex: M, Symptoms: Rash,

          8  Diagnosed Illness: Melanoma, Time spent at Ground

          9  Zero: WTC (three months), First Responder.

         10                 Age: 47, Sex: M, Symptoms: Frequent

         11  migraines, difficulty sleeping, Diagnosed Illness:

         12  Glaucoma, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two

         13  months), First Responder.

         14                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         15  of breath, Diagnosed Illness: Asthma, Time spent at

         16  Ground Zero: WTC (two months), First Responder.

         17                 Age: 44, Sex: M, Symptoms: Bloated,

         18  weak, difficulty eating and drinking, dehydration,

         19  Diagnosed Illness: Short bowel syndrome (large part

         20  of small intestine removed), Time spent at Ground

         21  Zero: WTC (two months), First Responder.

         22                 Age: 46, Sex: M, Symptoms: Headaches,

         23  backaches, Diagnosed Illness: Polycythemia vera

         24  (clonal stem cell disorder), Time spent at Ground

         25  Zero: WTC (three months), First Responder.
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          2                 Age: 52, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

          3  breathing, wheezing, Diagnosed Illness: Asthma, Time

          4  spent at Ground Zero: WTC, First Responder.

          5                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

          6  breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Asthma, Time spent at

          7  Ground Zero: WTC (one and one half months), First

          8  Responder.

          9                 Age: 30, Sex: M, Symptoms: High liver

         10  enzymes, gastritis, heartburn, nausea, stomach pain,

         11  Diagnosed Illness: Liver biopsy/colonoscopy, Gall

         12  bladder removed, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         13  (four months), First Responder.

         14                 Age: 40, Sex: M, Symptoms: Back pain,

         15  night sweats, difficulty sleeping, Diagnosed

         16  Illness: Cancer of the kidneys and liver, Time spent

         17  at Ground Zero: WTC, First Responder.

         18                 Age: 33, Sex: M, Symptoms:

         19  Bronchitis, chest pain, migraines, cough, difficulty

         20  breathing, Diagnosed Illness: Duodenal polyps, GERD,

         21  Reflux, two nodules in the lungs, sleep apnea,

         22  sinusitis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (nine

         23  months), First Responder.

         24                 Age: 38, Sex: M, Symptoms: Difficulty

         25  breathing, fatigue, Diagnosed Illness: Rotting

                                                            260

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  trachea, Decreased lung capacity, Time spent at

          3  Ground Zero: WTC (nine months), First Responder.

          4                 Age: 49, Sex: M, Symptoms:

          5  Congestion, headaches, shortness of breath, loss of

          6  sight, Diagnosed Illness: Adeno carcinoma (cancer in

          7  the left sinus), deceased (2004), Time spent at

          8  Ground Zero: WTC.

          9                 Age: 36, Sex: M, Symptoms: Cough,

         10  fatigue, weight loss, reduced lung capacity,

         11  irregular heart beat, Diagnosed Illness:

         12  Sarcoidosis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC (two

         13  months).

         14                 Age: 48, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         15  of breath, chronic bronchitis, stiffness in the

         16  chest, difficulty sleeping, Diagnosed Illness:

         17  Asthma, RADS, Sleep apnea, Time spent at Ground

         18  Zero: WTC, First Responder.

         19                 Age: 52, Sex: M, Symptoms: Shortness

         20  of breath, difficulty breathing, Diagnosed Illness:

         21  Pulmonary fibrosis, Time spent at Ground Zero: WTC

         22  (four months).

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 5:46 p.m.)

         24

         25
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, JOAN GARCIA, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 14th day of September 2006.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          JOAN GARCIA
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, JOAN GARCIA, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12
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         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              JOAN GARCIA
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